
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 
City Council Chambers, 33 East Broadway Avenue Meridian, Idaho 

Thursday, April 21, 2022 at 6:00 PM 

All materials presented at public meetings become property of the City of Meridian. Anyone desiring accommodation 
for disabilities should contact the City Clerk's Office at 208-888-4433 at least 48 hours prior to the public meeting. 

Agenda 
Scan the QR Code to 

sign up in advance to 
provide testimony. 

Public Hearing process: Land use development applications begin with 
presentation of the project and analysis of the application by Planning Staff. 
The applicant is then allowed up to 15 minutes to present the project. Then, 
members of the public are allowed up to 3 minutes each to address 
Commissioners regarding the application. Any citizen acting as a 
representative of a Homeowner’s Association may be allowed up to 10 
minutes to speak on behalf of represented homeowners consenting to yield 
their time to speak. After all public testimony, the applicant is allowed up 
to 10 minutes to respond to questions and comments. Commissioners may 
ask questions throughout the public hearing process. The public hearing is 
then closed, and no further public comment is heard. 

 

VIRTUAL MEETING INSTRUCTIONS 

To join the meeting online: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89153921862  

Or join by phone: 1-669-900-6833 
Webinar ID: 891 5392 1862  
 

ROLL-CALL ATTENDANCE 

____ Nate Wheeler        ____ Mandi Stoddard        ____ Patrick Grace    

____ Nick Grove        ____ Maria Lorcher         ____ Steven Yearsley 

        ____ Andrew Seal, Chairperson 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

NOTE OF CONTINUACE TO SPECIAL MEETING 

All Public Hearings will be opened for the sole purpose of continuing the hearing to a 
special meeting on Thursday, April 28 at 6:00 pm. No testimony will be taken. 

CONSENT AGENDA [Action Item] 

1



1. Approve Minutes of the April 7, 2022 Planning and Zoning Commission Regular 
Meeting 

2. Findings of Facts, Conclusions of Law for Records Apartments (H-2022-0008) by 
Brighton Development, Inc., Located on the Northeast Corner of N. Records Way 
and E. Fairview Ave. 

ITEMS MOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA [Action Item] 

ACTION ITEMS - ALL ITEMS TO BE CONTINUED TO APRIL 28, 2022 SPECIAL MEETING 

3. Public Hearing Continued from March 17, 2022 for Alamar Subdivision (H-2022-
0004) by Noble Rock Development, Inc., Located at 4380 W. Franklin Rd. (Parcel 
#S1210346603), Near the Northeast Corner of N. Black Cat Rd. and W. Franklin Rd. 

A. Request: Annexation and Zoning of approximately 7.23 acres of land with a 
request for the TN-R (Traditional Neighborhood Residential) zoning district. 

B. Request: Preliminary Plat consisting of 42 building lots (22 single-family 
attached lots and 20 detached single-family lots) and 4 common lots on 4.63 
acres in the requested TN-R zoning district. 

4. Public Hearing for Burnside Ridge Estates (H-2021-0070) by Kimley-Horn and 
Associates, Inc., Located Near the Southwest Corner of S. Linder Rd. and W. Victory 
Rd., Including 2365 W. Victory Rd., 3801 S. Linder Rd., and Parcels S1226142251, 
R0831430030, R0831430022, and R0831430010 

A. Request: Annexation and Zoning of 121.29 acres of land from RUT to the R-
2 (11.76 acres) and R-4 (109.53) zoning districts.  

B. Request: A Preliminary Plat consisting of 299 total lots (275 single-family 
residential lots and 24 common lots) on 119.31 acres of land. 

5. Public Hearing for Grayson Subdivision (H-2022-0014) by Schultz Development, 
LLC, Located at 1710 E. Amity Rd., Near the Northeast Corner of E. Amity Rd. and S. 
Locust Grove Rd. 

A. Request: Annexation and Zoning of 3.39 acres from RUT to the R-8 zoning 
district. 

B. Request: A Preliminary Plat consisting of 15 single-family residential 
building lots and 3 common lots on 3.1 acres of land in the requested R-8 
zoning district. 

6. Public Hearing for I-84 and Meridian Rd. (H-2021-0099) by Hawkins Companies, 
Generally Located at the Northwest Corner of S. Meridian Rd. and Interstate 84. 

A. Request: Annexation of 18.30 acres of land with a C-G zoning district. 

B. Request: A Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map Amendment to 
change the future land use designation on 33.13 acres of land from Mixed Use 
– Community (MU-C) to Mixed Use – Regional (MU-R). 

7. Public Hearing for Future Land Use Map Ada County Area of City Impact Cleanup 
(H-2021-0098) by City of Meridian Planning Division, Located Citywide 

2



A. Request: Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment to clean up the map to 
better align with the adopted Ada County Area of City Impact (AOCI) boundary 
AND removing Civic designations and areas that will be serviced by other 
jurisdictions (Boise). 

ADJOURNMENT 

3



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Approve Minutes of the April 7, 2022 Planning and Zoning Commission 
Regular Meeting

4Item 1.



Meridian Planning and Zoning Meeting                                                   April 7, 2022. 

     

Meeting of the Meridian Planning and Zoning Commission of  April 7, 2022, was called to 

order at 6:00 p.m. by Chairman Andrew Seal. 

 

Members Present:  Chairman Andrew Seal, Commissioner Steven Yearsley,   

Commissioner Nick Grove, Commissioner Maria Lorcher and Commissioner Nate 

Wheeler.   

 

Members Absent:  Commissioner Patrick Grace and Commissioner Mandi Stoddard. 

 

Others Present:  Adrienne Weatherly, Kurt Starman, Bill Parsons, Joe Dodson, Alan 

Tiefenbach and Dean Willis. 

 

ROLL-CALL ATTENDANCE  

  

 __X___ Nate Wheeler   ___X___ Maria Lorcher  

 ______ Mandi Stoddard         ___X___ Nick Grove  

 __X___ Steven Yearsley    _______ Patrick Grace        

     ___X____ Andrew Seal - Chairman 
 
Seal:  Good evening.  Welcome to Planning and Zoning Commission meeting for April 
7th, 2022.  At this time I would like to call the meeting to order.  The Commissioners who 
are present at this evening's meeting are at City Hall and on Zoom.  We also have staff 
from the city attorney and clerk's offices, as well as the City Planning Department.  If you 
are joining us from -- if you are joining us on Zoom this evening we can see that you are 
here.  You may observe the meeting.  However, your ability to be seen in -- on screen 
and talk will be muted.  During the public testimony portion of the meeting you will be 
unmuted and, then, be able to comment.  Please note that we cannot take questions until 
the public testimony portion.  If you have a process question during the meeting, please, 
e-mail cityclerk@meridiancity.org and they will reply as quickly as possible.  If you simply 
want to watch the meeting we encourage you to watch the streaming on the city's 
YouTube channel.  You can access that at meridiancity.org/live.  With that let's begin with 
roll call.  Madam Clerk.  
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 
Seal:  The first item on the agenda is the adoption of the agenda.  Amina's Daycare, which 
is file number H-2022-0012, will be opened for the sole purpose of continuing to a regular 
scheduled meeting.  It will be open only for that purpose.  So, if there is anybody here 
tonight to testify for that particular application we will not be taking any testimony on it this 
evening.  Could I get a motion to adopt the agenda.   
 
Lorcher:  So moved.   

5Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 2 of 88 

 

Grove:  Second.   
 
Seal:  It's been moved and seconded to adopt the agenda.  All in favor say aye.  Any 
opposed?  Okay.  Motion carries.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  TWO ABSENT.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA [Action Item]  
 
 1.  Approve Minutes of the March 17, 2022 Planning and Zoning   
  Commission Meeting 
 
 2.  Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for Faissy's Child Care (H-2022-
  0002) by Faissy Kwizera, Located at 1322 E. Grand Canyon St., Near  
  the Southwest Corner of E. McMillan Rd. and N. Locust Grove Rd. 
 
Seal:  Next item on the agenda is the Consent Agenda.  We have one item on the agenda, 
which is to approve the -- actually have two items on the agenda.  One is to approve the 
meeting minutes of the March 17th, 2022, Planning and Zoning Commission meeting.  
We also have the Finding of Fact, Conclusions of Law for the Faissy's Childcare, H-2022-
0002.  Can I get a motion to accept the Consent Agenda as presented?   
 
Grove:  So moved.   
 
Yearsley:  Second.   
 
Seal:  It's been moved and seconded to adopt -- adopt the Consent Agenda.  All in favor 
say aye.  Any opposed?  Okay.  That motion carries.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  TWO ABSENT.  
 
ITEMS MOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA [Action Item] 
 
Seal:  Usually I move into the public hearing process, but if anybody in here is in for just 
the community meetings, there are several going on tonight.  So, this is Planning and 
Zoning Commission hearing.  So, if anybody is here for just a public meeting, you're in 
the wrong place.  If you are here for the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting you 
are in the correct place.   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Chair, my apologies.  I'm getting word from outside sources that the audio 
is not reaching our outside audience.   
 
Seal:  Okay.   
 
Weatherly:  I'm going to be pausing for a minute while I reset the system.   
 

6Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 3 of 88 

 

Seal:  We can pause for a minute.   
 
Weatherly:  Thank you, sir.   
 
(Brief pause.) 
 
Seal:  All right.  Sorry about the technical difficulties.  We will continue on now.  So, at this 
time I will explain the public hearing process.  We will open each item individually and 
begin with the staff report.  Staff will report their findings on -- on how the item adheres to 
the Comprehensive Plan and Unified Development Code.  After staff has made their 
presentation the applicant will come forward to present their case and respond to staff 
comments.  They will have 15 minutes to do so.  After the applicant is finished we will 
open the floor to public testimony.  Each person will be called on only once during the 
public testimony.  The Clerk will call the names individually of those who have signed up 
on our website in advance to testify.  You will, then, be unmuted in Zoom or you can come 
to the microphones in Chambers.  You will need to state your name and address for the 
record and you will have three minutes to address the Commission.  If you have previously 
sent pictures or presentation for the meeting it will be displayed on the screen and our 
Clerk will run the presentation or you can run the presentation.  You guys can work that 
out as it comes up.  If you have established that you are speaking on behalf of a larger 
group, like an HOA, and others from that group will allow you to speak on their behalf, 
you will have up to ten minutes.  After all those who have signed up in advance have 
spoken we will invite any others that may wish to testify.  If you wish to speak on the topic 
you may come forward in Chambers or if on Zoom press the raise hand button in the 
Zoom app or if you are only listening on a phone please press star nine and wait for your 
name to be called.  If you are listening on multiple -- multiple devices, such as a computer 
and a phone, please, be sure to mute the extra devices so we do not experience feedback 
and we can hear you clearly.  When you are finished, if the Commission does not have 
questions for you you will be -- you will return to your seat in chambers or be muted on 
Zoom and you will no longer have the ability to speak.  Please remember that you will -- 
you will not be called a second time.  After all testimony has been heard, the applicant 
will be given another ten minutes to come back and respond.  When the applicant is 
finished responding to questions and concerns we will close the public hearing and the 
Commissioners will have the opportunity to discuss and, hopefully, be able to make final 
decisions or recommendations to City Council as needed.  
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
 3.  Public Hearing for Amina’s Daycare (fka Mulonge Daycare) (H-2022- 
  0012) by Godelieve Mulonge, Located at 4175 S. Leaning Tower Ave. 
 
  A.  Request: A Conditional Use Permit for a group daycare of up to 12  
   children on 0.145 acres of land in the R-8 zoning district.  
 

7Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 4 of 88 

 

Seal:  So, at this time I would like to open the public hearing for Item No. H-2022-0012, 
Amina's Daycare for continuance and I believe the date that we were looking at is May 
5th.   
 
Grove:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Grove, go ahead.   
 
Grove:  I move to continue File No. H-2022-0012 for Amina's Daycare to the hearing date 
of May 5th for them to be able to get the signage posted correctly.   
 
Lorcher:  Second.   
 
Seal:  It's been moved and seconded to continue File No. H-2022-0012 to the date of May 
5th.  All those in favor say aye.  Any opposed?  Okay.  Motion carries.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  TWO ABSENT.  
 
 4.  Public Hearing Continued from March 17, 2022 for Pavilion at   
  Windsong (H-2021-0102) by Kent Brown, Located at the Northwest  
  Corner of W. Ustick Rd. and N. Linder Rd. 
 
  A.  Request: Rezone of 3.42 acres of the subject property from C-C to  
   R-40. 
 
  B.  A Preliminary Plat on the entire 4.77-acre property to allow 33  
   townhouse lots, 2 lots for vertically-integrated buildings containing a 
   total of 12 residential units, and one commercial lot. 
 
  C.  A Conditional Use Permit to allow townhouses in the R-40 zoning  
   district. 
 
  D.  A Development Agreement Modification to allow the proposed 
   development 
 
Seal:  All right.  We will now continue the public hearing for Pavilion at Windsong, H-2021-
0102, which was continued from March 17th.  We will begin with the staff report.   
 
Tiefenbach:  Sorry about that.  It looks like I was muted.  Can you hear me?   
 
Seal:  Yes, we can.   
 
Tiefenbach:  Okay.  Thank you.  Let me -- I apologize I'm not there.  I'm struggling with a 
cold, so probably better for me to be here than there.  Okay.  This is the Pavilion at 
Windsong.  This is a proposal for a development agreement modification, a rezone, a 
preliminary plat and a conditional use.  The subject property is about four and a half acres 

8Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 5 of 88 

 

and it's presently zoned C-C.  It's located at the northwest corner of North Linder Road 
and West Ustick Road.  The surrounding area is comprised of single family detached to 
the south, east and west.  A commercial center directly across North Linder and a newly 
developing mixed density residential development at the southeast corner of North Linder 
and West Ustick.  Just -- just a little bit of history on this property.  The -- the property was 
annexed into the city in 2009.  At the time of that annexation approval specific details for 
how the site was to develop were not provided.  The recorded development agreement 
requires those -- those details to be provided when the property is subdivided.  Excuse 
me.  In 2019 the property was proposed for a development agreement modification and 
a conditional use to allow a mix of uses, including multi-family, a self storage facility, office 
and retail uses.  During the City Council meeting there were concerns in regard to the 
multi-family component mostly about the -- the density and the height of the buildings, but 
there was also comments about overcrowding in schools and traffic.  The Planning 
Commission did approve the storage, but they -- they strongly -- but they strongly 
recommended that retail uses be retained there and when it went to the Council the 
Council only approved it for the self storage.  They did not approve multi-family on that 
site.  This property is recommended by the Comprehensive Plan for a mixed-use 
community.  There is the site plan.  So, this proposal is to rezone about three and a half 
acres of the subject property from C-C to R-40.  You can see that on the graphic there on 
the right.  It would be a preliminary plat for 33 townhouse lots, two lots for two vertically 
integrated buildings, so that all of the -- the townhouses would be pretty much all of the 
buildings except for these buildings here on the south, the east and this commercial, all 
the rest of this is townhouses.  The -- the buildings on the south and the east, those are 
two -- those are two lots with vertical -- vertically integrated structures, six -- each row has 
six units.  That would be commercial on the bottom and residential above.  Can you still 
hear me?   
 
Seal:  Yes, we can.   
 
Tiefenbach:  Okay.  I just got a text from Bill, so I wasn't sure you could hear me.  So, 
vertically integrated on the two lots on the bottom and, then, a commercial pad up there 
next to West Crosswinds.  A conditional -- in addition to the rezoning, a conditional use is 
allowed -- is required for the townhouses in the R-40 and as I mentioned, because specific 
details weren't provided about the development at the time of annexation, the 
development agreement modification is required in order to move forward.  It's a -- you 
should note that this proposal also includes a request for private streets, because some 
of these units front on a MEW and I will talk about that shortly.  So, again, the -- the future 
land use map designates this property for mixed-use community.  That -- for the purpose 
of that is for community serving uses to be seamlessly integrated into the urban fabric 
and there is a few different components of mixed use, usually three types of land uses, 
high density near employment, being centered around public spaces and accessible.  
Mixed use community in particular also says that 20 percent of it should be residential.  It 
encourages vertically integrated structures and it limits the buildings -- the square footage 
to 30,000 square feet.  This particular application reflects three types of uses with the 
majority of the residential portion of the development clustered around a central open 
space.  That's what you can see right here.  The rest of it is on a commercial arterial with 

9Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 6 of 88 

 

a combination of office, commercial, and residential.  Staff does support the vertically 
integrated buildings, but is concerned about the loss of additional commercially -- 
commercial viable property if those structures do not build out as townhouses.  Our 
concern would be the entire development would be built out as residential.  It's all 
townhouses with just a drive-through there.  As a condition of approval, staff recommends 
a requirement that at the time of the building permit the ground floors of all vertically 
integrated buildings meet occupancy class requirements for commercial structures.  My 
understanding is that the applicant is amenable to this recommendation.  Staff also 
noticed that we believe that the vertically integrated structure would be more appropriate 
on the north side of Crosswind.  So, you can see my pointer here.  We think this area 
would be better.  This is -- would better -- would better integrate with the commercial and 
it would reduce the impact of traffic on the townhouse portion, so all the traffic isn't coming 
down into here to get to those down to the bottom.  Staff has recommended this to the 
applicant, but I believe that the applicant -- this one they are not amenable to and I believe 
their concerns are about the -- how it would affect the community and -- and their -- so, I 
think they will talk about that more in detail.  At the time of the staff report staff had 
concerns with the townhouse row shown as Building D.  So, that is down here.  At the 
time of the staff report that was one long wall.  Because it was so close to the adjacent 
residences, we had concerns with this wall effect on the townhouses and we 
recommended that it be -- it be broken up.  Since the time of the original staff report the 
applicant has broken them up so if you can see now that one of the houses that is sitting 
here is now looking down, so you can see now that one of the houses that's sitting here 
is now looking down through the middle of six of this.  In regard to access, the subject 
property is located at the northwest corner of North Linder Road and Ustick Road, which 
are both arterials.  There was an existing local road, which is Crosswind -- that's what you 
see here -- presently stubs at the property here.  This development would close the 
existing access on North Linder, which is further down here to the south.  It would push it 
to the north and it would connect Crosswinds Road.  There is also a northern stub, which 
is proposed here.  The property to the north is still unincorporated in the county.  So, that 
would be in case it develops in the future.  Except for Crosswind Street, which would be 
built to a local street to the typical section, all the other roads in this -- all to the south of 
this development and up here as well would all be private roads.  The preliminary plat 
reflects the private roads south of Crosswinds, meets the 24 -- the minimum 24 -- 24 foot 
requirements.  So, that's what our requirement is the minimum for private roads.  Now at 
the time of the staff report staff mentioned that the alley -- this up here, if you could see 
all the way at the top, the northern road that's running east-west, this was shown as an 
alley on the staff report.  When we -- when we wrote the staff report we mentioned that it 
didn't meet the requirements for an alley, because it dead ended.  It also wouldn't work 
as a common drive, because there was more than six units on it and it also wouldn't work 
as a private road, because it was too narrow and they needed to redesign that.  Now, 
since that time the applicant has redesigned this road again here to be 24 feet wide.  
Although we will mention that this road here is still indicated -- the one in the middle is still 
indicated to be only 23 feet wide.  So, the applicant will have to revise that accordingly.  
All parking requirements have been met, although the applicant should submit a shared 
parking agreement between the commercial use and the vertically integrated structures.  
We have listed that as one of our conditional -- one of our conditions of approval.  One -- 

10Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 7 of 88 

 

one thing I want to mention is that the applicant has mentioned in their narrative that they 
are proposing a three-way stop sign at the intersection of Crosswinds and North Wafting.  
So, on this that would be down in this area.  Now, this would be because of the concerns 
about traffic coming into the existing neighborhood.  However, ACHD staff report does 
not mention that stop sign.  ACHD commented that traffic calming should be provided in 
this area by a bulb out.  So, it's not clear to me at this point whether it's going to be a stop 
sign or a bulb out.  I would defer that to the applicant.  But this should be addressed.  The 
landscaping plan shows a 25 foot wide street buffer adjacent to North Linder and West 
Ustick, although at this point it doesn't appear that they meet the tree requirements of one 
tree per 35 feet, which would be easy enough for us to remedy at the time of final plat.  
Also at the time of the staff report, due to the adjacent residences, staff will make -- staff 
recommended a five foot wide landscape buffer to the north.  That has since been  
provided.  That's what you see here.  Again, that wasn't provided when we wrote the staff 
report.  There are seven foot wide attached sidewalks along North Linder and West 
Ustick.  The Five Mile pathway parallels the creek at the west.  This is the Five Mile 
pathway basically down here.  It parallels the street on the west and it basically dead ends 
at -- where the property ends.  Staff recommended the pathway along -- staff mentioned 
in the staff report that the configuration -- the configuration as proposed was redundant 
and unnecessary.  So, if you saw the original plans, what it showed was it showed a 
pathway along Linder in addition to the seven foot sidewalk and the same thing along 
Ustick.  It showed an additional pathway and you can still see that here and now.  Staff 
mentioned that we thought it was redundant and unnecessary.  We recommended that 
the pathway along Linder be removed, because it was already a seven foot wide sidewalk 
and the pathway shown on Ustick be removed and the sidewalk here be widened to ten 
feet and, then, eventually, connect on here to the west at the Ten Mile trail.  One other 
comment we mentioned is that if you look at the way these vertically integrated structures 
are shown here, Building H and Building G, each one of these structures has a walkway 
going out to the pathway.  So, there is 12 there.  Parks commented that they had concerns 
with that many different little walkways connecting out of their pathways and one of staff's 
conditions is that all of those be -- that there would be no more than one pathway per 
building.  Finally, in regard to elevations, the building elevations show townhouses 
comprised of materials consisting of rock, cement board, Hardie board, lap siding, pitched 
roofs, exposed timber frame and windows, including on the garage doors.  We do believe 
that they demonstrate significant fenestration and it's high quality, but, again, if you look 
at the buildings on the bottom, these are the buildings that are fronting along Ustick and 
Linder and staff did not believe these look like vertically integrated structures, these look 
like townhouses.  Our concern, again, was that what we would end up with would be a 
townhouse project with a drive-through facility.  We have received one letter from Mike 
and Sandy Archibald.  Their concern was, again, about the traffic calming along West 
Crosswinds and with that I would stand for any questions or comments.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank you, Alan.  At this time would the applicant like to come forward?  
Good evening.  Please state your name and address for the record and the floor is yours.   
 
Amar:  Good evening, Mr. President, Commissioners.  My name is Kevin Amar.  My 
address is 1580 West Cayuse Creek Drive in Meridian.  I'm here tonight to present 

11Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 8 of 88 

 

Pavilion at Windsong.  Alan did a good job at giving some of the history on this project as 
far as -- since we have been working with him on it, but just to give a little more history 
that goes back a long way, I first started working in this area trying to purchase Windsong 
-- I think it was in 2002 from the Stubblefields and so we have got a lot of history in this 
area.  I grew up just down the street from here, you know, five decades ago when we 
moved to the area from a really small town in Idaho to a little town in Meridian.  Meridian 
has grown and changed.  There has been a wide variety of change in this area and I'm 
very familiar with this property.  So, as we finally acquired the Windsong project in 2019, 
right at the beginning of COVID, this is another piece of property that we looked at and 
identified and wanted to continue building that out, so we could make a project and a 
whole area integrate better with our vision for the neighborhood.  What we did along with 
that also is as we worked with the neighbors and we built the homes in Windsong, they 
knew that we had acquired this property on the corner and we informed them at that time 
also what our plans were to do with this property and so we didn't want to come in and 
surprise any of our neighbors that we -- obviously we just built the home with and we 
wanted to make sure that this project built out in a form that we thought was beneficial 
and would be cohesive for the neighborhood.  As we purchased the project and we 
purchased this in 2019 also, this property, we knew we could come in and do some things 
that were already an allowed use within the community, the C-C zone.  It's zoned C-C.  
We looked at some of the different options that were available to us.  We looked at the 
vertically integrated option that is an allowed use within the C-C zone, so as we place that 
there that's why we are not asking for a rezone on the -- the portion that has the vertically 
integrated or the retail space, but we did want to also provide additional options for home 
ownership and that's why we wanted to include the townhouse -- the townhouse project 
and portion.  Again, we could -- we could go and do all this property as a vertically 
integrated property, but we didn't feel like that would be the best use of the property, but 
I also didn't feel like it would be the best representation of what is in the neighborhood.  
There are many neighbors, obviously, that own their homes in that -- in that area.  It's 
near schools.  It's near parks.  We will be -- we will be adding the pathway to connect that 
pathway.  I know parks and rec, we have worked with them on other properties in Linder.  
They are trying to get that pathway integration all up and down Linder and, then, down 
Ustick and -- and we see this as a continuation of that.  There are a few things that the 
project itself -- again, we could increase density by simply doing more vertically integrated 
product that is an allowed use in the zone.  We wanted to create more of an open space 
feel on an area -- that has limited access currently to Linder and Ustick.  There are two 
access points currently on the property.  One is on Linder.  One is on Ustick.  However, 
neither one of those would be allowed by ACHD standards for a subdivision development.  
For commercial.  For retail.  For multi-family.  Both of them are too close to the intersection 
of Linder and Ustick.  So, we have worked with ACHD.  We are bringing Crosswinds out 
and connecting that to Linder Road and eliminating the other two access points currently.  
In our -- we have had a number of neighborhood meetings with the existing neighbors in 
Windsong.  One of their concerns was traffic and access.  We had told them we would try 
to get a three-way stop at Crosswinds and near the entrance of their neighborhood.  That 
is something that ACHD would not allow.  However, we were able to work with ACHD and 
get a bulb out at that location to provide some traffic calming and that was approved by 
ACHD.  So, although we could not get a three-way stop there, we feel like a compromise 

12Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 9 of 88 

 

with ACHD was reached and that we could at least provide additional traffic calming at 
that intersection and help the neighbors with some of their concerns with traffic.  As we      
-- as we speak to some of the other questions and ideas of what came about with this 
neighborhood and I will address why we feel like the location of the vertically integrated 
product is best where we have located it and I will also speak to how we will ensure that 
that is a vertically integrated unit in the -- in the project itself.  We centered the park in the 
middle as a gathering place for this neighborhood.  So, it's called Pavilion at Windsong 
because that area will have a gathering area, a pavilion in it.  People can go gather and 
recreate.  It's a MEW, so many of the homes will open right onto the park-like setting.  We 
have done this in other locations and it's been very well received by those people that live 
there.  The kids can go outside and play and enjoy that area right -- it's -- their front yard 
is huge.  We could -- we have put -- there is 17 percent of qualified open space within the 
project, but we also foresee the retail space being a corner coffee shop and we are 
currently talking to a few people.  It's not a drive-through specific coffee shop, although 
there is a drive-through there.  We foresee also a -- and we will build it, so I guess we get 
a dictate what it's going to be -- a place you can go in and sit down and grab a -- you 
know, a -- maybe it's a breakfast sandwich or a place to go and just gather with your 
neighbors in that area.  So, it becomes much more of a community centered retail space, 
rather than just a -- nothing against Dutch Brothers or the Starbucks drive-throughs, but 
that's not what we want or we want to put there.  This needs to be more of a community 
type of center.  With respect to the vertically integrated units -- and we have spoken with 
-- we have had a couple of application meetings with staff.  We understand the need for 
the vertically integrated units.  In some of those pre-application meetings with staff they 
were -- staff members were attending that from their home office, which looks like a 
bedroom, which I'm sure a lot of us have home offices that are a bedroom.  As we see 
what clients are wanting, as what people are moving into the area need, it has changed 
drastically over the last few years.  There was a time years ago that people really didn't 
want a home office, because everybody went to the office.  They drove down the road 
and they went to the office.  COVID changed all that and so many people are really looking 
for a place to be able to get away from the home, but still have their office and so we have 
built these projects -- we have built buildings like this in Boise and we incorporated it in a 
fashion that it wasn't going to detract from the neighborhood setting in that area.  If you 
go and look at the type of architecture that is built in -- in and around this area, this is very 
cohesive with that type of architecture.  So, as we designed the live-work units -- and if 
we could go to -- I don't know which slide it is, but I can -- oh, very good.  Thank you.  So, 
if we look at these live-work units, if you look on the bottom floor -- and I don't know here 
if -- well, here we go.  So, there is a door on the right up to the stairs.  That unit is the 
main house entrance for the door and so -- or for -- that is the main door for the house.  
That door will go directly upstairs into the second floor, which is the main living area and 
the third floor, which are the bedrooms.  What we have also incorporated is a -- a main 
front floor entrance and that area goes directly into the office and so it works as that 
vertically integrated unit, because people don't -- if you have clients or customers coming 
over to meet with you, they don't have to go into your house, walk through your house 
and get into an office in your back bedroom.  They can walk directly into your office and 
it's completely separate from your living space.  What we also find with clients and what 
they want is they want that separation, because although their family may be upstairs and 

13Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 10 of 88 

 

the kids are playing or wife is working or they are living in their home otherwise, they can 
go down, shut that door and be totally independent in their workspace from the area in a 
quiet area.  We understand that that needs to be built out to a commercial space at that 
time.  We are fully in agreement with that, because we -- we feel like this is a high demand 
type product and we know that the other units that we have built like this in Boise, they -- 
they are used for a vertically integrated space and so although they don't visually look 
separated, that was by design.  We wanted it to look like a -- like the area and what is 
built in that area and -- but we feel like with the addition of that door and that other 
entryway, the covered entryway, it will provide an area that people can come and go 
without getting into the home.  So, I don't know if we didn't explain that to staff well enough, 
but that's -- that is what that -- that's why there is two doors on the main level.  It's not a 
patio door, there is a step door that you go up to the main house entrance and, then, as 
those sidewalks come out those go to the office entrance, the commercial type entrance 
of the property.  We do know that parks has a concern about the number of sidewalks 
entering to the pathways.  We can adjust those.  We will work with parks on how many 
they will allow.  I would like two, just so there is one at either end of the building, but we 
will work with the Parks Department on -- on what will be allowed in that area.  With 
respect to the pathway, we will also adjust the pathway on the Ustick side to just include 
a single pathway, so we are not being redundant with a pathway, as well as a -- as a 
sidewalk.  So, if we look through the balance of the project there was -- and I don't know 
how many of you are familiar with the area, but this is a rapidly growing area.  This was 
vacant for a long time, especially with Windsong being vacant.  It was developed in 2004 
and, finally, built out last year and no homes were built in there.  So, with the high schools, 
the middle schools, we have Settlers Landing just down this -- sorry.  Settlers Park just 
down the street.  This whole corner is developing and growing and changing.  There is all 
the addition of the commercial and Orchard Park and the public library just within a couple 
miles of here.  This is -- this is an exciting time for this area and it's finally a in-fill piece 
that is going to be developed for something other than, you know, storage units or 
apartments or office buildings and mostly the office buildings -- we do build office buildings 
also.  The limited access makes it very difficult to have an office building type product 
here because of our access off of Linder and off of Ustick.  I want to make sure I had all 
the questions answered from Alan.  On the -- on the roadways we will make sure all the 
private roads are 24 feet wide.  It looks like we missed one area that's 23 feet.  But there 
is room to revise that we have discussed the location of the vertically integrated area.  
Those buildings are three stories tall.  One other thing I wanted to bring up is we wanted 
those larger three-story buildings to be big enough that you can still have a family or 
people that live there.  They are three-bedroom units, which -- with an office space in the 
bottom, requires a three-story type building.  We wanted to keep that three-story -- the 
larger taller buildings away from the existing neighborhood and out on the corner where 
you would traditionally see a commercial type product or a commercial type building and, 
then, we used all the Linder and Ustick frontage, along with the vertically integrated and 
the retail space will -- will follow that commercial frontage, minimizing the impact from the 
-- from the neighbors.  The landscape tree requirements -- we will meet the landscape --  
landscape tree requirements.  Pathway versus sidewalk.  I can't read my notes.  So, I 
appreciate your -- your time.  Again, this is a -- this is an exciting project for us.  I think by 
the testament of the neighbors not being here it speaks to our work with the neighborhood 

14Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 11 of 88 

 

and what we have told them and what we directed them that would be here from the 
beginning.  We would still like a three-way stop at that intersection.  I guess that's up to 
you and ACHD and not up to me and what I get.  We -- Bill earlier told me that everybody 
has opinions and not everybody's right.  So, I -- I took some wisdom from Bill and I 
understand that we can all have opinions, but we don't get to make the rules.  So, we 
appreciate your time this evening and we -- I would stand for any question.   
 
Seal:  Thank you.  Are there any questions for the applicant or staff?  Okay.  Thank you.   
 
Amar:  Thank you very much.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  At this time we will take public testimony.  Madam Clerk, has anybody signed 
up?   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Chair, we do have people signed in.  Before we get started on that, I did 
want to note for the record Commissioner Grace joined us at 6:15.  He's having a couple 
technical difficulties, so he's going to try to hang in there, but I did want it to be on the 
record that he is present --   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank you.   
 
Weatherly:  -- online.  The first person I have signed up is Kristen Schiller.  Kristen, you 
should be able to talk. 
 
Schiller:  Can you hear me?   
 
Seal:  Yes, we can.  Go ahead.  Please state your name and address for the record.   
 
Schiller:  Sure.  Kristen Schiller.  3441 North Tradewind Avenue, Meridian.  I'm a current 
resident of the Windsong Subdivision and I would like to tell you how this proposed 
Pavilion at Windsong is going to negatively impact the existing community.  First, the 
builder is planning on jamming in 33 townhomes, 12 residential units and one commercial 
lot on, truthfully, a very small piece of land.  In order to get all these buildings jammed in 
there the builder is planning to put in far narrower streets than normally allowed for a 
neighborhood.  So, I ask you where are all the guests and patrons of the commercial lot 
and the live-work unit supposed to park, since they, obviously, will not be able to park on 
narrow streets without blocking traffic.  I will tell you they are going to park in the 
residential streets of the existing Windsong community on the streets where our children 
play every single day.  We are a small subdivision with no current outlet to a main road 
and our streets are quiet and not heavily trafficked, so we allow our children to play out 
front.  Second, the builder has mentioned that the commercial lot will likely be made into 
a drive-through coffee shop.  Again, where are you planning on all the cars that traffic a 
drive through supposed to line up?  There is no space for them to line up within the 
Pavilion neighborhood, so is the plan to have them back up on Linder Road or will they 
simply back up into the Windsong Subdivision?  You do realize that this particular 
intersection at Linder and Ustick is already a very busy intersection and directly across 

15Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 12 of 88 

 

the street on the northeast corner of the intersection they are currently building tens of 
thousands of square feet of office space, which will only drive even more traffic through 
the area.  Third, the builder is only given this Pavilion with 46 proposed buildings, a single 
outlet onto a main road on Linder, which is extremely close to the intersection of Linder 
and Ustick.  So, people leaving the Pavilion will only have the option of turning right and 
heading south down Linder Road, they won't have the time or the space to get over to the 
left-hand turning lane on Linder to have the option of turning left on Ustick or making a U-
turn to head north on Linder.  So, where are these folks going to go if they need to head 
in any other direction but south on Linder?  They are going to drive through the current 
Windsong community to exit out of the subdivision to the north.  The northern outlet onto 
Linder Road also happens to be a highly dangerous crossing with no light at the 
intersection.  Directly across the street is the Sawtooth Middle School, which causes 
major traffic twice a day during school pick-ups and drop-offs.  I'm asking this committee 
to not allow the builder to create the Pavilion which will cause a huge traffic issue on the 
streets of Linder Road and within the current Windsong community.  At the very least I 
beg you not to allow the continuation of Crosswind Street from the Pavilion into the 
Windsong community.  Please leave us closed off from Linder Road and leave that single 
outlet onto Linder Road to the residents of the Pavilion and if the residents of the Pavilion 
need an additional way in and out of their community, then, give them one on Ustick Road, 
since we don't seem to care how close to an intersection we are putting in our outlet 
roads.  Thank you.   
 
Seal:  Thank you.   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Chair, next is Melinda Akhbari.  
 
Akhbari:  Hi. 
 
Seal:  Melinda, go ahead and state your name and address for the record, please.   
 
Akhbari:  Yeah.  It's Melinda Akhbari.  3441 North Tradewinds Avenue, Meridian.  I have 
basically the same concerns that she has, especially with the coffee shop and especially 
with the street going through -- Crosswinds going through into the community and also, 
too, once that other piece of property north of that is bought and turned into houses, then, 
that's going to -- or condos.  That's going to create an even bigger problem, because 
everybody's going to use the Tradewinds as a -- basically it's going to be a u-shape, a 
drive-through, and also, too, like they need to -- you know, if it's a coffee shop, then, the 
trucks are going to drive down Tradewinds and, then, go out the other exit.  So, I just think 
that's a real problem.  These houses were very expensive and I think you need to take 
more consideration of the people that purchased these houses and how it's going to affect 
them, so -- and, then, also, too, I'm concerned about the -- the fact that there is no nice 
restaurants in the area.  There is no -- there is no shopping and also, too, the streets are 
just already overloaded with cars and a lot of these streets can't be widened to 
accommodate anymore cars.  It seems like it's just all about the houses and no 
consideration to how people actually live and what they need, especially when you go 
onto McMillan, that can't be widened, and from Walmart all the way out it's just -- there is 

16Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 13 of 88 

 

nothing.  There is absolutely nothing but house after house after house and I just am 
concerned after all the farms are built -- sold and built up, that it's just going to end up 
being a few strip malls here and there, but it's going to be -- overall the whole community 
is going to be like a concrete jungle in the end and I just thought that this was a much 
nicer community.  I expected it to stay -- to be a nicer community.  I just feel like the 
houses are -- should be secondary to the -- to the roads being widened first if you are 
going to allow houses and I feel like you should -- if you are going to allow houses you 
shouldn't let them all be so crammed together.  Give it a little bit more space.  Beautify 
the area more.  Thank you.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank you very much.   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Chair, next is Kevin Amar.   
 
Seal:  Kevin, go ahead.  Oh.   
 
Amar:  I know I'm going to talk about, but I will do it at rebuttal.   
 
Seal:  That's -- that's what we will have.  We will call you back up when we are all done 
with public testimony.  Thank you.   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Chair, that's the only -- or the last of who has signed in.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  If anybody in Chambers would like to come up.  Please raise your hand or 
if you are online please hit the raise your hand button and we will get you up here.  Okay.  
Oh.  Do we have somebody?  No.  Okay.  Would the applicant like to come forward.   
 
Amar:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman, Commissioners.  I -- a couple of things that I heard from 
some of the -- the neighbors that were there and they are specifically related to traffic and 
commercial.  With respect to Crosswinds, again, that's a -- that's a requirement and has 
been a requirement for connection.  That's not something that we want to do.  That will 
connect whether -- no matter what this project is developed as.  I think the addition of the 
bulb out will definitely help and deter some of the traffic through there.  Our access point 
onto Crosswinds is an unrestricted access, meaning it's not a right-in, right-out.  We can 
turn left, we can turn right and people can get there in both directions.  It is far enough 
away from the stoplight that it will also allow people to have time to turn left because of 
that stoplight and stop control intersection.  With respect to the coffee shop and the 
stacking of that coffee shop, we have designed that specifically so the stacking does have 
room around the coffee shop.  The drive-through would be on the side.  But people can 
stack and park to get -- to go through the drive-through without being on Crosswinds.  
They are certainly not going to get onto Linder Road.  It's at the entrance in that main 
area of a less traffic area for the residents of the Pavilion of Windsong and so that was 
designed with thought and care to make sure that we would have less stacking for that 
commercial type building.  We, obviously, don't want people stacking out onto Linder 
Road.  With respect to parking, each of these units meet the required parking, not only 
the garage parking for the property itself and the -- and the homes that we will be building 

17Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 14 of 88 

 

in there, all of them are a minimum of a two-car garage or all of them are a two-car garage.  
But the majority of them, other than just the two bedroom units, also have room to park 
two additional guests in front of -- on the driveway of that townhouse.  In addition to that, 
we provided an additional 21 guest parking spaces.  Most of those are centered around 
the vertically integrated units, because we know they are going to -- they are going to be 
the ones that need people to come over and meet with them at their office, unless they 
are meeting virtually.  In addition to the 21 spaces there is another 17 spaces that are 
designated just for the commercial property.  So, we looked at the parking.  We know the 
parking is going to be a question and a concern.  We don't want it to be a problem for the 
neighbors that are living in Pavilion of Windsong and we feel like we have addressed 
those with this -- with this project.  One of the questions that came up has to do with 
shopping and restaurants and amenities in the area.  Again, we have Settlers Park that's 
not far from here, but a lot of the other commercial type amenities that are growing very 
rapidly are at the corner of Linder and Chinden.  We have got -- here we have a -- just 
spreading rumors, but there is Olive Garden going in.  That's there.  There is the tavern.  
There is a number of eateries in that area that aren't just fast food type eateries and it's 
developing in a fashion that that major intersection should develop.  We have got Costco 
not far from here.  Walmart not far from here.  So, there is shopping and other retail type 
components that are -- that are near this project.  In addition, it's -- this is an in-fill type 
property.  If we -- our sole goal was just to maximize the number of units on a property 
we would -- we would build those vertically integrated units that we could actually 
maximize the number of units on the property.  That is in the current development 
agreement and as allowed within the current zoning.  We feel like this will be more 
cohesive with the area.  We did make a number of changes as requested by staff, just to 
make sure that we meet what their vision is for the property also and I think the only 
question has to do with where that vertically integrated product should be and my opinion 
is -- you are right.  Bill's opinion is something else.  But -- but I think overall we have 
worked really hard with staff to make sure that this project will develop out in a way that 
is good for the community and good for the neighborhood.  I would ask for your 
recommendation for approval this evening and I would stand for any questions.   
 
Seal:  Anybody have questions here they would like to field before we close the public 
hearing process?   
 
Lorcher:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Lorcher, go ahead.   
 
Lorcher:  You mentioned that you built a couple of these same concepts in Boise.  Was it 
the same -- about acre size, about three and a half acres?   
 
Amar:  No.  They -- they -- Mr. President, Commissioner Lorcher, Boise asked for more 
density.  So, we built 27 units on 1.2 acres on that project.   
 
Lorcher:  And -- and you said that that was kind of like the vertically integrated work living?  
How long ago did you build it?   

18Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 15 of 88 

 

Amar:  We completed that last year.   
 
Lorcher:  And what's your occupancy rate for the businesses?   
 
Amar:  Occupant -- they are a hundred percent.   
 
Lorcher:  Okay.  Thank you.   
 
Grove:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Grove, go ahead.   
 
Grove:  With the sidewalk and landscaping on the east side of the project, would you be 
open to helping widen that sidewalk from the seven foot sidewalk to a ten foot sidewalk 
along the Linder side of the project to be able to tie in with the pathway that is to the north 
of this property?   
 
Amar:  Mr. President, Commissioner Grove, yes, we would and I believe -- and Bill maybe 
help me.  We had initially talked about ten feet, but -- but, then, parks asked to be reduced 
down to seven feet.  So, I think what we were trying to do is make sure this project aligns 
with the requests of parks and rec.   
 
Grove:  I think my question here would be if -- if it was ten feet, but not having the direct 
access to the pathway, so that those -- I can't count, but six -- instead of having those six 
go in directly, but having those six go in as one pathway, but leaving the ten foot versus 
the seven foot.  Does that -- 
 
Amar:  Yes.   
 
Grove:  Does that make sense?   
 
Amar:  Yes.  I believe so.   
 
Grove:  Tying -- tying those six together before they get to the --  
 
Amar:  Yeah.  We are in agreement with that.  We will tie those six together.  With the two 
locations, one at either end, but, again, it will be a -- maybe a conversation with parks, 
unless the Commission has a recommendation for it, then, we will follow that 
recommendation.   
 
Seal:  And I will weigh in on that, too.  I -- I ride these paths a lot, so -- especially the one 
there off Ustick.  I have no issues with the redundant ten foot path personally.  So, we 
use it that way right now.  So, if parks and rec is looking for any feedback on that, that's 
my feedback on it is that it's -- well -- and to add to that, the -- the parcel that we 
recommended approval on that is on the southeast corner, they also did a ten foot 
pathway that is, you know, somewhat redundant in that, but that's the reasoning behind 

19Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 16 of 88 

 

it, is so that there is ample bike riding space -- lanes available for people to get around, 
because there is several parks that are in the area and there is some really nice pathways 
that are just north of this as well.  So, question that I had on this specifically is how large 
exactly is the office space?   
 
Amar:  The office space is -- it's about 550 square feet on the main floor.   
 
Seal:  Okay.   
 
Amar:  That includes a restroom area as well.   
 
Seal:  And, then, it has direct access into the house; correct?   
 
Amar:  It does through a -- there is a door that separates it.  But, yes, it does have direct 
access.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  And it's probably mentioned in here, but are these for sale or for rent 
product?  
 
Amar:  They are so the vertically integrated -- we would have to put a condo in just based 
on the zoning.  So, we may come back and do that.  The other ones are a for sale product 
and that's why we are asking for the rezone, so we can have a townhouse -- individual lot 
for sale units.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  So, for the vertically integrated those are currently for rent, but you are 
looking at making them for sale?   
 
Amar:  Correct.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Anybody else?  Mr. Yearsley?  No?  All right.  Is Commissioner Grace still 
online?  I was going to say if you have anything to add let us know.   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Chair, unfortunately, Mr. Grace had to leave the meeting at 6:00 -- excuse 
me -- 6:45.   
 
Seal:  Okay.   
 
Weatherly:  He couldn't establish a secure connection.   
 
Seal:  Understood.  Thank you.  Okay.  If nobody else has any questions, thanks for your 
time.   
 
Amar:  Thank you.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Can I get a motion to close the public hearing for Item No. H-2021-0102 
with Pavilion at Windsong?   

20Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 17 of 88 

 

Grove:  So moved.   
 
Wheeler:  Second.   
 
Seal:  It's been moved and seconded to close the public hearing for Item No. H-2021-
0102.  All in favor say aye.  Any opposed?  Motion carries.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
Grove:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Grove, go ahead.   
 
Grove:  I will just jump in with a few quick thoughts.  I -- I disagree with the 
recommendation to move the vertically integrated to the north side, simply because I -- I 
believe just looking at the -- the height and the -- the use, I would much rather see it where 
the applicant has -- has it situated with on the -- within the site.  I think some small 
revisions to the pathway sidewalk pieces could easily be done to meet both the applicant's 
desire and the park's recommendations.  The traffic calming looks about as good as we 
are going to be able to get with ACHD and, you know, the -- the public testimony tonight 
with the access, essentially, to Linder, there -- I mean that's always -- that's a master 
street map plan for streets to connect, so that -- as soon as a project goes in, no matter 
what the project is, it's going to connect and there is going to be that access.  That's in 
the ACHD master street map.  So, there is nothing that we could do if -- whenever 
something does come in for that.  I don't see anything major with this.  I think the 
delineation between commercial and residential would be nice, but considering how these 
are being designed to be more office -- home office type use versus a true commercial 
space, I am not -- I don't have super strong opinions with the strong delineation from 
outside appearance sake.   
 
Seal:  Thank you.   Comments from anybody else?   
 
Lorcher:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Lorcher, go ahead.   
 
Lorcher:  I think it's always hard to do in-fill as the -- as the gentleman said and when 
people live in an area you don't know what you are going to get.  Like it would be nice to 
see less density in that area, but if the picture matches what's going to be there I think -- 
I like the fact that the items are going to be for sale and not for rent.  So, I think people 
will take better care of their properties and living community that will enhance the 
subdivision that's right there.   
 
Seal:  I will jump -- jump in on it.  I already said my piece about the pathway.  Yeah.  I 
mean the density is a little concerning on this.  I mean for the folks that testified tonight 
as far as the roads and everything.  Unfortunately, most folks get to this hearing and they 

21Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 18 of 88 

 

think the roads are controlled by the city.  They are not.  They belong to ACHD.  They will 
let us know whether or not they can handle it and we generally have to live with that, so     
-- whether we agree with it or not in some -- in some instances.  So, unfortunately, that's 
where it's at.  Like Commissioner -- Commissioner Grove has said is they -- that's in their 
plan and this was the plan for this lot, so it doesn't really matter what goes in here, that 
connection will -- will be made.  So the traffic calming that's in there is all that the applicant 
could get.  I mean they tried for a three-way stop.  ACHD wouldn't allow it, so their hands 
are tied as well.  It's unfortunate, but it is what it is.  On the project itself, I do like -- the 
one thing I don't like about it is the elimination of commercial space.  I will just say that 
first and foremost, that some commercial space goes away as a result of this.  
Considering that it's a hard corner and there is limited access, I understand why that is.  I 
mean it's pretty hard to find businesses that are going to want to go in there with that 
really limited -- the really limited ability to -- to, you know, get traffic in and out of there.  
So, the vertically integrated generally I'm a pretty big fan of that.  When it's connected to 
the inside of the house I'm less of a fan.  I have got to say -- I mean we already had an 
applicant come through where we went back and forth several times on that and it ended 
up to where they closed that off from the rest of the house to me.  That's -- that is vertically 
integrated.  Your business is your business.  Your home is your home.  Period.  End of 
story.  So, when you connect it to the rest of the house, even if it's commercially viable, 
there is nothing to prevent somebody from turning that into a bedroom.  Absolutely 
nothing.  Or renting it out, you know, as a matter of purpose.  So, I have concerns about 
that, to be perfectly honest, so -- I mean there is some vertically integrated structures that 
are in Meridian that I think are -- are very nice.  I mean when you look at the bottom level 
of them it has a business name hanging over the door, it's obviously a professional 
building, there is, obviously, people living upstairs in it, but at the same time it's a business 
at the -- on the ground floor, so -- you know, I understand that there is a lot of people that 
are probably maybe going into the retirement side of their career, maybe an attorney, 
maybe a physician, you know, something along those lines that wants just a small space 
in order to live out the rest of their days, get to retirement, you know, move on type of 
thing or there is somebody out there that's trying to make their side hustle their hustle, 
their job, and that's, you know, obviously, where some of these come into play.  So, I 
would like to see it, you know, closed off.  I would like to see it more presented as a 
commercial space, instead of a residential space, especially the way that the -- it's facing 
the two major roads.  To me that needs to look like commercial property.  So, we are 
giving up some commercial property to have this, you know, possibly go in there.  So, to 
me it needs to look more commercial and, then, have people live in it, instead of the other 
way around.  I would also like to see that -- those be for sale personally.  So, again, I think 
if they are rented -- you know, if you are trying to turn your side hustle into your job and it 
doesn't work out, well, then, you are just renting some place and there is no reason to 
have that as a business, so -- trying to satisfy everything with this is pretty tough, so the 
-- basically, the code for live-work in Meridian is a little vague and allows for a lot of latitude 
for what can be presented as live-work.  So, we are just trying to make sure that it doesn't 
just end up being live for a space we are already giving up commercial space in.  Sorry, 
that was very long.  Anybody else?   
 
Grove:  Mr. Chair, can I get like two seconds real quick?   

22Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 19 of 88 

 

Seal:  Two seconds, Commissioner Grove.   
 
Grove:  I will say the loss of commercial, if it means that we are losing storage units on a 
hard corner, I am happy about that, so --  
 
Seal:  I -- I will concur with the.  Commissioner Yearsley, go ahead.   
 
Yearsley:  I -- I agree.  I -- it just feels like we are just trying to cram something in there 
just to get a lot of homes in there.  The only positive part in my opinion is it's for sale 
instead of for rent.  That's mine.  I -- I am not a big fan of private roads.  You are putting 
a huge expense on the homeowners association down the road to have to maintain that 
road.  I live in a subdivision that we have several private roads and it is a fairly significant 
expense to maintain those roads, you know, ten, 15 years down the road.  So, I think they 
are sacrificing roads, access, parking for more space and -- and -- and I just -- I struggle 
with that, so --  
 
Seal:  Okay.  Commissioner Wheeler, go ahead.   
 
Wheeler:  Yes.  My -- my bigger concern is I'm trying to picture here on this corner where 
the commercial part is -- is set apart, I'm -- I'm imagining coming in, going around, looping 
back out and around and to me it looks like there is just a -- that's just going to be a traffic 
issue moving forward, figure-eighting into a residential multi-family complex here.  If there 
was a way to put that on the corner on the opposite end, that would make a lot of sense, 
because, then, you got a right-in or even a left end, but, then, you got a right turn out and 
you don't have to cross lanes of traffic to get into the commercial spot there where it's 
abundant next to the residential development on it.  The other thought I had is I do like 
the idea of the live-work space getting closer to that corner than not.  But I know that you 
spent a lot of time, you're -- you're problem solving on this corner here and -- and trying 
to figure out a way to make this work here and also be a benefit to the community on it 
and I'm a fan of these live-work places.  I like these kind of unique solutions a lot, because 
it is where things are going and it is where things are.  It's just going to get more and more 
like that.  But that -- that -- that -- that corner there is -- the commercial side is what's 
concerning to me is how that might move forward on something.  So, with that being said, 
I can see the applicant would like to make some comments on this.  Is there a way to 
open back up public testimony and have some comments back on that?  Would he be 
willing to work with staff on that kind of thing to have those kind of questions?   
 
Seal:  We can go that direction, but that would -- I mean I would want to do that for a 
continuance.   
 
Wheeler:  Okay.   
 
Seal:  If that's where you are heading with it.  Sure.   
 
Wheeler:  Okay.   
 

23Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 20 of 88 

 

Seal:  If that's not where we are heading with it --  
 
Wheeler:  Okay.   
 
Seal:  -- I think we live with what we got.   
 
Wheeler:  Okay.  We will -- so we can bring him up here and ask him if you would be 
willing for a continuance to rework on that, is that what you are saying, chairman?   
 
Grove:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Grove.   
 
Grove:  So, it depends on what -- what I think we would be asking or telling, because we 
can make recommendations that -- because this does go to Council, so those 
recommendations could be addressed at Council level as well.   
 
Seal:  Okay.   
 
Grover:  Depending on -- depending on what direction you are thinking.   
 
Seal:  Yeah.  And real quick, Bill, the -- I mean the CUP portion of this really speaks to 
the vertically integrated piece of it or is that more on the commercial property piece?   
 
Parsons:  Mr. Chair and Members of the Commission, it speaks to the townhome piece.   
 
Seal:  It is the townhome --  
 
Parsons:  The CU --  
 
Seal:  Okay.   
 
Parsons:  Yes.  Vertically integrated is principally permitted in the C-C zone.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank you.  I'm amenable to bringing them back up and talking about a 
continuance, but we -- there has got to be some good -- we have had good feedback I 
think at this point in time, so if we want to move in that direction we can.   
 
Grove:  Mr. Chair?  What -- I guess, Commissioner Wheeler, what is it that in particular    
-- I guess like specifics would we be looking at, because I -- I don't know that I'm on the 
same page, but I would like to understand where you are kind of thinking.   
 
Wheeler:  Yeah.  I understand, Commissioner Grove.  I'm thinking of more or less moving 
that commercial piece over to the north, to see if he could work with that.  Obviously, there 
is a 23-foot access aisle has to be added on, which he's already said that he would do; 

24Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 21 of 88 

 

right?  Enlarging that area toward the drive aisle would be 24 feet and, then, I'm interested 
in putting that live-work space closer to that corner on that side.   
 
Grove:  Mr. Chair?  The -- I understand what you are saying, Mr. Wheeler.  I think, though, 
that would exacerbate the concerns of the neighbors, because if you moved something 
like that up there you will immediately have stacking that would go into the existing 
neighborhoods versus where it's at now.  The stacking with where an entrance to the 
commercial space would be in the subdivision that is being proposed tonight versus out 
into anything that is already there or that would be coming with the stub street to the north.  
So, I think that some of the concerns that you would have might get flipped, but it would 
-- it would actually -- I think we would end up in a worse situation because of it.  That 
would be -- that would be how I would kind of view some of that.  I think also keeping, you 
know, the vertically integrated further away from the traditional neighborhood areas allows 
it to have that three-story without it being an imposing structure close to.  So, that would 
be my other concern with moving it anywhere from where it currently is situated and so I 
-- I don't disagree with some of the points, but I think that we really need to be cognizant 
of what the ripple effect would be if we were to make those suggestions.   
 
Seal:  And I'm -- I'm on the same page as Commissioner Grove on the -- moving the 
commercial piece of it, just because of what they want to do and how they want to provide 
the stacking that will occur in there.  I mean if this is a highly successful -- you know, a lot 
of coffee shops when they first open there is, you know, a billion people want to go there.  
So, I -- I go to coffee shops and I mean I can tell you the one that's over there by Walmart 
that thing stacks clear back out onto the -- onto the road when you go through it 
sometimes, so -- those are the times that I just drive by and I don't bother getting a coffee, 
but other people will wait in lines for a long time, so -- I mean, if anything, to maybe the 
drive-through window can be brought even further around the building, instead of 
presenting right by the -- the street there.  Maybe could bring it over to even to the east 
side -- or, sorry, the west side of the building, just so there is just further -- you know, a 
few more cars can fit around that building, so -- as you can tell we are hoping that the 
coffee shop is wildly successful here, so -- I mean that's -- and I mean, honestly, it always 
amazes me -- it can be 2:00 o'clock in the afternoon and there is a couple coffee shops 
that are, you know, right in the area there that are -- they have lines that -- they have 
stacking, so it is -- it is an issue.  But I do agree that moving that north is going to, number 
one, cause issues with the neighbor to the north.  Number two, I don't think the stacking 
would be any better and I think it would actually be worse and it would come out onto the 
-- the road there personally.   
 
Grove:  Mr. Chair?  Bill, could you pull the -- the colored map up from the concept plan, 
please.   
 
Parsons:  Mr. Chair, Members of the Commission, just a couple -- as Joe's helping me 
out here this evening assisting with that, I just wanted to at least go on the record and 
clarify a couple things.  As Commissioner Grove mentioned, it does get complicated when 
you start shifting the uses around and that's why it was noted in the staff report that if 
those vertically integrated were -- were moved to the north boundary it would require the 

25Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 22 of 88 

 

rezone boundary to change, because vertically integrated uses are a conditional use in 
the R-40 zone, so now we are changing zoning boundaries and we are having a 
completely different site plan, which would facilitate a different continuation, like you said, 
and bring back a plan that you guys could look at.  The other reason why staff was 
recommending that change or potentially suggesting that change -- I don't think we 
conditioned it, we just suggested that it might be an option, was the fact that the applicant 
wasn't meeting the dimensional standards up in that section of -- per city code.  So, we 
are like, well, it looked like the footprint of the vertically integrated projects were smaller 
than the townhome footprint, so it looked like it could fit there very nicely and still integrate 
with that commercial pad on the corner.  The other reason for that was the fact that that's 
a lesser classified street.  Typically when you have vertically integrated you want to 
activate the streetscape; right?  You want people walking to the business, too, not only 
driving to a business, so when you have local streets you can allow on-street parking, you 
can get buildings closer to the street, you can have patios, you can have all those types 
of things occurring and that's why we had recommended that change as well.  But as far 
as where it goes and how it situates, that's really up to you tonight as part of your review.  
But, certainly, with the applicant addressing staff's concerns, we are fine with the 
townhomes remaining the way they are.  Now, as far as the widening that north-south 
private street in between the two units on the north side, that could be simply addressed 
by just making it 20 feet wide and bollards -- and placing a bollard and calling it emergency 
access.  I mean there is many ways that we could probably address this and work with 
the applicant as we head to City Council and make a lot of these changes, but there is -- 
in my mind I think they want to move forward with what you are seeing tonight.  The other 
thing that I wanted to point out on the record is that the conditional use permit for that 
drive-through will come back to this body, so this is really just -- just -- right now it's all 
conceptual, they are showing you that they are wanting to have a commercial component 
and it may have a drive -- may or may not have a drive-through, we just don't know.  But 
if one is proposed if it's within 300 feet of a residential district, then, I can guarantee it's 
going to be back in front of this body and having another neighborhood meeting, so the 
residents have a say and input in that design.  So, with that I will -- I will let you go ahead 
and continue with your deliberations.  Thank you.   
 
Seal:  Thanks, Bill.   
 
Grove:  With that I won't belabor the point too much, but just looking at where the drive 
aisle is and how it was presented, the -- the pick-up window I believe would be on the 
north side closest to that northeast corner.  That means this -- beginning of the drive-
through would be on that south side of the parking to the commercial, which means that 
if there is stacking it would go south first before it went north and west.  So, just looking 
at how people would pull in, you know, if it was really packed they are going to go down 
and around all the town homes and stack up in around.  I don't think it will get to that point, 
but I'm just -- just kind of pointing out the directional flow of things.  Like I don't see how 
it would back up out of the subdivision entrance off of Crosswind and down west of 
Crosswind.  So, I think the concerns would be slightly overblown in terms of coffee shop 
stacking for the drive-thru.   
 

26Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 23 of 88 

 

Seal:  Other comments?  Motion?  I'm open to whatever.  I mean we have -- one of the 
reservations is just there is -- there is a lot in here, so -- I mean I share that concern as 
well.  The -- even though we have the MEWs in the middle and I -- I do like that approach 
to the townhomes in there, I -- I think that's a -- a good design, it's a very smart design.  I 
agree it makes everybody's front yard really big.  It makes for a community setting where, 
you know -- especially, if you have kids and things like that, everybody can be out there.  
There is eyes on everybody.  I personally like that.  That said, it would be nice if there 
were a few less in there.  You know, I especially see where the vertically integrated is, 
you know, to provide a little bit more parking for that if needed.  I do like that the parking 
is concentrated around that, but at the same time it would be nice to see more.  So, that 
said, this is -- you know, I will be honest, this is the third time I have seen this piece of 
property come in front of me, so -- personally, in this capacity, so -- it's a tough corner.  
It's -- it's going to be tough to put something in there that's going to make everybody 
happy, so -- not sure -- I'm glad I don't have to make the motion tonight.  How is that?  
Commissioner Wheeler, do you have something to add?   
 
Wheeler:  The only thing I was going to say is I really would like to bring the -- the applicant 
back up here just to have a -- just to see what his plans are for the next move on this.  We 
have done this with other ones in the past -- on other ones.  Just to kind of see what he 
would prefer and also, Commissioner Grove, just to kind of see would he prefer to -- if we 
can -- if we just denied it or would he prefer a continuance on it, too, just to see if you 
could do some rework on it, too, so -- we have done that in the past, but I would like to 
see if the Commission at least would like to be able to do that.   
 
Grove:  Mr. Chair?  Before we do that I just want to kind of clarify what we would be 
wanting to have continued, so that we kind of had some direction with the -- what types 
of questions that we would ask the applicant.  I'm of the mindset of -- of approving and 
moving it forward.  That's where my head space is with this.  But I'm open to opening it 
up and, then, you know, entertaining a continuance.  But I don't know that I have a full 
grasp of still why we would want -- or need to do that.  Like what we would be asking to 
have changed.   
 
Wheeler:  Okay.  Well, I will -- I will back off on that and I will let you make the motion 
then.   
 
Seal:  Well, I mean one thing I would definitely like to see in here, I -- and -- and I don't 
know -- and, Bill, maybe you can help out on this one is the -- I mean the ability to offer 
those vertically integrated as a for sale product instead of a for rent.  Is that something 
that we can condition in this or is that something that's just -- I mean I know that's just -- 
it's a road I would like to see us go down.  I just think that a vertically integrated product, 
if you are -- it's something you are having to purchase, then, it is something you are going 
to definitely want to purchase for a specific reason and you are going to care for it in that 
manner.  So, it's going to -- it's going to be your business with, you know, obviously, the 
ability to live above it, so your cost is down overall.   
 

27Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 24 of 88 

 

Parsons:  Yeah.  Mr. Chair, Members of the Commission, certainly this is a re-zone and 
a new development agreement.  In the past I have worked on projects where we have 
required people to short plat their buildings, so that they, essentially, turn them into 
condos and have that done prior to getting occupancy or even any building permit.  Well, 
they have to have a building permit in order to construct the building, so that's one of the 
criterias to condo -- condominiumize the building is you have to have a valid building 
permit.  So, it's something that you can add as -- or a recommended DA provision and, 
then, the applicant can take that up with Council if they don't agree with it.  Or they may 
agree with it and sign the DA and do it, so -- again, if you want to have that conversation 
with the applicant, you are more than happy to open up the public hearing.  But, again, 
there is an avenue to do that.   
 
Lorcher:  Mr. Chair, didn't the applicant say they were for sale?  They weren't going to be 
for rent?   
 
Seal:  The vertically integrated are for rent.  They are not for sale.  Everything else is for 
sale.  Maybe -- maybe I misunderstood that.  I was going to say, it's -- okay.  At this point 
let's get a motion to bring the applicant back up.   
 
Wheeler:  Yeah.  I would like to make a motion to open back up the public testimony -- 
 
Seal:  Of H-2020 --   
 
Wheeler:  H-2020 -- sorry.  H-2021-0102 
 
Seal:  Do I have a second?  No one else?  Okay.  Then I will look for a motion so we can 
move on.   
 
Grove:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Grove, go ahead.   
 
Grove:  All right.  After considering all staff, applicant, and public testimony, I move to 
recommend approval to the City Council of file number H-2021-0102 as presented in the 
staff report for the hearing date of April 7th, 2022, with the following modifications:  That 
the vertically integrated units be condoed with the recommendation that they not have 
access to the residential from the commercial space.   
 
Seal:  Did you also want to -- there was a recommendation in the -- or I think there was a 
stipulation in the staff report about moving the vertically integrated north.   
 
Grove:  Oh.  Oh.  And to remove the condition to move the vertically integrated from the 
south to the north.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Do you have a second?   
 

28Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 25 of 88 

 

Lorcher:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Lorcher.   
 
Lorcher:  Can I get clarification, Commissioner Grove?   
 
Grove:  Yes.   
 
Lorcher:  So, the vertically integrated condoed.  Access to the residential to commercial 
space eliminated.  Is that what you said?   
 
Grove:  The internal access.   
 
Lorcher:  We really didn't talk about that.   
 
Yearsley:  I didn't think they said they weren't -- there was no access between the houses 
and the business.   
 
Seal:  Unless I heard that wrong, too.   
 
Lorcher:  And, then, what was the third one?  Remove what?   
 
Grove:  To remove the condition in the staff report of the recommendation in the staff 
report to move the vertically integrated unit from the south position to the -- to swap spots, 
basically, with the townhomes in the north.   
 
Lorcher:  Oh.  Okay.   
 
Seal:  Do I have a second?   
 
Lorcher:  I have another question.   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Lorcher, go ahead.   
 
Lorcher:  We really didn't talk about the elimination of the internal door with the applicant 
at all.  So, is he being blindsided whether we go through this motion or not?   
 
Yearsley:  The applicant testified that there was no internal access for the -- from the 
residential to the office space.   
 
Lorcher:  It's the opposite.  He said there is.   
 
Yearsley:  Oh.  I thought he said no.   
 
Grove:  Again this is a recommendation to go to Council.   
 

29Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 26 of 88 

 

Yearsley:  No, I -- like I said I -- I misheard.  So, I apologize for that comment.   
 
Lorcher:  All right.  Well, then, I will give a second.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  It's been moved and seconded to approve File No. H-2021-0102, Pavilion 
at Windsong, with the aforementioned recommendations.  All in favor say aye.   
 
Grove:  Aye.   
 
Seal:  All those opposed?   
 
Wheeler:  Nay.   
 
Yearsley:  Nay.   
 
Lorcher:  I didn't vote.   
 
Seal:  Madam Clerk, can we -- can we -- can we get a roll call on that?   
 
Roll call:  Wheeler, nay; Grove, yea; Lorcher, nay; Grace, absent; Yearsley, nay. 
 
Weatherly:  Commissioner Seal.   
 
Seal:  Well, the nays have it at that point, so --  
 
MOTION FAILED:  ONE AYE.  THREE NAY. 
 
Seal:  I'm not sure what that means, to be perfectly honest, so -- so, the motion failed, so 
we are in the same spot.   
 
Starman:  Mr. Chairman, I recommend that -- the motion fails.  I would recommend that 
those that voted against the motion that you invite one of those commissioners to offer 
an alternative motion.   
 
Seal:  That's a -- perfect.   
 
Yearsley:  So, I guess for me -- I guess my reason for denial is not associated with most, 
is mine's more concerned about the density and the private roads and I don't know if 
anybody else has that same concern or not or -- or what -- what their thought is or if I 
made that motion if it would be I guess seen as what everyone else is thinking.  I would 
be interested to hear.   
 
Grove:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Grove, go ahead.  Personally I'm -- I'm good with the density.  It's a 
-- at the corner.  It doesn't go into a subdivision in and of itself.  It's relatively isolated.  

30Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 27 of 88 

 

This corner in general on all sides, except for the southwest corner, have some type of 
intensification planned or are in progress.  I -- I see this as a good way forward.  Again, 
it's not storage units, so I'm happy.   
 
Lorcher:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Lorcher, go ahead.   
 
Lorcher:  The reason I said deny is because we really didn't talk about the elimination of 
the residential door to the commercial space, so for me if we remove that portion of it, the 
rest of what Commissioner Grove said was fine.  Only because we didn't -- we really didn't 
even address it, except the fact that it was mentioned.   
 
Wheeler:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Mr. Wheeler.   
 
Wheeler:  I'm -- I'm going to tell you I just have a -- I do have a big problem with where 
that commercial space is at.  I'm just seeing -- you are crossing one exit in, you are taking 
another left, you are getting whatever needs to be done and, then, you are backing back 
out in this figure eight and if -- are we assuming that that's where the drive-through is 
supposed to be at is on that -- is on that corner right there that's vacant?  So, now we 
have a drive-through access that someone is going to either have to go back through 
where the parking area is at to come back up around, back through, and, then, out again 
and I -- I find that not beneficial to the -- to the community that's there and I do think that 
the best part for that would be on that northern portion, whether it has to be on the hard 
corner, which is where most of them are going to want it, which means that your queuing 
line you can actually bring it down to where that westerly access is at and bring them 
around and have them queue out different and, then, have them pick up their drive 
through and, then, come back down and around.  But that -- you know, one, two, three, 
four, five, six, seven, eight turns to get in and out is just -- doesn't seem beneficial and 
that's -- that's going to be a hang up on -- on my side of things.  So, whether that -- that 
commercial -- and the commercial requirement needs to be here in some way, but -- but 
where?  And I don't know if we can just, you know, recommend that there could -- either 
that commercial requirement there or some more live-work space.  Could we go there?  
Maybe that's just a better use on that or some -- some L-O, some light office, something 
along those lines.  But I'm -- I'm just not seeing that as a -- as a really good commercial 
space just for access.   
 
Grove:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Grove.   
 
Grove:  I guess two points for -- to that.  Is -- it will have -- since it will have to come in 
front of us again for a CUP to address the driveway -- drive-through specifically, I'm not 
too concerned with the absolute specifics.  I think in general, yes, we can -- you know, if 

31Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 28 of 88 

 

long term, you know, we don't think we will be able to find a solution, but my -- my guess, 
based on -- on this is -- you know, you are getting ten to 15 vehicles that can queue in in 
the parking lot of that commercial space in and of itself, so -- I mean that's a pretty big 
queue just in general.  But, again, we don't have to get into the specifics of that, since it 
will -- you know, any drive-through like this would have to come back again, because we 
don't have that CUP in front of us tonight.  So, I think if -- you know, we don't think we can 
get to a working spot with it and, then, yes, but if we think that there is ways that it can be 
addressed in a future CUP where it is and, then, I don't think that we need to get caught 
up in the specifics.  But what you are saying would be to move it, which is something that 
would need to be addressed tonight, so just kind of throwing out a couple different thinking 
points I guess.   
 
Yearsley:  And -- and -- Mr. Chair?  And given that I'm against the overall project, but as 
the commercial side I -- I agree, because we don't even know if there is going to be -- 
expecting to be a drive through.  You could actually have a commercial piece there that 
has no drive through and trying to design it now without even knowing what's going to be 
there I think is putting the -- it's -- it's under -- you know, it's hard to -- to -- to make those 
decisions now.  If there is a drive-through it has to come back before us and we can 
address those concerns there and so that -- that would be my -- my recommendation.   
 
Wheeler:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Wheeler, go ahead.   
 
Wheeler:  I just know that that's what's been talked about all night and so I was just 
addressing that concern, since it was public up front.  But if it's something that we can 
punt on, I just want to be able to manage expectations to the developer, because these 
aren't cheap undertakings.   
 
Seal:  Understood.  So, I -- I mean personally I -- the live-work part of it is -- is the part 
that I'm kind of struggling with, so -- and I mean we have -- we are at an impasse here 
with -- we don't want to blindside them with closing off the internal.  Personally I think it 
needs to look more like commercial.  So, to me it just looks like a bunch of townhomes.  I 
think they need to be for sale, not for rent, in order to kind of cement that in.  So, I mean 
to me if we are going to give up a lot of commercial space in order to provide for this to 
come in, I think that it needs to have more done in order to make sure that that is a 
commercially viable space, it's something that looks like commercial property, it is street 
front property, so I think it should have that look and appeal.  I one hundred percent agree 
with that in the staff report, that it's -- it's a little lackluster in that.  So, I don't agree with 
having, you know, work-live that, you know, is connected.  So, again, with this, especially 
if it's a for rent product, I mean we can provision it to where it's not going to be a for rent 
product by having them condo would, but at the same time I just, you know, live-work is      
-- you have a business, not a home office.  You know, live-work is you have a business.  
So, that's kind of where I'm at with it personally.  I -- I'm -- I'm open to having the applicant 
come back up, throw some of that stuff at them, see what we can do, see if they are okay 
with it.  See if they want to continue to come back, possibly redesign, do something 

32Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 29 of 88 

 

different with the corner, do something different with the density.  You know, I mean -- I 
think that there is probably enough on the -- you know, I would rather give them that 
opportunity than just deny it at this point.  But I would like to move it along.  So, if -- if we 
think that bringing the applicant back in is going to help do that, then, I'm all for it and I 
would stand for that motion.   
 
Wheeler:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Wheeler.   
 
Wheeler:  Give it another go.  I would like to open up public testimony for H-2021-0102.   
 
Yearsley:  Second.   
 
Seal:  It's been moved and seconded to reopen the public hearing for Pavilion at 
Windsong, H-2021-0102.  All in favor say aye.  Any opposed?  Okay.  Motion carries.  
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
Seal:  Would the applicant like to come back forward, please.  Go ahead and state your 
name and address for the record one more time.  Thank you.   
 
Amar:  Kevin Amar.  1580 West Cayuse Creek Drive in Meridian.  I'm the developer.  I'm 
here to answer questions.  Let -- let me start just by -- I think addressing some of the 
concerns I have -- I have heard.  If I miss any just start shooting questions my way.  With 
respect to the design, that was purely done in an effort on our side to -- to make a project 
look the way we thought a project should look.  So, we could -- we could easily redesign 
the bottom floor with a different material type of a brick or a rock or a some other facade, 
so it would be a different type of -- obviously a different type of unit down below versus 
the live space up above.  We already have fenestrations and areas that move in and out 
to differentiate that area, but we can use a different material on the bottom floor on the 
commercial space from the upper floor and it would -- that would easily change the look 
of the units.  So, I would be happy with that condition and we can move forward with that.  
With respect to the closing off the access, again, it's -- it's -- as I think of how I -- if I'm 
going to use this space as an office, I would rather be able to go in and out from inside 
my office building than have to go outside my front door to go back inside my office door, 
especially when there is a -- there is already an easy hallway there that is there.  So, 
again, it's -- maybe it's more opinion and I understand the concern of what it's going to be 
used for, but that is why we agreed to staff's condition that that will be built out as a 
commercial space.  Again, these live-work units are an allowed use in this zone.  So, I 
understand we are focusing on that, but we are happy to make concessions and changes 
to -- to get through this with the Commission, because we would like to move forward and 
we would like to get to City Council.  So, I think with those concessions, hopefully, that 
answers some questions.  As far as the actual retail corner, whatever it may be, we 
envision a coffee shop.  We understand it's going to have to come back for its own CUP.  
So, we believe that we have provided enough stacking if and when we get a coffee shop 

33Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 30 of 88 

 

there, but we can illustrate that stacking at that time and show how that works.  We have 
felt -- because we did look at the other corner to the north for that.  It -- it really put more 
traffic right at an intersection that's already we feel like it's going to be a little bit busier 
anyway, just due to the fact that that's where these residents, plus all the residents from 
Windsong -- you know, they are worried about people driving through Windsong.  The 
reality is most likely all the Windsong residents or the majority of them are going to drive 
back out, because it's easy to get out to Linder at that location.  So, having another 
commercial stacking potential problem there we felt like was just not as good of a location 
as we designed these items.  With respect to some of the private streets, private streets 
are pretty normal in a commercial type development.  If it's office buildings, if it's condos, 
if it's -- if it's whatever, you are going to have private streets and we set up the HOA with 
a budget in -- in such a fashion -- I know in my current office building and in our current 
setup we have an escrow account within that to take care of the private streets as -- as 
time goes on.  So, I think that's something that we can set up as we -- as we set up the 
HOA and we -- we already would do that, because we don't want to burden those -- 
whether it's a retail user, an office user, whoever, a homeowner, they need to have the 
funds to spend that money when the time is -- when the time comes to spend the money.  
And, finally, with respect to the sale of those units, there are steps that we have to take 
in order to get to a condo plan.  So, we have to -- as Bill said, we have to have an approved 
project, we have to pull a building permit and, then, we can come back and ask for a 
condo portion of that.  We are happy to put that in that we come back and ask for a condo, 
but we can't ask for that tonight, if I understood that correctly, Bill.  That is just -- it's out 
of order and so we can put it in the development agreement that we will come back prior 
to, you know, certificate of occupancy that we will ask for a condo plat.  That was already 
our intention.  Currently in the existing zoning the way those are under the allowed use 
for the vertically integrated, we just -- we just can't do it that way.  You can't have individual 
for sale vertically integrated units.  I wish we could.  It would make it so much easier.  But 
that zone with the -- again, that's an allowed use within that zone, so we are just trying to 
play within the rules of that zone.  I don't know what other questions you have, but I'm 
happy to answer them.   
 
Seal:  We just had a question on density.  Would you be willing to reduce the density of 
the -- the homes that are in there?   
 
Amar:  We would rather not.  Again, in the allowed zone we can actually increase the 
density.  So, we feel like we have already reduced the density just in the fact that we are 
-- we are proposing what we have proposed, because we could come in with a vertically 
integrated unit on the entire project and get a number of more units and it's -- and it's 
allowed and so it's not a -- it's not a question of if we can do it, it's -- we just don't feel like 
it's the right use for that area.  So, we feel like we have already reduced the density to get 
to the -- get to what we have now with a better -- with a better product.  As we look at 
what we have designed and when we built the homes in Windsong, those homes that we 
were bordering are all two-story homes and we did that intentionally, because we knew 
these -- these homes are going to be two-story homes and we didn't want to run into that 
question of we have got a single-story home and we have a two-story home next to us, 
so we have been planning this for a while.  Again, if we go back and do a vertically 

34Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 31 of 88 

 

integrated product most likely that's going to be a three-story unit and, then, we do run 
into some of those questions.  So, we feel like we have already reduced density, although 
you have not seen that.  But that's based on the allowed use we can increase the density 
from what currently is proposed.   
 
Wheeler:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Wheeler, go ahead.   
 
Wheeler:  Kevin, had a question -- also the staff report talked about moving the -- the 
vertically integrated units over to the north side.  What's your feelings on that?   
 
Amar:  Again, that's -- that's where Bill and I had our conversation of everybody has 
opinions and we find out who is right or wrong.  Again, it was done in an effort to keep the 
traffic off of Crosswind, as people are coming to those offices and those businesses in 
the vertically integrated units, they are not parking right on Crosswind's road.  They are 
coming into the project where we have provided additional parking and they are coming 
into an area where the people that live there already know that that is happening.  As we 
-- as we have CC&Rs, those CC&Rs have to address that not only these are townhomes, 
but there is also offices and vertically integrated units in that project.  So, we can address 
those questions of neighbors that are moving into the Pavilion at Windsong much easier 
than we can tell the neighbors that already live in other areas, well, now you have parking 
on -- on a road that -- that is there and could potentially impact them more.  So, that was 
-- that was largely the reason that we -- between that and the height of those buildings 
why we didn't want to push that further into the neighborhood.  That's our thoughts.   
 
Wheeler:  Thank you.   
 
Seal:  Other questions?  Everybody's got all their questions out?   
 
Amar:  And if you have other questions -- I mean one of the -- I'm back there twitching, 
because there is things that come up.  I'm happy to ask -- answer questions.  It's just hard 
to answer questions after the hearing is closed.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank you very much.   
 
Amar:  Thank you.   
 
Seal:  Can I get a motion to go ahead -- oh, does -- would anybody else like to testify?  
So, please, raise your hand on Zoom or come forward in chambers.  All right.  Seeing 
none, get a motion to close the public hearing for H-2021-0102.   
 
Wheeler:  So moved.   
 
Grove:  Second.   
 

35Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 32 of 88 

 

Seal:  It's been moved and seconded to close the public hearing for Pavilion at Windsong, 
H-2021-0102.  All in favor please say aye.  Any opposed?  Motion carries.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  TWO ABSENT.  
 
Seal:  I will take a motion.  Sorry to be abrupt, but we have got a lot of stuff on tonight.   
 
Wheeler:  I will make a -- I will make a motion then.  After considering all staff, applicant, 
and public testimony, I move to recommend approval for the City Council of file number 
H-2021-0102 as presented in the staff report for the hearing date of March 17th, 2022, 
with the following modifications -- 
 
Grove:  Sorry.  That -- it's printed wrong.  Wrong date.   
 
Wheeler:  I got to remember what month I'm in, man.  Thank you for catching me, man.  
Appreciate it.  April 7th.  Thank you.  All day.  Thank you.  All right.  Let me start that 
motion over.  After considering all staff and applicant and public testimony, I move to 
recommend approval of the City Council file -- to the City Council of file number H-2021-
0102 as presented in the staff report for the hearing date of April 7th, 2022, with the 
following modifications:  That the facade on the live-work space be -- have some 
integrated brick or stone on the bottom level and also that a condo plat be -- be done 
when that time comes on this -- on the work -- on the work-live space --  
 
Seal:  In the DA --  
 
Wheeler:  In the DA agreement.   
 
Seal:  Thank you.  Did you want to have the internal connection and there is also the -- 
we wanted to nix the -- moving the commercial space to the north or the live-work space 
to the north.   
 
Wheeler:  And -- and not have the live-work space moved to the north as said in the staff 
report.   
 
Seal:  Can I get a second?   
 
Grove:  Second.   
 
Seal:  All right.  It has been moved and seconded to approve Item No. H-2021-0102, 
Pavilion at Windsong, with the aforementioned modifications.  All those in favor say aye.  
Opposed?   
 
Yearsley:  Nay.   
 
Seal:  Got that?   
 

36Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 33 of 88 

 

Weatherly:  Mr. Chair, for the record, Commissioner Yearsley, was that a nay?   
 
Yearsley:  That was a nay.   
 
Weatherly:  Thank you, sir.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  The ayes have it.  Motion passes.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.  ONE NAY.  TWO ABSENT.  
 
Seal:  We can take a breath.  Thanks, everyone.  We will go ahead and take a five minute 
bio break and we will be right back.  Thank you.   
 
(Recess:  7:44 p.m. to 7:51 p.m.) 
 
 5.  Public Hearing for Oaks North Rezone (H-2022-0010) by Toll   
  Southwest, LLC, Generally Located Northwest of 5151 N. Rustic Oak  
  Way 
 
  A.  Request: Rezone of 12.02 acres of land from the R-4 to the R-8  
   zoning district for the purpose of recouping five (5) building lots in a  
   future final plat phase of the Oaks North Subdivision. 
 
Seal:  Okay.  We will go ahead and call the meeting to order again.  Everybody want to 
take their seats.  All right.  So, we have Oaks North Rezone, H-2022-0010, and we will 
begin with the staff report.   
 
Dodson:  Thank you, Mr. Chair, Members of the Commission.  This, hopefully, will be 
simpler, but mine never are, so we will go with that.  The application before you is for a 
rezone for a portion of Oaks North.  The property, as you can see, is a little bit wonky, 
because it hasn't been final platted yet or at least not all of it.  The property consists of 
37.5 acres, but the rezone area is actually only 12 acres.  This area of Oaks North only 
has the original rezoning and preliminary plat from 2013 on it and that existing DA from 
2013 is still applicable to this area.  Future land use out here is medium density residential, 
as is the case for all of Oaks North.  The request for a rezone of 12 acres of land from the 
existing R-4 to the R-8 zoning district is for the purpose of including five additional building 
lots that were lost over the course of the previous 11 final plat phases of the Oaks North 
Subdivision.  Staff has confirmed the addition of five building lots within this phase will 
keep the project consistent with the approved preliminary plat from 2013.  Because of this 
there is no need for a new plat to be submitted.  Code allows for later phases of a project 
to include lost lots with previous phases, so long as the total number of lots approved with 
the pre-plat is not increased.  However, adding these additional lots within the existing R-
4 zoning district is not possible, as the minimum dimensional standards could not be met, 
meaning street frontages and minimum lot sizes.  Therefore, the applicant has requested 
to upzone from the R-4 to the R-8 for this portion.  These 12 acres.  A better view would 
be this.  This would be the final phase of Oaks North.  This is Oaks 10, I believe, which 

37Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 34 of 88 

 

has already been -- the final plat's already been approved.  It continues to the south as 
well and this area is already zoned R-8.  This is R-4.  This is to remain R-4.  So, this is 
the -- what's applicable to this rezone before you tonight.  The applicant is not proposing 
any change to the previously approved road network.  The proposed local streets and the 
stub streets along the north boundary are shown in the same locations as is shown on 
the approved preliminary plat.  The applicant is proposing to increase the open space in 
this phase of the development compared to the existing approvals in order to meet the 
current open space standards, which would require a minimum of 15 percent.  According 
to the revised concept plan and narrative, the applicant is showing a little over 180,000 
square feet of qualified open space, which accounts for approximately 15 percent.  So, 
they are right there.  It does comply with the minimum required within the UDC.  There 
was four pieces of public testimony submitted.  There -- there is -- within all four there 
was a desire for the rezone area to include more open space and include an additional 
pool for the subdivision.  There is additional questions and concerns regarding the HOA 
and issues there that the city doesn't have any purview over.  There is also some very 
specific discussion about Oak Winds, which is not associated with this site, and this would 
not be the forum to voice concerns about those build-to-rent things, so I did want to make 
that clear for both the public and the Commission, that that is going to be on the Council 
agenda next week, I believe, but it is a final plat.  So, that approval's already done.  You 
can voice your opinion to Council in the public forum that's prior to the meeting, but other 
than that this would not be the avenue to do that, because it's already done and has 
nothing to do with this rezone application.  Staff does recommend approval of the rezone 
of these 12 acres per the comments in the staff report and I will stand for any questions.   
 
Seal:  Thanks, Joe.  Would the applicant like to come forward.   
 
Bower:  Thank you, Mr. Chair, Commissioners.  My name is Jeff Bower.  My address is 
601 West Bannock in Boise.  Here tonight on behalf of the applicant Toll Brothers.  Also 
with me from Toll Brothers tonight is Adam Capell.  He can answer any development- 
related questions at the Oaks North site.  Madam Clerk, thank you for pulling my 
presentation up.  Thank you, Joe.  We have reviewed Mr. Dodson's staff report, as well 
as the conditions of approval.  We agree with his analysis, as well as all the conditions of 
approval in the staff report.  Real quick some background on Toll Brothers.  I know we 
have been here before you before, but just a quick reminder.  Toll Brothers owns and 
develops Oaks North.  They are an award-winning Fortune 500 development company 
and they have developed a strong connection here in Meridian.  They have -- their Idaho 
division of Toll Brothers is located in the city where they employ about 180 Idahoans 
locally and they have been developing homes in Meridian since 2017.  We are here 
tonight hopefully on a very simple -- much simpler than item number one on your agenda 
-- rezone.  We are asking to rezone 12 acres of property in the Oaks North project from 
R-4 to R-8 and on my slide here the red is phase 12 of Oaks North.  It's the final phase in 
the project and the green highlighted area are those 12 acres we are asking to rezone.  
We are asking for this rezone for -- for two main reasons.  The first primarily is to recoup 
five lots that have been lost over the course of this project.  So, obviously, Oaks North is 
a very large project.  For various reasons over the last five, six years we have lost five 
lots due to open space and engineering issues.  We are trying to recoup those now in the 

38Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 35 of 88 

 

final phase.  The -- the second reason we are doing this, as Mr. Dodson mentioned, is to 
improve -- improve open space, as well as do some density transition to a new project 
that's been approved to our north.  Just, again, to step back briefly.  Oaks North as a -- 
as a whole was approved by the city in 2013.  It approved the -- the preliminary plat 
approved 653 single-family lots.  We have gone through 11 phases to date and platted 
570 lots.  So, again, the final phase 12 plat would bring in 83 as we are proposing, which 
would get us to the 653 total as originally approved.  No increase in overall density.  Again, 
just trying to recoup those five lots.  We have put together a concept plan for phase 12 
final plat.  This is not -- there is no plat application before you tonight, though, just to be 
clear.  This is solely a rezone.  That final plat application will come to the Council only as 
it's in conformity with the preliminary plat.  We just need to final plat at this point.  We are 
hoping to file that application shortly.  So, phase 12 concept plan, 83 single family lots on 
23.5 acres.  This is a little overlay map.  It gets a little busy, but I wanted to provide this 
to -- to the Commission to see the changes we are making.  The greenish blue lines and 
numbers are the underlying preliminary plat.  The white lines and numbers are the 
concept plan and the -- the purple is added open space and so you can see down there 
in the table this area originally approved 78 lots at a density of 3.31.  With the rezone and 
adding the five lots we get 83 units and 3.54 acres.  So, only a minor -- modest increase 
in density of two tenths.  And just to put a pin on it, as Mr. Dodson mentioned, no -- no 
material changes to the lot layout or street network.  This is purely a lot size change and 
-- and real quick, touching on the open space, this rezone and the smaller lot sizes we 
can offer in the R-8 do allow us to provide the housing originally conceived that's needed 
in the -- in the city, while still increasing the open space and in our -- our open space plan 
for -- for phase 12 is the figure towards the bottom of the page and, then, the preliminary 
plat towards the top of the page.  We will match the open space from phase 12 up with 
phase 10 to create one large approximately 1.78 -- 1.7 acre park there that you are 
seeing.  Lastly, this rezone makes sense.  This land is designated in the FLUM as medium 
density residential.  So, the R-8 zoning we are asking for fits within the comp plan and the 
open space as we mentioned fulfills the comp plan as well, with 15 percent.  In addition 
to the FLUM supporting the rezone here, you can see the -- the portion of phase 12 to 
the west is already zoned R-8 and in the last couple years the city's annexed the area to 
the north and zoned it at R-8 as well.  So, we have contiguity with R-8 to the -- to the west 
and north and, finally, the reason makes sense in this case because of that Prescott Ridge 
project to the north, which is R-8.  We are going to be transitioning densities really well 
here with our R-8 project, with nearly identical lot sizes on that shared border.  That's all 
I have for the Commission.  We are asking for your approval on this rezone from R-4 to 
R-8 of 12 acres and I would stand for any questions.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank you.  Do you have questions for the applicant or our staff?  
Commissioner Yearsley?   
 
Yearsley:  So, with the extra open space are you going to add any amenities in there or 
is it just grass?  I'm just curious to what -- because I have to tell you, R-4 is my holy grail.  
So, it's going to take a lot for me to go to R -- R-8, so --  
 

39Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 36 of 88 

 

Bower:  Mr. Chairman, Commissioner Yearsley, to answer the first question, we will 
provide amenities in there.  It will have a tot lot, seating area, and -- and pathways that 
provide connectivity throughout the project.  And R-4 is your holy grail.  Our overall density 
is below four.  So, we are right there.  Again, this is -- this is more of a design rezone, as 
opposed to an overall density rezone.   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Grove, go ahead.   
 
Grove:  Thanks, Mr. Chair.  My question is kind of in line with the overall theme of the 
public testimony.  I don't know if you had a chance to read through those or not, but there 
seems to be a lot of communication questions or concerns or failures that have led to the 
public comments.  Can you address like how -- you know, some of the -- the public 
concerns and what we can expect with this project as -- as it continues through, I guess, 
in terms of how -- how are we addressing the concerns that have been addressed and 
will probably be readdressed tonight?   
 
Bower:  Mr. Chairman, Commissioner Grove, that's a great question and -- and, of course, 
we have read all the public comments and -- and take them very seriously.  So, as Mr. 
Dodson mentioned, I think a lot of those comments were generated from -- well, that's a 
great slide, actually.  We are generated from the Oak Winds project down here at the 
northeast corner of McMillan and McDermott and if I were to flip back to the preliminary 
plat for Oaks North approved in 2013, that area was zoned R-15 and designated as multi-
family, with a minimum density of R-8.  The Council actually wanted R-8 to R-15.  So, the 
Oak Winds project is actually less dense than was originally approved.  That piece of 
property has always been part of The Oaks project and it's always been conceived that 
the single family uses to the east would have mutually beneficial common area and open 
space.  So, we feel that it's been very clearly communicated since 2013 what areas were 
in this project and we think our amenities are great and -- and often -- in most cases 
oversized compared to the market.   
 
Grove:  Thank you.  Just to make sure that you take the -- you know, to heart, I guess, 
because their -- perception and reality might be not lining up there.   
 
Bower:  Absolutely.  And I -- and I could just chime in on that real quick, Chairman and 
Commissioner Grove.  Phase 12 of a nearly 700 unit project -- of course, there is going 
to be growing pains when you get to the end and I think that's what this is.  Teamed with 
COVID I think we all recognize had an impact on local amenities, whether they be 
neighborhood pools or parks, people are using them more.  So, I think that will -- that will 
equilibrate as we move forward and we are offering more open space in this space as 
well, so --  
 
Seal:  Okay.  Commissioner Wheeler?  Commissioner Lorcher?  Thank you very much.   
 
Bower:  Thank you.   
 
Seal:  Madam Clerk?   

40Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 37 of 88 

 

Weatherly:  Mr. Chair, for the public hearing we do have a few people signed up to -- 
indicating a wish to testify.  The first of which is Miranda Kennebrew.   
 
Seal:  Good evening.  Go ahead and state your name and address for the record and if 
you could speak directly into the microphone there so everybody can hear well.   
 
Kennebrew:  Sure.  Good evening.  Thank you for letting me speak.  My name is Miranda 
Kennebrew.  I live at 5916 West Daphne Drive in Meridian.  So, I'm here tonight on behalf 
of The Oaks homeowners.  A little background I think will benefit in you understanding 
our concerns.  It's a very large subdivision.  We have -- we have Oaks North.  We have 
Oaks South.  We have Oaks West.  And we have Oak Creek.  And recently in our annual 
HOA meeting we learned about Oakwind and although I'm not here to argue Oak Wind, 
it needs to be noted that we just learned that they will be using our amenities and this is 
on top of the new phase, of course, and also it's not taking into consideration closer to 
McMillan and Black Cat we have Jump Creek and we have Hayden Homes that were put 
in.  Those -- those areas do not have pools.  We have a pool in Oaks South and we have 
a pool in Oaks North.  So, that's kind of the background.  Just to put some numbers here.  
In total between the two pools there would be over 1,200 residences without them 
expanding to R-8.  So, as it stands there would be over 1,200 homes having access to 
two pools.  Then if they move that phase from R-8 to -- or from R-4 to R-8 it basically 
doubles however many we are supposed to be in that phase of the subdivision.  That's 
residences, not people.  So, if you were to average 2.5 persons per household that would 
mean over 3,000 people would be using two pools and that's without expanding to R-8.  
Furthermore, allowing the builder to double the number of homes that they add to our 
community is a big concern for us.  The builder has made it clear that they have no 
intentions to scale the community amenities, such as adding a pool or park to 
accommodate the additional homes and residents.  Our community amenities that we, 
the residents, pay to maintain are already too crowded and the community is only half 
complete.  While we understand that this meeting is not about the amenities, we can 
speak up against allowing the builder to add more homes and residents to our community 
causing further crowding and restrictions in usability of these amenities.  There are 
capacity limits and the community as a whole will absolutely force the HOA to impose 
restrictions on homeowners ability to use the amenities.  So, I think, to summarize, we 
would like a redesign and we would like a third pool to be considered in this new phase.   
 
Seal:  Thank you.   
 
Kennebrew:  All right.  Thank you.   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Chair, next is Daniel Kwok.   
 
Seal:  Good evening.  Just state your name and address for the record.   
 
Kwok:  Yep.  My name is Daniel Kwok.  I live at 5100 North Trident Way, Meridian.  She 
said most of what I was planning on saying.  I think a lot of it comes down to what we 
heard in our most recent HOA meeting about the amenities, the lack of kind of ability to 

41Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 38 of 88 

 

scale it.  The Toll Brothers, Coleman Homes, whoever it is at this point, is the -- kind of 
drives the HOA and have made kind of unilateral decisions about amenities that were 
planned and presented to us as buyers and over the time that it took for the community 
to be built some of those were changed, so I am here with a lot of my neighbors to express 
those concerns that as we kind of see these changes made there may or may not be 
additional changes that are made that we can't foresee and may or may not have a 
chance to address.  So, having those amenities added here I think would be great, as 
well as the -- some of the creep that has been happening with the HOA fees and the cost 
of landscaping and -- and all of that understandably we want the green spaces to look 
good, but if we are now not only zoning to R-8, adding green space that adds additional 
cost there, while we also don't get a lot of the benefits from the amenities that we pay for 
and, then, we run into capacity issues and things like that where if we do add, as we 
discussed, you know, 1,200 homes, any number of folks to the -- the community, it just 
adds that type of strain where eventually, you know, we end up with having to sign up to 
use the pool and -- and things like that and no one wants that, so thank you.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank you very much.  Madam Chair?   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Chair, online we have a Mr. Joe Bongiorno.   
 
Seal:  Go ahead, Joe.  Go ahead give us your name and address and the floor is yours.   
 
Bongiorno:  Sure.  Can you guys hear me?   
 
Seal:  Yes, sir.   
 
Bongiorno:  Awesome.  Joe Bongiorno.  5144 North Cunard Way in Meridian, Idaho.  And 
for a little clarity, I am the fire marshal for the city, but at this point I am not acting in that 
capacity, I'm -- I'm here as a resident of The Oaks to give my testimony on this application.  
So, I believe one of the commissioners mentioned something -- sorry.  Mr. Chair and 
Commissioners, somebody mentioned the reality versus what's on paper and the reality 
is is they -- Toll Brothers has created a successful subdivision.  It's -- it's very popular.  It 
is -- it is booming here and we are getting to the point -- so, my house backs up to the 
public open area with the fishing pond and the pool and the pickleball courts and 
everything and during the summer the pool is packed and we are not even at full build 
out.  So, I just wanted to agree with -- with everything that -- that the two previous people 
have brought up, that the reality is -- is, yes, this is a successful subdivision and we love 
what we have here, but we need another pool.  So, we would like to see the amenities 
expand along with the subdivision as things are being built, because the pool is becoming 
full to where it's concerning and having to kick people out of there, you know, at midnight 
is not any fun.  So, anyway, as it stands the -- the homeowners don't have any say, 
because the builder is still running the HOA, so this is kind of our only chance to give our 
two cents worth.  So, talking with the people in the neighborhood we all are kind of in 
agreement that we would like to see another pool added to the next phase if it would be 
possible.  So, that's -- that's all I had.  Thank you.   
 

42Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 39 of 88 

 

Seal:  Thank you, Joe.   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Chair, that's all I show signed up and online with their hands raised.   
 
Seal:  If anybody else in chambers would like to testify, please, raise your hand.  Sir, 
come on up.  Good evening.  Please state your name and address for the record.   
 
 Owens:  Hi.  My name is Brendon Owens.  I live at 5800 West Milano Drive in the Oaks 
North and the biggest thing is is we -- we understand that -- I mean it -- it is truly a great 
subdivision that we live in.  All of us love it and cherish it.  But the problem is is when we 
first moved in my wife and I, when we bought our house, it was originally called Coleman 
at the time and found out -- and Coleman had a great reputation.  It's like, oh, okay.  Great.  
Great.  Then I found out that Coleman is being taken over by Toll Brothers, which is 
wonderful.  I worked with Toll Brothers before down in southern California in their great 
thing they were building up -- forgive me, I'm not good at speaking in front of people.  So, 
I apologize.   
 
Seal:  No problem.   
 
Owens:  Porter Ranch.  I work -- I actually worked side by side with them as an inspector 
there and they do great work.  So, it's just like, okay, yeah, well great.  Great.  Glad -- 
glad I'm buying a Coleman slash Toll Brothers and, then, it came to complete Toll Brothers 
by the time we closed, which is beautiful.  The problem with the whole rezoning thing is 
when we were buying our house we were told -- the models were down in -- they were in 
The Oaks, not -- the south side of McMillan and the salesman took us to -- and showed 
us a couple houses being built, because they didn't have our model, so he -- he showed 
us a couple and there was some construction going on.  I said, oh, is that another phase 
and he says, no, that's a Hayden and I said, oh, okay.  So, Hayden is building here, too, 
and -- and -- which I don't have a problem there either, but what I was told at that point is 
that's Hayden, they are not even connected to you, you don't even need to worry about 
any of that and come to find out that those Hayden Homes are part of our amenities, too.  
So, the thing is -- is -- is every time it gets denser they are throwing more people to use 
our amenities and that's where the issue is coming up.  It's -- we know and understand 
that, you know, a lot of the building -- and it's -- it's a great wonderful place to live.  It really 
and truly is and that's why we are all there.  But every time it gets more dense and every 
time this -- it's getting worse and worse.  The -- the amenities are -- are getting worse and 
we were told -- I think it was two weeks ago, maybe three, I forget the exact date, at our 
yearly HOA meeting that had to be held online again this year, which was fine, but we 
were specifically told by the Toll Brothers people that no more amenities are being built, 
nothing extra is being done.  Live with it, it's already all been passed.  If you have a 
problem with it you should have been at the -- at the meetings before.  Guess what, we 
found out there is a meeting here about the zoning and we found out there is a meeting 
next week that we are all going to be attending, too, and there is going to be more of us 
at actually next week's meeting.  But the problem is is once again by being able to rezone 
it they are -- you are going to get -- you are just compiling and compiling more people into 

43Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 40 of 88 

 

-- more density into it and that's -- that's -- that's where our big problem is and that's what 
all of us have an issue with.   
 
Seal:  Thank you, sir.   
 
Owens:  Thank you very much for listening and have a wonderful day.  Or evening.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  If anybody else in Chambers would like to testify, please, raise your hand.  
Ma'am, go ahead and come up.  All right.  Go ahead, ma'am, and state your name and 
address for the record.   
 
Jones:  My name is Elaira Jones.  Address is 5989 West Avilla Drive in Meridian.  I am 
part of the Oaks North community.  My -- my neighbors have all shared our concerns.  I 
just -- the one thing I want to add to it is that there are already four communities here.  
Like he said, it's only half built and -- and there is no space for those of us who are already 
here.  By the time they are done we are going to have to start taking turns for the pools 
while paying full HOA -- HOA dues for it and we are going to have to start taking turns, 
right, like odd houses get on Mondays and Wednesdays and so on and so forth and that 
that doesn't seem fair.  Not only are we paying for these amenities, we are going to have 
restricted access to them.  As it's been stated, Toll Brothers is completely in control of 
what all is being added at this point and they continue to add and add and add.  If this 
final phase is not through final plat we request that it be redesigned to scale and 
accommodate the final number of residents that will be part of our community.  Thank 
you.   
 
Seal:  Thank you very much.   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Chair, we do have one person with their hand raised online.  That's April.   
 
Seal:  April, go ahead and give us your name and address for the record.   
 
Bishop:  I'm here with Sabrina Johnson.  I'm also -- oh.  5261 North Cunard Way, Meridian.  
In Oaks North.  And I'm also here with another neighbor Sabrina Johnson, who will give 
you hers and we speak together as two people.  We are just logged in on her Zoom.   
 
Johnson:  So, hi there.  I wish I could be there in person, but I had to host dinner at my 
house tonight for my family and I wanted to mention something that Mr. Owens had said.  
So, it's really important that big communities like this disclose information to their new 
potential buyers and in 2020 I became one of those people.  I provided a deposit and -- I 
forgot to mention my address.  Sorry about that.  5215 North Cunard Way in Meridian.  
83646.  Sorry about that.   
 
Seal:  That's okay.  Thank you.   
 
Johnson:  So sorry.  Sabrina Johnson.  Sorry about that.  I couldn't hear from my iPhone 
and so I went over to my neighbor's house and it was quieter here, so -- just wanted to 

44Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 41 of 88 

 

mention that it's important that Toll Brothers lets us know about certain changes, 
information.  I remember asking my sales representative about, well, what's going to go 
on behind over here and they basically, deer in headlights, we just don't know and it turns 
out that in the purchasing world with that -- I mean sales does know some of that 
information.  Whether or not they purposely don't disclose it to us -- it's just how it is.  But 
I think that when the HOA had told us at our annual meeting, well, you guys need to speak 
up and -- and go to those annual meetings with the city -- well, if you had disclosed it to 
us, because we weren't homeowners yet in the community, so we didn't have anything        
-- we had no idea that there were meetings of these -- so, if the -- if the community that 
we were potentially moving into had hearings I think that they should have disclosed that 
to us, so we could have come up in numbers and that builders with mega money just 
doesn't come in and have an open floor and, you know, get their way in.  So, our 
community is huge.  I did not know that prior to moving into it, that -- how big it was going 
to, essentially, be and how even The Oaks across the street from us, the south, has 
access to our pool.  I was like what do you mean they get access to our pool.  That's all 
they are doing is living it up in the new pool and so we -- we will address our HOA when 
we can finally get to that point and -- and divide and conquer in that area.  But right now 
I don't think that this rezoning is going to serve our community any justice right now.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank you.  Madam Clark, is there anybody else raising their hand?   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Chair, I don't see anybody.   
 
Seal:  Anybody else in Chambers?  All right.  Oh, sir, go ahead.  Come on up.   
 
Dubois:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  My name is Jess Dubois.  I'm at 5231 North Cunard 
Way, Meridian.  I pretty much agree with everything that's been said already as far as the 
-- the density of the housing and the -- the impacts on the -- the pools.  I would like to 
point out, though, that the pool -- it's not just a pool.  It's actually a park.  There is a 
recreation area that's incorporated along with the pool.  There is -- there is a fishing pond 
on our side -- on the north side.  There is also a basketball court, pickleball courts, 
whatnot.  So, if there is a consideration on placing another pool into the community, then, 
it needs to be understood that it needs to be a recreation area, like the park that we have 
-- we have already.  That's all I had.  Thank you.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank you, sir.  Anybody else in Chambers like to testify?   
 
Dodson:  Mr. Chair, before the applicant comes up I would like to respond as well.   
 
Seal:  Go ahead, Joe.   
 
Dodson:  Thank you.  And I apologize to the homeowners if I come off preachy.  I do not 
mean to be a jerk.  I promise.  I just want to be very clear about the purview of what's 
before us tonight and I definitely sympathize with you, I really do.  Somewhat of what you 
have heard from Toll Brothers is true.  However, the timing was way outside of what you 
probably could have done.  Meaning -- well, I will go ahead and show my screen just to 

45Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 42 of 88 

 

give you guys a -- what I'm talking about here.  The -- what's on the screen here is the 
approved preliminary plat, which includes all of the open space and amenities and 
everything that you guys are discussing now.  We cannot change any of that at this point.  
You would have had to be here in 2013 to testify to get those comments into the record 
to make those changes.  We -- with the rezone before you tonight it has absolutely nothing 
to do with that.  We can't require that as a city, because the preliminary plat's already 
done.  I apologize for that, but that is just how it is right now.  What's before us tonight is 
just for an addition of five lots.  That would be the end purpose of the rezone of only 12 
acres, not the rezone of all of it.  That would be preposterous and would require a 
development agreement modification, which is not part of this, because they are 
compliant with their preliminary plat with the proposal.  Now, again, I sympathize with 
what you guys are talking about, but the city is handcuffed in this and that these approvals 
are, you know, eight years old plus.  So, with this rezone we can't do that.  With the final 
plat before Council next week they can't do anything about it.  I hope Toll Brothers is 
listening and understands and will take these things into consideration and that's going to 
be your power there is to discuss it with Toll Brothers and get them to add other things 
that you may want.  But, unfortunately, the city -- we just -- we can't -- we don't have that 
capacity with the existing approvals and I do want to say that we sympathize with you, 
but the purview of this application is just for these five lots and I apologize for that, but it 
is what it is at this point and I -- I hear you.   
 
Seal:  Thank you, Joe.  Okay.  Would the applicant like to come back up?   
 
Bower:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  Jeff Bower, 601 West Bannock.  Just a few things in 
rebuttal.  Appreciate Mr. Dodson's comments and we are listening.  As we mentioned 
earlier we take these concerns very seriously.  I -- I do just want to make a couple things 
clear.  We are not adding density.  The re-zone that we are requesting tonight gets us 
exactly to the 653 lots that were originally proposed, so -- so, no additional density.  The 
comments with respect to the reciprocity of open space, it goes both ways; right?  
Although the Oaks South folks can come up and use the Oaks North pool, it goes vice- 
versa as well and we have been talking about Oak Winds down here in the south corner, 
they have 20 percent open space and great amenities.  Those are also available to the 
Oaks North residents and the Oaks South residents.  It's -- it's to create that 
interconnected environment that I know Meridian likes with the pathways and the different 
amenities.  So, it is all reciprocal.  It's not one way.  Again, I know we are not here to talk 
about amenities, but I just want to remind our residents, as well as the Commission, that 
this amenity package was approved by the City Council in 2013.  Toll Brothers always 
builds its primary -- primary amenity first, so that it's there.  That's that pool area.  We are 
going to continue to build more open space, more amenities as these phases build out.  
As we mentioned tonight, this rezone gets us more open space.  So, if we were just to go 
under the original preliminary plat we would have about one -- I want to say 1.7 acres of 
open space.  With the rezone and -- and getting the density that was approved, we 
bumped that up to 3.2.  So, this is a win-win.  It's getting us to the original density number, 
as well as providing more open space.  I don't have anymore comments for the 
Commission, unless there are questions.   
 

46Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 43 of 88 

 

Seal:  Questions?  Comments?  Commissioner Lorcher.   
 
Lorcher:  Mr. Chair.  So, with the rest of your -- this is the last space, so there is nothing 
after this?   
 
Owen:  Mr. Chair, Commissioner Lorcher, that's correct.  Phase 12.   
 
Lorcher:  And so there -- and there is -- your plans for amenities are tot lots, extended 
pathways and sitting areas; correct?   
 
Owen:  Mr. Chair, Commissioner Lorcher, that's correct. 
 
Lorcher:  Okay.  Thank you.   
 
Yearsley:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Yearsley, go ahead.   
 
Yearsley:  So, I'm hearing no pool; correct?   
 
Owen:  Mr. Chair, Commissioner Yearsley, that's correct.  This amenity package, as we 
mentioned, met and exceeded the city's standards at the time.  Toll has voluntarily added 
more open space to -- to prior phases.  I believe a basketball court.  The other thing to 
take into consideration -- and I think we heard it from the majority of -- of the residents 
tonight are the costs.  You know, it's not just the cost on Toll to build a pool, it's -- it's in a 
-- a large cost as a -- as an ongoing concern -- you mentioned your HOA fees earlier.  
Those type of amenities are what drive those -- those HOA fees up exponentially.  So, 
no, no additional pool.   
 
Yearsley:  So, I will -- I will just let you know my subdivision has four pools and less homes 
So -- so, I actually have a tendency to side with the homeowners for that, because if you 
lost --  
 
Seal:  Let's not have that anymore, please.  Thank you.   
 
Yearsley:  -- you lost five lots just because of what happened and now you are asking for 
more or to get back to what you want.  You know, I guess for the homeowners they wanted 
a fourth -- a third pool, which they are not going to get.  I understand that.  And I don't 
know -- I have to think about if the more open space is -- is worth the rezone, so -- and 
it's my understanding that a rezone is where we are up sizing, so it's -- it's more of a -- we 
have the option to decide if it's worth it or not, so -- thank you.   
 
Seal:  Anyone else?  Commissioner Wheeler, do you have anything?  Mr. Grove?  All 
right.   
 
Owen:  Mr. Chair, if I just could real quick.   

47Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 44 of 88 

 

Seal:  Sure.   
 
Owen:  Certainly a rezone -- we are here tonight -- we are, obviously, here asking you 
something for Mr. -- Mr. Yearsley, but there are criteria to be applied.  The staff report 
applied those.  You know, primarily do we comply with the comp plan.  We do.  And so, 
you know, I think the reason is appropriate here and the alternative to not rezoning is, 
yeah, maybe Toll Brothers doesn't get the five lots, but there is less open space and less 
homes in Meridian, which I think we all agree is needed.   
 
Seal:  Thank you.   
 
Owen:  Thank you.   
 
Dodson:  Mr. Chair?  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Joe, go ahead.   
 
Dodson:  Sorry.  Thank you.  I just want to clarify one additional thing with the rezone.  
Staff cannot condition rezones.  We cannot condition rezones.  So, my conditions in the 
staff report are actually just comments.  The only way to condition a rezone is with a 
development agreement and we can't do a DA mod, because they are compliant with the 
existing DA and they are not changing the layout, they are just meeting the approved 
density.  So, I did want to make that very clear, that any motion or anything we -- that we 
can't condition something.   
 
Seal:  Okay.   
 
Dodson:  Or could Council either.  It would just be a yes or a no.   
 
Seal:  Got you.  Okay.  Thank you.   
 
Grove:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Go ahead.   
 
Grove:  I move to close the public testimony to file number H-2022-0010, Oaks North.   
 
Wheeler:  Second.   
 
Lorcher:  Second.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  It's been moved and seconded to close the public hearing for file number 
H-2022-0010, Oaks North rezone.  All in favor?  Any opposed?  Motion carries.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  TWO ABSENT.  
 

48Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 45 of 88 

 

Grove:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Grove, go ahead.   
 
Grove:  I will jump in.  So, with the applicant -- I will start off by saying you are not wrong, 
but it doesn't mean that you are right in terms of some of the -- the ways that you 
positioned the things tonight.  I -- under the code and under our preview I have a hard 
time finding a way that we can say no, but that doesn't change the feedback that you are 
hearing very loudly from the people in your subdivision.  So, that's just kind of where I'm 
starting.  Don't want to sit up here and lecture, but I have a second to state my opinion, I 
guess, and I -- I don't see how I can say no for what is in front of us, but that doesn't mean 
that there shouldn't be some other things that can be addressed on your end that -- that 
could address the concerns that are not directly related to what was in front of us tonight.   
 
Seal:  Anyone else?  Commissioner Wheeler, go ahead.   
 
Wheeler:  Thank you.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  I -- I -- I'm in the similar boat of where 
Commissioner Grove is at on it.  I mean there is no density being added.  They are doing 
an adjustment here on the lots and they are adding more open space to it.  So, there is 
not an increase of -- of homes here than what they have said before.  They are just a little 
bit tighter together in this one phase and it's only just a few lots that that's happening with.  
The other thing is I see this actually as a -- as a good problem.  You have got people that 
are living in your homes or in your subdivisions -- speaking directly here to the applicant 
-- that want to enjoy their neighborhoods a lot and they want to have fun in there a lot and 
they want to enjoy their neighbors a lot and I think that this is something to definitely take 
forward as you continue to build more and more subdivisions in this area.  There is a lot 
of competing developers -- residential developers, more are coming to this area it seems 
like a lot and I think one of the factors that will be a determining factor for where people 
choose to live moving forward will be the amenities offered there and the breadth of those 
and so that's just something to think in this highly competitive area here in the Treasure 
Valley and specifically Meridian and at the same time it would be great to have another 
pool, because the demand is that high and -- but that's -- that's going to add exponentially 
more cost to HOA fees, too, at the same time.  But to me I kind of see it as a little bit of a 
as a good problem that people are saying we would -- we would like to enjoy our 
neighborhood more and that's a good thing.   
 
Yearsley:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Yearsley, go ahead.   
 
Yearsley:  So, I -- I don't know, I -- I struggle -- you know, like I said, I -- I will admit R-4 is 
-- we never see it anymore.  The problem with this is where we are adding five more lots, 
we are re -- reducing the number of square footage in the individual lot, which, then, 
increases the demand for the open space and so, you know, I -- you know, that's -- that's 
my concern is that the R-4 you have a bigger lot.  You actually can put some amenities 
in your lot to actually not utilize everything else.  So, I -- I struggle with approving this just 

49Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 46 of 88 

 

because the homeowners are already feeling overwhelmed, even though this is only five 
lots, I mean -- but -- you know.  So, I -- I don't know.  I -- I like the R-4.  I like the bigger 
lot that the -- the -- those people who are buying those may not use the open space as 
much as -- as the rest.  So, I -- I can't support this based on the homeowners' testimony.   
 
Seal:  I -- I mean I'm just looking at this, I mean I -- personally I see there can be some 
win-win here.  So, I mean there has been a lot of testimony that there needs to be more 
space.  I -- I think where the open space is being provided, honestly, isn't going to provide 
much value compared to the cost.  So, there is going to be a lot of, you know, greens that 
are going to have to be maintained, shrubs, trees, you name it, all that stuff -- pathways 
that are going to be put in or connectivity and it's not providing a lot of value.  I mean I 
could see eliminating -- on the map that's shown up here in the phase 12 rezone, getting 
rid of one, two, three and four and opening that all up in five and making something more 
grand there.  There is a reason I hate pools.  This is it.  Because they cost a lot of money.  
They break down over time and everybody argues over them.  So, maybe a water park, 
maybe something that doesn't cost a lot of money, maybe something like that could be a 
great happy medium in there.  It's not going to cost you a lot of money to put in there.  
You regain the amount of homes that you want to put in there.  You still get the five.  You 
still get the zoning.  You just got to put a little extra money into that great big open space 
and make it bigger, make it something that more people can go enjoy.  Just don't make it 
a pool.  That -- that's -- I mean basically where I stand with it.  I mean you -- you have the 
-- I mean just looking at this and I -- you know, I'm not an -- I'm not a real engineer, I'm 
an IT engineer, but -- I mean I can look at this and see a lot of opportunity for a win-win 
here, so -- I mean take that for what you will.  To me if you were willing to do something 
along those lines, then, yeah, let's give you the five homes, have you spend a little 
additional money in here to make that open space a little bit more usable for everybody.   
 
Lorcher:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Lorcher, go ahead.   
 
Lorcher:  Based on everything that we have seen tonight and I guess, Joe, this goes back 
to you, what -- what Commissioner Seal said, can they -- can they sort around the open 
space and collectively put it in all one space or --  
 
Dodson:  Commissioner Lorcher, again, we can't really condition a rezone, so --  
 
Lorcher:  Okay.   
 
Dodson:  -- it -- it -- unfortunately, it's either we recommend approval or you don't.  The 
applicant has the option to make those revisions if they want.  I wanted to make some of 
those revisions as well in my staff report, but I can't.  So, I did make that comment in my 
analysis about, you know, some of these areas I would prefer to be more consolidated.  
With the final plat I can't condition it necessarily, but I -- I can work with the applicant on 
that for sure, so -- Toll Brothers and I have done -- I don't know.  This would be I think the 
seventh phase that I have reviewed for Oaks North.  So, I'm pretty consistent with them.   

50Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 47 of 88 

 

Seal:  Okay.   
 
Lorcher:  Commissioner Seal?   
 
Seal:  Go ahead.   
 
Lorcher:  So,  based on our restrictions of what we can and cannot do as far as a rezone 
is concerned, I understand Commissioner Yearsley's concern about changing it from R-
4 to R-8, but based on what we see here, even with the five houses we do get more open 
space at 3.2 versus 1.7.  I mean if we don't do it they will find another way to -- to get the 
five houses that they want to get back.  So, if -- hopefully the applicant will work with the 
city planners and, you know, re-design some of that space so that they can accommodate 
their current homeowners and be good stewards to their neighborhood, but if we can't 
condition it our hands are tied.   
 
Seal:  I would agree.  So, hopefully, everybody that's listening -- this means make sure to 
show up to the next meeting and, hopefully, there is more meetings to be held and there 
is a willingness to work with staff in order to improve the -- basically the capacity of the 
open space that's going to be provided, instead of just these little slices that are out there 
that are just going to cost more money and not really provide a lot of what the community 
is asking for.  With that I will quit lecturing.   
 
Wheeler:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Wheeler, go ahead.   
 
Wheeler:  I would like to make a motion here then.   
 
Seal:  Go ahead.   
 
Wheeler:  After considering all staff, applicant, and public testimony, I move that we 
recommend approval to the City Council of file number H-2022-0010 as presenting the 
staff report for the hearing date of April 7th, 2022.  
 
Grove:  Second.   
 
Seal:  It's been moved and seconded to approve Item No. H-2022-0010, Oaks North 
rezone with no modifications.  All in favor say aye Any opposed?   
 
Yearsley:  Nay.   
 
Seal:  Was Commissioner Yearsley.   
 
Weatherly:  Thank you.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  The ayes have it.  Motion passes.   

51Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 48 of 88 

 

MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.  ONE NAY.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
 6.  Public Hearing Continued from March 3, 2022 for Pinedale Subdivision 
  (H-2022-0001) by Pine Project, LLC, Located at 3275 W. Pine Avenue  
  (Parcel #S1210417400) 
 
  A.  Request: Annexation and Zoning of 1.22 acres of land with a request 
   for the R-15 zoning district. 
 
  B.  Request: A Preliminary Plat for 12 building lots and 2 common lots  
   on 1.22 acres in the requested R-15 zoning district. 
 
Seal:  Okay.  And so now we have a file number H-2022-0001, Pinedale Subdivision, 
which was continued from March 3rd.  We will begin with the staff report.   
 
Dodson:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  Stole my thunder with the March 3rd.  Now I can't do it.  
No.  I'm just kidding.  The applications before you tonight for this application are 
annexation, zoning, and a preliminary plat.  The site consists of 1.2 acres of land, currently 
is on RUT.  As you can tell on the map on the left it's essentially a county enclave with 
zoned property all around it.  It's located along the railroad corridor west of Ten Mile and 
is directly at the terminus of West Newland Street at the southeast corner of the 
Chesterfield No. 2 Subdivision.  It does not have any application history with the city.  It's 
-- Comprehensive Plan is mixed-use community for some reason.  However, in my 
analysis I did analyze it against the medium density residential future land use designation 
to the -- to the west, because that's where its access comes from.  The request before 
you tonight is annexation and zoning of the 1.2 acres, with a request for the R-15 zoning 
district and a preliminary plat for nine detached single-family building lots and two 
common lots.  The applicant has revised the plat multiple times to address concerns noted 
within the staff report.  The staff report is -- contemplates ten units, because that's what  
-- at the time prior to the March 3rd hearing that's what was proposed.  Since publication 
of that staff report the applicant and I have worked together to make some revisions and 
you get the plat before you tonight.  I did write a memo based on this new plat to the 
Commission dated March 24th that has specific recommended revisions to the conditions 
of approval based on this plat.  The applicant is proposing to construct detached single-
family dwellings with a gross density of 7.4 units per acre and an average lot size of about 
3,200 square feet, with a minimum lot size of about 2,250.  The proposed use is a 
permitted use within the requested R-15 zoning district and although the lots appear to 
meet UDC dimensional standards.  Access is proposed via extension of West Newland 
Street as noted, which currently terminates on the west boundary of the site.  It is required 
to terminate within the site as a full cul-de-sac per ACHD.  The existing access is from a 
private access that crosses Ten Mile Creek right here and actually goes up to Pine, which 
we are glad to get rid of that, hopefully.  This access will be terminated upon development 
of this site and with other approvals to the east it's only going to be a pedestrian access.  
A multi-use pathway on the east side of the creek for -- if you can see my mouse -- ten 
foot pathway here for Foxcroft and, then, it crosses where the bridge is and, then, 
continues to be a ten foot pathway here, which is why the applicant proposed a five foot 

52Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 49 of 88 

 

pathway here for added connectivity.  The Ten Mile Creek as noted does run along the 
entire east property line and requires a hundred foot easement from its centerline, with 
50 feet of it being -- well, almost 50 feet of it being on this site, which further encumbers 
the buildable area of the property.  Some of the noted concerns in the staff report are 
regarding analyzing the project against the MDR versus the mixed use community as 
noted and staff decided to do that, because there is no connectivity to the east other than 
pedestrian connectivity and when you talk about mixed use, you talk about a mixing of 
uses and you can't do that -- I didn't see it was necessary to do that.  So, I -- the comp 
plan does allow us -- it's not parcel specific, so it allows staff to analyze projects against 
adjacent designations when they are not separated by arterials.  Staff discussed the 
amount of buildable area once the required cul-de-sac is placed on the site.  As you can 
tell, it takes up a lot of land.  So, overall it just -- it's a point of discussion.  The difference 
between the proposed lot sizes and those within Chesterfield -- obviously these are going 
to be smaller than those lots to the west property.  Chesterfield is R-8, so it's going to be 
a minimum of 4,000 square feet for R-8.  These have an average of 3,200, which is below 
that.  In addition, the number of driveways taking access from the cul-de-sac -- so, again, 
the -- the idea of having multiple driveways just eats up a lot of area right there in the cul-
de-sac and you have driveway after driveway after driveway.  The applicant is showing 
shared driveways, which staff does appreciate.  Not always -- when staff discussed this 
in the staff report -- and we have discussed with the applicant sometimes that can be 
difficult to get the required setbacks for the garages and everything when that occurs.  
This would be preferred, but staff did not include a condition of approval to require it, 
because it can be very complicated with getting a building on the lot and at a future date.  
So, I don't want to mince words or make you guys think that that's what's going to be 
required.  Finally, in general staff just wants to ensure that the proposed elevations can 
actually fit on the submitted lots.  There were 13 pieces of testimony that all stated the 
same issues that they had with the proposed project just too much density that -- which 
will impact the traffic, safety, and that it doesn't match the existing development to the 
west.  So, that's pretty much all 13 said the same thing.  Some of it seemed like a form 
letter of kind, but, nonetheless, voiced their valid concerns.  Staff does recommend 
approval of the subject application with the conditions noted in the staff report and I will 
stand for any questions.   
 
Seal:  Thanks, Joe.  Would the applicant like come forward?   
 
Hessing:  My name is Bruce Hessing.  2338 West Boulder Bar Drive, Meridian.  My family 
moved here in 1886.  So, we have been here a while.  I have developed probably 2,700 
houses.  I tried counting them all over a month or so period of time.  I was bored during 
COVID and that's as many as I -- I could remember.  So, I -- I enjoy the community.  It is 
my home and I'm thoroughly impressed with you.  I usually have my engineer or -- or a 
planner do this for me, but he's out of country, so I got the wonderful opportunity to -- to 
be here tonight.  I have semi-retired, so what I like to do is I like to find little pieces of 
property like this one.  These are difficult to develop.  If you were to see pictures of this 
little property now, there is -- there is an old structure there that the neighbor kids use as 
their funhouse.  My fun is taking that down and so I -- I have worked with -- Bill and Joe 
are amazing.  I -- I -- I deal with a lot of planners.  You got two of the best.  And our idea 

53Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 50 of 88 

 

is to bat this around -- I think we designed it like six times.  It's worth it to me to get -- get 
it right before it gets to you and this is what I have presented.  I wanted 12 lots.  That was 
the original application.  We sell a lot of this product to retired people.  We can get our 
product out on the market forty, fifty thousand dollars less than -- if compatible to -- to 
other projects.  We like to do that.  The -- these homes are narrow.  The master bedroom 
is on the main floor.  We like that.  And usually people my age like that, too.  And that's     
-- that's our concept.  Any questions I'm -- I'm here for you.   
 
Seal:  Any questions?  Maybe?  No?  All right.  Thank you very much.  Madam Clerk, do 
we have anybody signed up to testify?   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Chair, we did have one person sign up online.  It's Daniel Kwok.  I think 
that might have been an error, because he came for the last one and I don't see him in 
house anymore and that's all.   
 
Seal:  Anybody in Chamber want to come up and testify on this?  All right.  Would the 
applicant like to come back up?   
 
Dodson:  Mr. Chair, I do believe the engineer of the project is online.   
 
Hessing:  Yes, he is.  He is somewhere in Switzerland I think.   
 
Seal:  Would he like to speak or would you like to have him speak?   
 
Hessing:  He sent me a text that said, hey, only if you need and I -- I think we are going 
to be okay.  He is a lot more into it than I am, but -- but I think we have got the gist here 
and --  
 
Seal:  Okay.   
 
Hessing:  -- he should enjoy his vacation.   
 
Seal:  Well, I was going to say is there -- if anybody has no questions --  
 
Grove:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Oh.   
 
Grove:  I do.   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Grove, go ahead.   
 
Grove:  So, I have a few questions that I will kind of try and summarize I guess.  This 
seems -- Commissioner Yearsley, you are going to like this.  This seems incompatible 
with what the cul-de-sac does to this weird piece of property.  It seems incompatible with 
the number of lots that we have here.  I think that this is a much more suitable space for 

54Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 51 of 88 

 

two to five lots at most.  I -- I -- I can't wrap my head around having this layout as 
presented.   
 
Hessing:  Okay.  I appreciate that.  The -- the cul-de-sac does take a tremendous amount 
of that property.  It looks like to me like a third of it.  We originally designed this with a 
private drive and we were going with the zoning to our east and to our south.  I -- I get the 
fact that we would like to get less, because the neighbors to the west have less, but this 
-- to provide that cul-de-sac for -- for ACHD this was the best use for that property.  It -- it 
doesn't make sense to have two or three lots there.  It just doesn't.  That's why it was 
redesigned and redesigned and came up with -- now they have got -- the neighbors to 
the west have got a cul-de-sac now that's ACHD standard.  They could use it instead of 
a dead end like it's been for I don't know how many years.  But that's why it was designed 
the way we did it.   
 
Grove:  Thank you.  I appreciate that.  I -- I just -- I -- I have some major concerns with 
the general layout and the amount of lots that are there.  I don't -- I don't see it with how 
it's presented and so I have some general concerns with the number of lots and even the 
placement of the cul-de-sac.  So, I was just wondering, you know, at the R-8, was the R-
4 zoning considered for this instead?   
 
Hessing:  Because that's what it's zoned for.   
 
Dodson:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Go ahead, Joe.   
 
Dodson:  It's requested for R-15 because it's under 4,000 and it is R-8 to the west, which 
would be a minimum of 4,000.   
 
Hessing:  Sorry.  Wrong numbers, but -- 
 
Dodson:  You got a four in there.  It mattered.   
 
Grove:  So, I guess instead of R-15 did you look at a lower classification in general?   
 
Hessing:  No.  We were just going with what was to the east of us and to the south of us.  
I -- I -- when we get to that amount of lot reduction -- I mean we came from 12 down to 
nine.  Any lower than that it -- it just makes it inconceivable to do it.   
 
Grove:  I guess the reason I'm asking these questions is because you are not connected 
to the lots to the east or to the lots to the south, but you are connected really with the lots 
to the west.  So, it's more congruent with the lots that you would be connected to and how 
I'm looking at the map.  So, I was just wondering why that wasn't considered.   
 
Hessing:  Well, if I was to do that what I would do, then, would be put in a private drive 
and take -- and make it four lots and, then, ACHD had heartburn over that and all the 

55Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 52 of 88 

 

neighbors do, because they want a cul-de-sac and so they come to us, asked us to    -- 
to build this cul-de-sac, which -- which really is the major part of that whole piece of ground 
is the cul-de-sac.  So, we felt we were putting back into the community by providing a 
standard ACHD cul-de-sac that they really need and in -- in exchange for that we pick up 
another three to -- you know, three or four more lots, give us our nine that we need to 
make it pencil, so that it -- it works for the community and it works for us.  That's why we 
did that.   
 
Grove:  All right.  Thank you.   
 
Lorcher:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Lorcher, go ahead.   
 
Lorcher:  Mr. Hessing, if you were to be R-4 or R-8 would ACHD reconsider a cul-de-sac 
to a street that just ended?   
 
Hessing:  Well, I -- no.  Their -- their demand -- if I remember right --  
 
Lorcher:  Is that firm?   
 
Dodson:  Commissioner Lorcher, yeah, I have had discussions and reached out to ACHD 
and they have been extremely firm on the cul-de-sac, unfortunately.   
 
Lorcher:  Thank you.   
 
Dodson:  Because I had specifically asked if we could do an alternative termination.  I 
was told no.   
 
Hessing:  But I think, to answer that, Commissioner, if -- if we were to go to the city 
standard four lots, we could use a private drive to terminate.  Right, Joe?   
 
Dodson:  I would need to clarify with ACHD.  I still think they want it to terminate in a cul-
de-sac even if we use a common drive, which is what Mr. Hessing is referring to.   
 
Hessing:  Yeah.   
 
Dodson:  Which is the four lots --   
 
Hessing:  If we go to the neighbors -- I mean this works.  This cul-de-sac works and -- 
and that's why we redesigned it five, six, seven times, got it to this point.   
 
Lorcher:  Thank you.   
 
Hessing:  You bet.   
 

56Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 53 of 88 

 

Weatherly:  Mr. Chair, I do --  
 
Seal:  Go ahead.   
 
Weatherly:  -- show that Mr. Hessing's engineer is raising his hand.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Let's hear from him.   
 
Conti:  Good afternoon.  Good evening.  Afternoon.  Evening.  I hope you can hear me 
well.   
 
Seal:  Yeah.  Go ahead and give us your name and address for the record, please.   
 
Conti:  Yep.  Antonio Conti at 7661 West Riverside Drive, Garden City.  One comment 
that came through was the design itself with the cul-de-sac and this is the only way we 
can fit a cul-de-sac on that property.  Otherwise, we will have to take right of way from the 
neighboring parcel, which is not -- it won't be allowed.  The overall point of the concerns 
on the overall density, I think we can map on less than eight units per acre.  As it is right 
now we trim that down to about nine lots.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Does that answer the question kind of?  No?  Yeah?   
 
Grove:  Yeah.  As good as it's going to be answered.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  All right.  Thank you, sir.  Appreciate that.   
 
Hessing:  Just one comment.   
 
Seal:  Yes, sir.   
 
Hessing:  We are -- an R-8 is our neighbor; right?  Well, this is 1.2 acres and so we would 
be fitting within that all right.   
 
Dodson:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Go ahead, Joe.   
 
Dodson:  So, the -- we don't tie our density to our zoning anymore.  So, the eight, four, 
40 doesn't matter for the zoning.  I guess that's a little facetious.  But it matters in the 
sense of dimensional standards.  But density, no.  So, what would be the -- the key factor 
if you did R-8 would be the minimum 4,000 square feet, which you are going to have to 
lose lots to meet that.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank you.   
 
Yearsley:  Mr. Chair?   

57Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 54 of 88 

 

Seal:  Commissioner Yearsley, go ahead.   
 
Yearsley:  I -- I'm sorry, the -- the -- the concept homes that you have provided, I don't 
know how you are going to fit those on those lots, to be honest with you.  You -- you do 
show one photo in the staff report that shows an existing home that I think would be more 
realistic to it, because it doesn't have a front door or anything besides that.  I mean there 
is -- it's home to home to home.  I mean it's -- it's going to look like an apartment building, 
to be honest with you, in my opinion.  And to me that just does not fit this -- this community.  
I mean, yes, I realize that it doesn't -- if we -- if we go smaller it doesn't pencil your -- your 
financials, but, man, I -- I'm struggling to -- to -- to allow something like this, just because 
we can make it fit.  I mean -- so yeah.   
 
Hessing:  We can answer that.  We -- we have the standard setbacks -- side -- side 
setbacks that -- those units are 24 to 26 feet wide and they are deep and -- and we build 
those and so, yes, they do -- they do fit.  They -- they do have the standard size setbacks.  
We are meeting -- we are meeting code, obviously, if -- if we can get to that and so, yes, 
they are -- they are a unique product.  You see them down in Boise.  They are 22 to 26 
feet wide.  They are deeper.  They are 1,500 square feet, 18, ten, a few of those and 
some of them -- like that Lot 2 and Lot -- but some of them are pretty wide lots, so they 
could almost take a standard size house.   
 
Yearsley:  Yeah.  I -- I just don't see it.  Sorry.   
 
Seal:  Any other comments?  Okay.  Thank you, sir.  Okay.  Can I get a motion to close 
the public hearing for H-2022-0001?   
 
Yearsley:  So moved.   
 
Wheeler:  Second.   
 
Seal:  It's been moved and seconded to close public hearing for file number H-2022-0001, 
Pinedale Subdivision.  All in favor?  Any opposed?  Motion carries.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
Seal:  I will jump in here.  I'm -- I'm kind of with everybody else.  I just -- I mean there is      
-- this being a little in-fill piece of property that I would love to see develop, I -- I just don't 
see this happening.  I can see a lot of issues happening in here as far as the -- when you 
have the common drive -- I always go back to service vehicles and things like that to 
where, you know, trash day comes along and you have -- you know, how many trash 
cans out there, you can't have anybody parking on the street, I mean there is -- basically 
is no parking.  So, somebody decided they were going to have a birthday party, something 
along those lines, there is just nowhere to do it.  There is -- there is no parking in here, 
other than for the residents, so -- and that's a small amount of parking that's going to be 
there.  So, I just -- you know, as much as I would like to see this happen, I don't see this 
as the solution, so -- I mean to me the solution with the cul-de-sac needing to be there, 

58Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 55 of 88 

 

you know -- and, again, I wish we had more control over what ACHD controls within the 
city boundaries.  We don't.  So, if they are going to insist on this -- on this cul-de-sac going 
in there, I mean it would have to be less dense in order for me to be enthused by it or to, 
you know, want to approve it.   
 
Grove:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Grove, go ahead.   
 
Grove:  I think if the cul-de-sac even like moved to more of the center of the project, you 
know, wrapped down, you know, there might be some other options, but I would have to 
kind of piggyback on what Commissioner Yearsley was saying with how the houses would 
actually fit.  I don't see what -- I guess I don't see how that works and without a 
demonstration of what that looks like it -- it does not fit with this plat and it doesn't fit with 
the neighborhood that's actually connected to it.  This is not the right product for this space 
in my opinion.   
 
Seal:  And I can see where -- I mean there is a few lots in here where I can see there is 
several houses that would fit that are kind of the Barber Park area, different places in 
Boise like that where those would fit pretty easily in here, so -- but the rest of the lots I 
don't see how you are going to fit something like that in there, so -- you know, again, I just 
-- I think it's too much for this little tiny piece of land and -- and I sympathize for ACHD 
holding their ground on, you know, taking up so much property with this -- with the cul-
de-sac, but they control the roads, we don't, so if that's what they want in there, then, 
that's okay, but I just don't think that this density is going to work in there personally.  
Anyone else?  I would love to hear a motion at this point.   
 
Yearsley:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Yearsley.   
 
Yearsley:  I will make a motion.  Let me get to the page.  After considering all staff, 
applicant and public testimony I move to recommend denial of -- to City Council of File 
No. H-2022-0001 as presented in the hearing report -- hearing on April 7th, 2022, for the 
following reasons:  The -- the -- just the site is too dense for the -- the community that it's 
abutting up against and it just doesn't fit the -- that subdivision and it's -- it's just overall 
just too dense.   
 
Wheeler:  Second.   
 
Seal:  It's been moved and seconded to recommend denial of File No. H-2022-0001, 
Pinedale Subdivision, for the reasons mentioned.  All in favor say aye.  Opposed?  Okay.  
Motion carries, which was a motion to deny, so --  
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  TWO ABSENT.  
 

59Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 56 of 88 

 

 7.  Public Hearing for Summertown Subdivision (H-2022-0005) by   
  Summertown, LLC, Located at 3104 N. Venable, at the Southeast  
  Corner of N. Venable Ln. and W. Ustick Rd. 
 
  A.  Request: Preliminary Plat consisting of 23 residential building lots (9 
   singlefamily lots and 14 multi-family lots) and 3 common lots on  
   approximately 13.8 acres of land in the TN-R zoning district   
   (Traditional Neighborhood Residential). 
 
Seal:  Okay.  All right.  We will move on to Summertown Subdivision, H-2022-0005 and 
we will begin with the staff report.   
 
Dodson:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  Got me for one more.  Again, this is for Summertown 
Subdivision.  The application for this project is a -- yeah.  That makes sense.  This is a 
preliminary plat and a private street.  Private streets are administrative approval only.  
Just to let the Commission know and the director did approve those.  The site consists of 
13.8 acres of land already zoned TN-R, which is the traditional neighborhood residential 
zoning district, located at 3104 North Venable, which is the southeast corner of Venable 
and Ustick.  Has quite a bit of history with the site.  Again it was annexed and zoned in 
2017.  Has an existing development agreement.  Received administrative approvals in 
2019 and, then, in 2021 to make sure they don't expire and it is a mixed-use community 
designation on the property.  It's kind of a bubble in this area.  The request before you 
tonight is for a preliminary plat consisting of 23 residential building lots, which are nine 
single-family lots along the south boundary and 14 multi-family lots, with three common 
lots on -- on this 13.8 acres.  Within the existing TN-R zoning district.  The request for 
private streets through the multi-family portion of the project was requested and approved.  
It was made for -- sorry.  The private street request was made for addressing purposes 
and was actually requested by the city fire and addressing departments.  So, we do 
appreciate the applicant doing that to help with addressing for life safety.  The minimum 
lot size is 5,100 square feet for the single family lots and nearly 19,000 for the multi-family 
lots.  The subject site was annexed into the City of Meridian in 2019 as noted with the 
Summertown annexation.  It allows multi-family residential projects as a principally 
permitted use.  So, again, they -- no CUP or anything like that, they only -- they got their 
zoning and they were allowed to do a certificate of zoning compliance and design review 
to establish that use and, then, submit for building permits, which have already been done 
and approved and they are building on the site already.  Therefore, the applicant was -- I 
just said all that.  The applicant did include a small single family component to the project 
along the south boundary as noted.  This complies with the requirement of TN-R, which 
requires two different housing types within a project.  Because of the inclusion of the 
single-family lots and the applicant's desire to place each multi-family building on their 
own lot, the applicant is required to subdivide the property prior to the release of the first 
occupant -- first certificate of occupancy.  That is an existing development agreement 
provision, so to be very short, largely this preliminary plat is very administerial in that it's 
complying with the existing approvals.  The expected development of the site, therefore     
-- it's already been outlined and conditioned via these previous approvals and so many of 
those requirements will actually be checked at the future final plat application.  All of the 

60Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 57 of 88 

 

proposed lots do comply with the TN-R zoning district and the proposed road 
improvements comply with previous approvals, except one piece, which would be the 
Venable Lane street section and I will get into that.  Access to the site is proposed via 
Venable from Ustick and West Wrangler Street here.  The access to the multi-family is 
via the drive aisle connection in the northwest corner and, then, two off of West Wrangler 
Street and those are through the two private street connections.  So, these are all private 
streets here.  Hence why they are named -- we cannot name multi-family drive aisles, 
which is, again, why fire and addressing requested private streets.  West Wrangler Street 
is also shown to be the access for the proposed nine single-family lots along the south 
boundary.  The proposed street sections for both Wrangler and Venable do comply with 
all standards.  However, in the original approvals Venable Lane was supposed to be a 36 
foot wide street section, I believe, from Ustick down to this location and, then, a 29 foot 
street section here.  However, as all of this has progressed over the years, ACHD has 
approved the 29 foot -- 29 feet wide street section all the way for the whole section of 
Venable.  I did receive confirmation of that today as well.  So, there is no qualms with that 
and staff would strike that condition moving forward.  I don't know what that is though.  I 
will tell you just -- you can broadly say strike that condition in any motion.  The proposed 
master pathways plan, which, again, just the proposed master pathway plan, not what is 
adopted, does depict a pathway along the east side of North Venable.  The submitted plat 
does not depict this pathway and instead depicts a five foot wide sidewalk.  Staff has 
presented this issue during pre-application meetings and -- which it's unfortunate it's not 
shown, but staff is requiring that revision with this plat to be on the east side of Venable.  
Again, with the reduced street section and other requirements of ACHD for storm 
drainage, this buffer along Venable is larger than what it should be per the TN-R 
standards, so there is room.  The applicant and I have discussed this quite a bit in the 
past couple days and we should be okay with that.  Staff does have an existing condition 
to continue the pathway, not just on the east side of Venable here, but also down this 
pump lot -- pump house lot here.  The applicant has told me there is no room to do it here, 
so I will let you and the applicant discuss that.  If that cannot be accommodated I will go 
on the record and say we minimally need it here, so that we can have a connection here 
to continue this at a future date, to have a nice safe logical crossing for the multi-use 
pathway.  This area is owned by somebody else and a county parcel that's not yet 
redeveloped.  There was no written testimony for this, again, because this is largely 
administerial at this point.  Staff does recommend approval of the plat and, again, the 
director has approved the private streets.  I will stand for any questions.   
 
Seal:  Thank you, Joe.  Would the applicant like to come forward.   
 
Brown:  For the record Kent Brown.  3161 East Springwood.  I like Bill's comments more 
than my other client liked.  He said you should have been number two out of number 
seven.  Anyway, I think there is just a couple of you that were here before when this came 
through with annexation.  There were numerous redesigns and to my knowledge this is 
the first TN-R neighborhood that was zoned in the city and it was trying to understand 
what that traditional neighborhood encompassed and what -- what needed to take place 
and it was kind of unique in that it was the mixed-use community and yet it was a bubble 
that was on both sides of the road and there were, you know, commercial posed on the 

61Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 58 of 88 

 

other side of the street, there is the park that's over there, so you have those elements 
that are taking place and -- and we were looking at doing apartments and there is 
apartments to the west of us for a portion of the site.  I have some slides that I gave, but 
what's taken place is that as they started in the plan approval process, which has already 
taken place, both for the vertical buildings through -- we have got building permits going 
and there are buildings that are going up currently and all the underground has been 
completed for this site and there hasn't been any concrete poured yet, so many of these 
conditions kind of end up being kind of a challenge.  Condition number 3-A-E is the one 
that -- that Joe was looking for providing him evidence that ACHD is happy with the 29 
foot street section.  What happened there is it was initially thought by both ACHD and us 
that storm drainage would go from the crown of the street and go each direction, like we 
traditionally do, but the apartments that went into the west of us did not have any of that 
requirement or did -- they didn't have an easement and so the highway district made us 
make a super, which, then, flows all the drainage over onto the east side and so we have 
all that storm drainage coming on our side and fitting that in with where our buildings and 
so forth are, required us to reduce the street section.  There is a sidewalk that is in their 
common area on the west side of Venable.  The road has always been planned to curve 
as it goes onto Wrangler.  This drawing that's here on the screen is what was in the 
original DA showing how the vacant properties adjacent to us might develop and with the 
stub streets that we were proposing at the time.  Venable -- Mr. Simunich owns that piece 
that's down here and he didn't want any roads stubbed to him and that's why our -- our 
internal road angles.  He has a driveway that goes to his home back there.  I know that 
he's passed away, but I know that his family still own that property today.  So, that's an 
access to his house back there.  Venable Lane -- ACHD has right-of-way that's adjacent 
to our pump house, so I have put in approximately where the south line of -- of -- are you 
moving that, Joe?  Okay.  So, this is the pump house lot and the properties to the south 
and the vehicle parked on the access that goes back to the Simunich's house is on ACHD 
right of way for the most part, but it is not a street, it is just a driveway access for that -- 
that one home back there.  Joe was looking for us to be further to the east or to the left 
on this drawing.  That manhole that's up next to the vinyl fence is where that sidewalk 
would be.  There is a pressure irrigation line and if you think about it the neighbors to the 
south of us have pressure irrigation running in their backyard and, then, it comes to the 
north up to our property and so it does the same thing and this concrete vault and so forth 
that is sticking out of the ground is the pump station.  So, putting that on our property 
becomes kind of difficult.  I spoke to ACHD and they said we could enter into a license 
agreement and we could pave a ten foot path that probably is in a better location than 
what staff is talking about.  It's outside the bounds of our plat, but it's in ACHD right of 
way.  So, I don't know -- I have been told before you can't -- can't make me do things 
outside the plat.  ACHD's staff report is very clear that there is not to be improvements, 
but this is a pathway improvement.  So, I don't -- realistically my -- my client wants to be 
approved with the plat.  I need to turn around and get the final plat, because he's got 
buildings that are already framed in and they can't get occupancy on those buildings until 
the plat's recorded.  So, I need to get the preliminary approved and, then, turn around 
and submit the final.  I didn't -- didn't include the drawing to the north, but they have not 
poured any of the concrete.  We can put a ten foot sidewalk.  It does make that really 
close.  It's kind of interesting, after listening to the Pavilion at Ten Mile or -- Pavilion at 

62Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 59 of 88 

 

Windsong is all of those sidewalks come out of the units -- if you could go back to the 
overall site, Joe.  Not my drawings, but your staff report.  We will have all those sidewalks 
coming out onto that pathway, that -- because they are 13 feet.  So, I have all these units 
that are here along this west side of our site and on the east side of Venable.  If we put 
this ten foot sidewalk realistically from the east side of that pathway is 13 feet to the -- 14 
feet maybe to the front of the unit.  So, it -- they are going to be close and you want people 
accessing and coming out there.  There is no parking, but it allows those to come out and 
I talked to Kim -- Joe and I were in discussions.  This pathway isn't on any adopted plan, 
but parks wants it to go in.  The purpose of it is is to connect to the south.  They will have 
to get the Simunich's and any future development that goes to the south to be a part of 
that, but today -- I mean I know what you try to do is you try to get what you can get today.  
I guess we are not opposed to that.  I would prefer not putting it on the ACHD right of way 
adjacent to -- that would cause people to think that they can walk south to the Simunich's 
property, because as soon as you get to that vinyl fence the ACHD right of way ends and 
it's their property.  I don't think that -- they weren't real excited about having people go 
that way before and now it -- right now what's there is a driveway access to that house.  I 
will just leave it at that.  Do you have any questions for me?   
 
Seal:  Questions for the applicant?   
 
Lorcher:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Lorcher, go ahead.   
 
Lorcher:  So, right now Verna -- is it -- how do you say it?  Venerable?   
 
Brown:  Venable.   
 
Lorcher:  Venable is just a driveway to the family home and you are going to extend it --  
 
Brown:  Venable south of our proposed street is a driveway to their home.  It's under 
construction right now.  The road base has been hauled in.  They have got string line up.  
They are getting ready to start pouring sidewalk and curb and gutter and so I need to get 
to them the plan to put a ten foot pathway at least in that northern portion north of 
Wrangler.   
 
Lorcher:  Okay.  And that's how the family gets to their house, because right now --  
 
Brown: Yeah.  Currently.  Yes.   
 
Lorcher:  Okay.  And, then, the subdivision to the south of you where it says Ridgeberry 
and there is no access to Ustick from there; correct?   
 
Brown:  Currently.  But they will be able to use Venable -- go north to a T intersection 
where they will be on Wrangler, then, they will turn left and go up to Venable.   
 

63Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 60 of 88 

 

Lorcher:  Okay.  Thank you.   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Grove?   
 
Grove:  Question about the -- and maybe this is staff first -- is with the pathway section 
that goes south of Wrangler, in lieu of having that built out, is there anything we could do 
in terms of requiring an escrow account or whatever the -- like something that would build 
later to build -- to pay for that 25 foot section or whatever that is when it -- it's ready to be 
developed or do we have any wiggle room I guess would be the question.   
 
Dodson:  Right.  Yeah.  Great question, Commissioner Grove.  So, if -- if it's going to be 
in the ACHD right of way we can't require that.  The applicant can go into a road trust with 
them.  It might not be a road trust necessarily, but -- and do that.  But as Kent described, 
it's very difficult for us to require something that's not on their property.  I think the best 
we could do is condition -- add a condition that, basically, requests the applicant to work 
with ACHD to try to construct that short segment of ten foot pathway south of Venable.  I 
don't want that to be a deal killer for all of this, because we really mostly need the segment 
on the east side of Venable and then -- because that property is owned by others we 
would be able to get it later.  My point was they have the lot at this section, so at least you 
would have a clear connection across this curve and stub it to the west boundary.  But I 
can see when you have pressure irrigation and everything under there already it's not 
going to happen, so thank you, applicant, for giving us that picture.  That helps a lot.  But 
I think a broad condition would probably best and Kent and I will continue to work with 
ACHD as we move forward through the final plat phases.   
 
Brown:  And I have already spoke to ACHD, the person that approved the plans and he's 
told me I can build it.  I guess my concern is -- I build it, they will come and as soon as 
they step off of the end of where I pave they are on somebody else's property.  They are 
on ACHD's property, which isn't the full width of that opening and so we are -- we are 
funneling people to an area that maybe isn't ready for visitors.  That's -- to be honest, 
that's the only reason I don't want to build it.  I mean can I build it?  Does the government 
ask me to do the smartest thing all the time?  No.  So, I could put that in that box and say 
you asked me to do it and you guys deal with -- we will -- we will put Joe's phone number 
there and call Joe when they step off.  Or Parks.  We will put Parks.   
 
Grove:  Well, I think that's kind of my -- to the point of my question, though, is -- is there 
something -- a mechanism that you would be, you know, able to help fund your -- like if it 
was -- in half your portion of, you know, going forward, so that it's not built now, but there 
is a mechanism for it to be built late -- later.   
 
Brown:  It would have to be a trust with the Parks Department, wouldn't it?  It wouldn't be 
something -- it is not something that the highway district -- the highway doesn't build 
pathways and that's truly what we are building there is a pathway.   
 
Dodson:  Mr. Chair?  Yeah.  Mr. Chair, Commissioner Grove, so, yeah, the best we would 
do is have him post a surety for it, but, then, we are just holding onto the surety for who 

64Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 61 of 88 

 

knows how long.  I -- after seeing the pictures I think I would rather strike that portion of 
that condition and just keep the pathway on Venable and, then, as -- I assume that 
property will redevelop at some point and, then, we won't have the issue that the applicant 
proposed.  You know, we don't want to promote people walking onto somebody's private 
property when there is no pathway down there for them to get to anyways at this point.  
There will be eventually, sooner rather than later, but, again, I would rather not create 
more of an issue than we need to.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  And I mean just a quick question.  You understand that they do want that 
pathway to go all the way to the end of that block row on Venable, just so it's more than 
obvious that that -- that should continue in the future.  And I'm the bike rider of the bunch, 
so I use these paths all the time.  Anywhere I can get on a bike I go on a bike, so --  
 
Brown:  So, explain that again, because I'm -- I'm --  
 
Seal:  What -- what Joe had said in the picture that's here -- it comes all the way down to 
Venable.  Just extend that down to the end of the block, so that -- not -- not to the pump 
house, but down to the end of Venable where you are going to cross Wrangler, but you 
don't have to cross Wrangler.  Just make sure it comes all the way down, so it's obvious 
that that -- that's meant to continue on.   
 
Brown:  Exactly.  Yes.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  I think -- I mean at that point I'm -- I'm comfortable with just striking that.  Do 
we know what item number that is?   
 
Dodson:  Mr. Chair, I do not, no.  I know it's a portion of a condition, so if you just were to 
say strike the requirement of the pathway being on the pump lot, I will know exactly what 
you are talking about.   
 
Brown:  11-C.   
 
Dodson:  Oh.  Okay.  The applicant came more prepared than staff.   
 
Brown:  And it's only the -- it's only the last -- last half of that sentence.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  So, 11-C dealing with the pathway on Venable.  Okay.  Thank you very 
much.  Anybody else?   
 
Yearsley:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Yearsley, go ahead.   
 
Yearsley:  So, I -- I might be a little slow today.  So, this came through before and you 
actually are already building the -- the townhomes and the apartments, is that my 
understanding?  Is that --  

65Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 62 of 88 

 

Brown:  That's correct.  And then -- and that's -- that's always been the plan.   
 
Yearsley:  Okay.   
 
Brown:  So, as a part of the development agreement it was specific to that and the concern 
was that -- as us doing that that we would build that street and that they would get that.  
There was some concern that the nine detached homes might not ever happen and that 
we would only do the apartments and so -- sorry, I thought I was speaking loud enough.  
So, that -- that's the way that it was done.  The zoning certificate, which has all the fine 
details, a bunch of this staff report is talking about the parking, you know, the number of 
units, well, that's all been looked at and addressed as a part of doing that and, basically, 
my job as I was looking at this is going what are you asking me to do that -- you are going 
to make me pull pipes out of the ground and move a building, what -- what is it that you 
are trying to -- and what can I still do that I haven't -- I mean I wouldn't be able to put in 
the ten foot pathway if I had the sidewalk in and they were -- I mean they are -- they are 
getting really close to getting there, so I -- I need to pass that on and make sure that that 
is a part of it.  I have already talked to the highway district, they are okay with us entering 
into a license agreement, because we are going to go across a couple of feet of their 
property and, then, the rest is going to be on the lots that are adjacent to that.  Does that 
help?   
 
Yearsley:  It does.  Like I said, I'm -- yeah.  I -- I -- it was -- once you said you were building 
I'm like -- I was a little confused, so I apologize for that confusion.   
 
Brown:  Realistically hard knocks of what I'm here for is I'm asking you to approve the 
lines that I have put on the drawing.  Basically everything else has already been approved.   
 
Yearsley:  Okay.   
 
Brown:  And the only one that is kind of different is the pathway.  Everything else has 
already been addressed.  I mean we had Mr. Hessing, which I know very well, talks about 
five designs.  I would say we had five designs before P&Z before we got to City Council 
and, then, it got changed again and so we have -- we have gone back and forth and I 
think -- I think it's going to be a nice neighborhood.  They got a really nice clubhouse.  
They have one of those pools that everybody wants.  I'm betting that your subdivision is 
Tuscany?   
 
Yearsley:  Absolutely.   
 
Brown:  And I did Tuscany years ago and there is not a drawing for Tuscany that has a 
pool shown on it.  It is what we put in the open spaces.  Messina that's to the south where 
those private streets are at that we talked about, they were shown there, but --  
 
Yearsley:  Right.   
 
Brown:  -- the northern portion was --  

66Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 63 of 88 

 

Yearsley:  Okay.  Thank you.   
 
Brown:  Thanks.   
 
Seal:  Madam Clerk, do we have anybody signed up to testify?   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Chair, we do not.   
 
Seal:  Oh, sir, come on up.  All right.  If you can give us your name and address for the 
record and the floor is yours.   
 
Simunich:  Hello, sir.  Commissioner, Mr. Brown, my name is Mike Simunich.  My parents 
are the Simuniches that own the property at the south end of Venable Lane.   
 
Seal:  And your address was --  
 
Simunich:  2715 North Venable Lane, Meridian.  83646.   
 
Seal:  Thank you.   
 
Simunich:  I'm here tonight to primarily make sure that we still have access through 
Venable Lane.  I have had discussions a year ago with Shannon Robnett, which I believe 
is the developer of Summerwind.  I have also had meetings with ACHD and maybe Mr. 
Brown could help me understand some of the plat map that's -- that's up here, but 
primarily I wanted to discuss that -- that photo with that vehicle in it if I could.  Now, I did 
enter into negotiations with ACHD and Shannon Robnett and explained to them that -- 
the history of Venable Lane.  My dad owned all of it.  He did transfer -- I'm not exactly 
sure how -- half of it -- roughly half of it to ACHD and in negotiations with Shannon Robnett 
-- keep in mind that my parents have a trustee through a bank and they made negotiations 
with Shannon Robnett.  Shannon Robnett has purchased part of Venable Lane that was 
privately owned by the Simuniches to be able to make that curve -- I believe it's called 
Wrangler to do what they need to do with the buffer houses between the apartments and 
the existing subdivision to the south.  There was I think originally kind of an S curve 
planned there that stayed off the Simunich property, but to put that buffer row of houses 
in there they needed to buy just a smaller portion of Venable Lane from the Simuniches 
through the bank and I'm to understand that they have done that.  So, A, I'm concerned 
about that we still have access and we will have access when this is finished, as this is 
our only access at this point in time.  The second thing is we are very concerned about 
having people come through, being the only agricultural place, we are still in the county 
surrounded by city.  I hate to use the word attractive nuisance, but we get a lot of visitors.  
We rent to a person with livestock.  We don't want to see gates open.  We don't want to 
see cattle ran, you know, so -- so, we have some -- some protections that we want to do 
to our property.  So, Shannon Robnett purchased a small part of Venable Lane from the 
Simuniches to be able to make that Wrangler curve.  We have a couple of agreements in 
-- in place and if -- if there is any way we could see that photo -- and I will try to -- try to 
keep up with what's going on here.  I'm sorry if I'm overextending my time.   

67Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 64 of 88 

 

Seal:  Okay.  Yeah.  If you could wrap it up real quick we would appreciate that.   
 
Simunich:  Okay.  So, this is the south part of Venable Lane.  Oops.  Where this vehicle 
is parked and, essentially, from right here about this rough corner there is a 40 foot wide 
Venable Lane owned by the Simuniches and there is a little bit of grass right here, you 
can't hardly see it, right past the -- the vehicle, that's a common area for the subdivision 
to the west.  From this point here that 40 feet is split 20 feet on the east to ACHD and 20 
feet to the Simuniches as far as -- I can't remember the name of the road right now that 
comes in from the west, but it's just 150, 200 feet, I believe.  That 20 feet grants us our 
access.  Shannon Robnett needed to buy part of that to be able to meet the Meridian city 
requirements and from what I understand through the bank we have sold it to them.  A 
couple of provisions.  I'm to understand that this fence is going to be continued 
northbound approaching Wrangler -- that curve in Wrangler and at some point in time 
given just a little bit of access, so we can park a vehicle without being on the street, there 
is going to be a 40 foot wide fence and gate placed there to help keep people off the 
private property.  Shannon Robnett has agreed to that and that 20 feet of what was ACHD, 
I'm to understand Shannon Robnett has given to us to square off that flag lot piece of 
property.  I'm going to have to do a little bit of research through ACHD to make sure that's 
the case that he hasn't promised something that he can't give, but I really don't want to 
see any kind of a sidewalk leading past this pump lot or low spot that -- that incorporates 
all of this right here, because we really don't want to invite people in and right -- right now 
we have had people there at 5:30 in the morning and -- and as late as 10:30 and 11:00 
o'clock at night.  Dogs bark.  Why are strangers on our property.  We have had private 
property signs.  They have been vandalized and removed.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  And I -- I think we discussed that earlier.  We are going to strike that condition 
and I think as far as the access to the road, there is nothing that would prevent access.  
So, I think that -- and -- and -- I mean I think the applicant would agree as well, as well as 
our staff from the City of Meridian that there is nothing in there that would prevent access. 
 
Simunich:  I don't have any negative comments to what's going on here at all, except I'm 
hoping that that east side of Venable Lane with that ten foot walkway or whatever 
walkway, you know, approaches Wrangler, yes, but really doesn't go any farther than 
Wrangler; right?  And I have to verify whether Shannon Robnett was able to give that to 
us or if ACHD still has that 20 foot section.  But I'm to understand we have access and 
that's primarily why I'm here tonight.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank you, sir.   
 
Simunich:  Thank you very much.  Unless you have any questions.   
 
Seal:  Thank you.  Okay.  If anybody else would like to testify?  Seeing none, anybody 
online?  I don't think so, but --  
 
Weatherly:  No, Mr. Chair.   
 

68Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 65 of 88 

 

Seal:  Okay.  All right.  If the applicant would like to come back up.   
 
Brown:  For the record Kent Brown.  3161 East Springwood.  And, yes, I understood that 
to get our plans approved we had to purchase a piece of right-of-way from the Simuniches 
to finalize that.  I am unaware from Mr. Robinette that -- about anything that would vacate 
that right of way is what it would have to be.  He would have to purchase that to -- from 
the highway district, even though the Simuniches are the ones that gave it to the highway 
district, you would have to purchase it.  So, that makes that kind of a challenge.  But it -- 
it -- the right-of-way stops at the location that he was talking about where that final fence 
is, where I was saying that that's where staff was asking us to run that pathway and we 
should be able to put a gate at that location.  I don't think ACHD wants that unimproved 
right of way, because it's not wide enough for them to put a street going south and that 
map that -- that I showed earlier there is a -- to the Simunich property, there is a stub 
street to the south and there is a stub street to the north that allows that property to have 
access in the future and be developed without the improvement or the extension of 
Venable.  I know that the Parks Department, what their hope is is that this pathway 
eventually will continue south in the alignment of that and go all the way down to the 
Creason Lateral where they do have a pathway and hoping that, then, that provides a 
connection to the park that's on the north side of Ustick.  That all makes sense, but it's 
whether the Simuniches and that out-parcel, that house, ever have to be subdivided and 
whether that ever comes into the jurisdiction in the city to make that happen or not.  So, 
that could be some time.  You want to look for properties around, Simuniches have some 
of these pieces all over.  I think that answers the questions that he had and I -- I will talk 
to him outside after.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Any other questions?  All right.  Thank you very much.  Appreciate that.  
Could I get a motion to close the public hearing for File No. H-2022-0005, Summertown 
Subdivision?   
 
Lorcher:  So moved.   
 
Yearsley:  Second.   
 
Seal:  I have a motion to close the public hearing for File No. H-2022-0005.  All in favor 
say aye.  Any opposed?  Okay.  Motion carries.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  TWO ABSENT.  
 
Seal:  I think this one is pretty straightforward, so if anybody has anything to add, let's do 
it quickly and, if not, then, we know we need to strike Condition A-3 and -- oh, yep.  A-3 
and, then, 11-C as it relates to the pathway on Venable.  A-3.  Alpha three.   
 
Grove:  Okay.  After considering all staff, applicant, and public testimony, I move to 
recommend -- recommend approval to the City Council of File No. H-2022-0005 as 
presented in the staff report for the hearing date of April 7th, 2022, with the following 

69Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 66 of 88 

 

modifications:  That we strike Condition A-3 and we modify Condition 11-C to not include 
any portion of the pathway south of Wrangler Street.   
 
Yearsley:  Second.   
 
Seal:  It's been moved and seconded to approve Item No. H-2022-0005 with the 
aforementioned modifications.  All in favor say aye.  Opposed?  Okay.  Motion carries.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
Seal:  Would you like a quick bio break or do we want to go ahead and trudge through?  
Okay.  We will take A five minute bio break and we will be right back.   
 
(Recess:  9:46 p.m. to 9:54 p.m.) 
 
 8.  Public Hearing for Records Apartments (H-2022-0008) by Brighton 
  Development, Inc., Located at on the Northeast Corner of N. Records  
  Way and E. Fairview Ave. 
 
  A.  Request: Conditional Use Permit for a multi-family development  
   consisting of 472 dwelling units in two (2) 5-story buildings on 10- 
   acres of land in the CG zoning district. 
 
Seal:  Okay.  We will go ahead and re-adjourn and we have got Records Apartment, File 
No. H-2022-0008 and if Bill's ready we will start with the staff report.  Sorry about that.   
 
Parsons:  Always ready.  I hope the Commission's ready to finish the night strong.  We 
are on the last one.   
 
Seal:  We are ready.   
 
Parsons:  All right.  Let's get to it.  And no more quotes from Bill tonight.  Let me stay 
silent here.  All right.  Next application before you tonight is the Records Apartment.  It's 
a conditional use and concurrently submitted with the conditional use was an alternative 
compliance request by the applicant to, essentially, change the comp -- the private open 
space requirements.  So, basically, allowing the units to either have no balcony space or 
a diminished balcony space from what the code currently requires of that 80 square feet.  
Director has approved that as part of this application submittal.  So, tonight all you are 
looking at is a conditional use for a multi-family development on approximately 9.95 acres 
of land in the C-G zoning district.  You can see here in the graphics before you this 
property is a mixed-use regional.  In that specific designation we anticipate residential 
densities between six and 40 dwelling units to the acre.  Back in 2007 this property was 
annexed in as part of The Village at Meridian project.  As part of that project there was a 
development agreement and it had a concept plan on this particular property.  However, 
the terms of that DA did not tie the concept plan to this particular property and the -- the 
DA was very flexible in allowing the applicant or the developer at that time or any 

70Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 67 of 88 

 

subsequent developer to relocate residential anywhere within that project, which this 
parcel is part of.  You can see here that it is vacant ground and it's bound -- it has Kleiner 
Park to the north and, then, CarMax to the east as well, which was also part of that 
development agreement.  So, the applicant is here tonight to discuss with you, again, a 
conditional use permit to develop 472 multi-family units in two phases.  The -- the unit 
count includes 84 studios, 208 one bedroom, 168 two bedroom units and three -- or, 
excuse me, 12 three bedroom units.  Gross density for this project in front of you tonight 
is 47.4 dwelling units to the acre.  So, we will round it down to 47.  As I mentioned to you, 
it is slightly above the target density in the Comprehensive Plan.  However, based on its 
proximity and that it's located in a mixed use regional area and proximity to a park and to 
a lifestyle center, an entertainment -- entertainment district, so to speak, staff is supportive 
of the bump in density as presented to you this evening.  Access to this development is 
from a couple different locations.  The -- the main -- or one access is from North Records 
Way, which is along the west boundary here.  The applicant is working with ACHD to 
obtain -- or I believe they have obtained approval of that access point and one of the 
requirements is to install a right-hand turn lane as part of those improvements.  I think this 
Commission is well aware that the UDC requires the applicant to get a waiver from the 
Council for that -- for that access, because they do have access from a lesser classified 
street along the north boundary, which is a shared access with the CarMax.  So, you can 
see here kind of in the upper north -- northeast corner here there is another access point 
into this development.  So, they will -- they will need -- the other caveat to this is they 
really need two points of access per the fire code as well, so it's -- that's what's kind of 
driving the need for this additional access point.  So, again, the applicant is working with 
the Fire Department, of course, working with ACHD and, then, ultimately, once you guys 
make your decision tonight they will recommend City Council action on the access point 
and any other conditions that they see fit as part of your -- your approval this evening.  
Off-street park -- if you had a chance to look at the staff report you know there are specific 
standards that go along with multi-family developments.  Amenities.  Open space.  
Parking.  Staff did raise a couple concerns in the staff report regarding parking, the 
amount of open space.  We were able to meet with the applicant at the beginning of the 
week to talk about some of those issues, so the site plan tonight does show additional 
parking along the east boundary and that's the graphic on the right here.  They propose 
to add some additional parallel stalls here to mitigate the parking concerns.  The other 
item that we talked about was open space and specifically common open space.  In this 
particular case I think this body is aware back a year or so ago we did change our multi-
family open space standards and what has happened is we have required a base line 
open space, which is basically any project over five acres has to provide a minimum of 
ten percent open space, plus a 5,000 square foot central open space in addition to a 
certain amount of open space based on the square footage of the residential units.  In 
this particular case that has resulted in the applicant having to provide almost 37 percent 
of the site in open space and that -- again, the reason for that change was we wanted to 
make sure the denser you went the more open space and the more amenities you 
provided to go along with the number of units and density.  So, we were trying to create 
a code that would correlate density with open space.  We did do a good job, in my opinion.  
This is one of those cases where -- but what we also did as part of that revamp is we 
allowed the applicant to go through the alternative compliance in certain circumstances 

71Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 68 of 88 

 

and -- and, then, in staff's opinion this is one of those circumstances.  Unfortunately, we 
do not have an alternative compliance tonight to discuss with you to -- to tell you whether 
or not it -- it warrants -- or if we would approve that application or not.  So, essentially, 
what you see here tonight -- the applicant provided an open space exhibit.  They had 
approximately 2.7 acres of open space as part of this exhibit that's in front of you.  Based 
on the current code the applicant's required to provide 3.74 acres.  So, they are almost 
an acre short on this particular site based on the current code.  But as -- as I mentioned 
to you and in discussions with the applicant they do plan on pursuing alternative 
compliance with their certificate of zoning compliance application.  But certainly it's 
typically not something that's part of your purview, but since this is a conditional use 
permit and you guys are the decision-making body on this application, you have the ability 
to weigh in on whether or not the density is appropriate as far as the number of units.  Is 
the open space adequate.  Is there adequate parking for the site and so on.  Just like you 
always have on any other CUP that's come before you.  So, I wanted to mention to you 
the -- the site needed a minimum parking of 822 stalls and it looks like, again, the applicant 
is meeting that.  As far as amenities, I won't go into that, because you have had a long 
evening, but I can tell you the amenity package that the applicant is proposing is in excess 
of UDC standards.  So, they need four or more based on the number of units.  They are 
well in excess of that.  And not to mention they have a regional park right across the 
street.  I would mention to you that during the pre-application meeting with the applicant 
we were concerned with just pedestrian access in this area, because of the amount of 
vehicles coming into The Village and going to the park and that roundabout.  Usually 
those aren't pedestrian friendly.  However, we did reach out to ACHD to try to get input 
from them on that topic and they said that nothing really warranted any additional 
pedestrian enhancements.  But as part of this project the applicant was nice enough to 
indulge the city and actually construct a multi-use pathway along the west boundary to 
help facilitate not only bicyclists, but also pedestrians and guide them closer to the park.  
So, we didn't get exactly what we had hoped from ACHD, but the applicant was willing to 
work with us on a safer pedestrian connection if you will, a wider sidewalk along that 
roadway to try to address someone of staff's concerns.  One other item as far as the open 
space that -- that we have gone back and forth with the applicant is whether or not the 
landscape buffers along the collector roads and the arterial street should count towards 
the required open space.  There is a provision of code in the multi-family standards that 
when open space is adjacent to a collector or an arterial you have the ability to allow that, 
make a recommendation of whether that's appropriate.  In this particular case typically 
when we analyze a project staff will look at a project and say, okay, what's required as far 
as -- as part of development.  Usually a street buffer along a collector.  an arterial is a 
dimensional standard in the UDC.  It's not an open space requirement.  However, in the 
residential section of the code buffers -- residential buffers are allowed to count towards 
the open space.  But in multi-family it's -- it's not explicitly spelled out to allow those, but 
it gives you the authority to determine whether or not it's appropriate.  So, in this particular 
case we did work with the applicant.  You can see on their exhibit here they are short of 
their buffer requirements in some of the areas and they know that and they are going to 
address that with -- with their site plan as they go through that CZC process, but they 
would like you to take that under consideration to include those buffers as part of their 
open space tonight.  Again, I know it's kind of a moot point, because they are so deficient 

72Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 69 of 88 

 

from what the code requires and we don't have alternative compliance at this point, but 
it's something that needs to get analyzed and part of your purview this evening and, again, 
as I mentioned to the applicant, they could take up this conversation with City Council, 
too, as they take -- have them take -- take action on their access point to North Records 
Way.  The applicant did submit alternative -- or, excuse me, conceptual elevations that 
you see here.  So, anything that goes forward you can see it's a five story structure.  It's 
really one structure kind of connected with a breezeway and, then, ties into the clubhouse 
here and the central amenities.  I think the one thing unique about this project is just the 
-- the pockets of open space spread out between the units.  I think it's a good way to -- 
because Fairview is such a modern -- or a busy arterial, it's a good way to kind of screen 
and quiet down that open space as people try to recreate on the site.  So, I will go back 
to the elevations.  Again, as you all know, it will come back through certificate of zoning 
compliance and administrative design review and anything that they propose to construct 
on the site would need to comply with our architectural standards manual.  Looking at the 
public record this afternoon we did receive public testimony from Tom and Liz Anthony.  
Their primary concerns was with the amount of traffic that would be generated from the 
development and, then, staff also received written testimony from the applicant and they 
would like you to act on their -- on a couple of conditions of approval.  I think that's in front 
of you now, but I will just -- in summary I will tell you what they are asking.  Delete condition 
number two, which I think is in correlation with the density and staff is amenable with that 
being waived.  They did acknowledge that they plan on seeking Council waiver on the 
access to Records Way and, then, we would have to modify a condition that all area -- 
that they are going to seek alternative compliance to the baseline open space standards 
that are currently in code.  With that staff is recommending approval and I will stand for 
any questions you may have.   
 
Seal:  Would the applicant like to come forward?   
 
Wardle:  Commissioners, good evening.  For the record my name is Jon Wardle.  My 
address is 2929 West Navigator, Suite 400, in Meridian, Idaho.  Pull this up really quick.  
I appreciate the opportunity to -- to be in front of you tonight.  I know it's a long night and 
I will provide some input here and stand for any questions you have at the end of the 
discussion this evening.  As mentioned, the project that we are proposing is within the 
master plan that's already been approved, which is The Village.  As Bill mentioned that 
was approved back in 2007.  Came in with a master plan with associated densities and 
uses and it's become really kind of the crown jewel of this part of Meridian, where you 
have a lifestyle center with a lot of entertainment, shopping and restaurants, but also 
probably the thing that I -- is -- is most iconic here is Kleiner Park, which is a 60 acre -- I 
don't know if we call it an urban park, a suburban park, but it is a well-designed, well-used 
facility, which is a key part of this part of Meridian.  You know, when The Village was 
proposed there were a variety of uses for The Village.  Shopping.  Restaurants.  
Entertainment.  Employment.  City parks.  And also this little element called living; right?  
If you go back and look at the master plan none of the living was identified, but it was part 
of the approval.  Of note we actually brought in the very first living opportunity to The 
Village, which was Bri.  A hundred and sixty-six residences on 2.44 acres and for those 
keeping score at home that's a density of 68.5 units per acre.  Part of that is -- it's right 

73Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 70 of 88 

 

across from the city park and all the lifestyle elements and that's a CUP that we went 
through before here in the city.  It is a mixed-use regional designation for the comp plan, 
which has some benchmarks.  One of the benchmarks is 50 percent of that as a 
commercial benchmark, but also the benchmark in the mixed use regional is at least ten 
percent of it be residential in a desired range of anywhere from six to forty units per acre.  
The total acreage was 255 -- 258 acres with 60 of those being the Kleiner Park.  
Specifically we are -- we have 9.95 acres.  Just to show you where we are, it's this little 
red area and we will zoom in here a little bit more.  We are north of Fairview, east of 
Records, South of Elden Gray and west of the CarMax.  The project does have 27 percent 
open space with a variety of different type of residences throughout the project of both 
studios, one bedroom, two bedroom and three bedroom.  Access to -- go back here really 
quick.  This is showing kind of a bird's-eye view -- if you were up above the intersection 
looking to the northeast, we are planning two residential buildings, as Bill mentioned, 
connected together by the community center clubhouse between the two.  They are five 
story buildings.  Something to note that the first level of each of these buildings is a 
parking garage and so you will come in underneath the structures off of the drive aisle, 
which I will show you in just a second.  We have over 57 percent of the entire parking is 
within the parking structure and the rest of the parking is surface around the sides and 
internal between the two buildings.  Both of the parking garages in or off of Elden Gray      
-- you could get there off of Records, but the -- the main access is where there are existing 
curb cuts into the CarMax.  We have aligned the parking garages into those, so they both 
come in underneath and to the north on this one and to the south on this one.  The 
northern building has 206 units and that's our phase one.  We will also have a 9,500 
square foot clubhouse.  I will get into amenities here in a minute with a pool.  That would 
be phase one.  Then phase two would be the building that would be south adjacent to 
Fairview.  I will note maybe -- I show you on a different slide.  What is unique here about 
the parking that's outside of the parking structures is with the exception of that which is 
interior, it is just a single parking stall on each side of a drive aisle.  So, we don't have the 
sea of parking that you would have in other uses and even when you look at The Village 
across the street where you can see right here where there is a huge parking field, sea 
of parking and, then, the building's interior we have actually been able to distribute the 
parking in a way around the building so it does not dominate the site and that's part of the 
-- the beauty of being able to do parking structures.  In terms of open space and amenities, 
like Bill mentioned we have a lot here.  If you were to look at the buildings from above, 
which we are doing here in this exhibit, there are some areas which are in the middle.  
Those would be on the second level.  So, the parking structures below and these green 
areas in the middle, these buildings are on the second level deck, just like we did at Bri.  
So, if you go and you see Bri, the amenities are up above street level.  We have a 9,500 
square foot clubhouse with workout spaces, Zoom rooms, gaming rooms, entertainment 
lounge areas.  There is a -- kind of a warming kitchen and an area where if you had a 
larger gathering you could do that.  A pet spa.  A place for kids.  The entire complex will 
be wi-fi connected.  The pool will be resort style, meaning there is lots of area to the 
outside in that pool area.  Barbecue areas as well.  In the courtyards -- and I can show 
you some examples if you want to know what these are, but snook ball, which is, basically, 
a billiards with your feet.  Cornhole seating areas.  Fire pits.  Shade areas.  And the south 
ping pong, some of the same with seating areas.  Fire table.  One of the things that -- to 

74Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 71 of 88 

 

note is we will be completing almost a quarter mile of regional pathway.  Now, Fairview 
has a piece of that already, but there is a gap -- CarMax built a five foot sidewalk.  We 
are building a ten foot sidewalk along our frontage on Fairview and, then, we will wrap the 
corner and come north to connect into Kleiner Park.  If you read the ACHD staff report a 
five foot is required.  If you look at the city's plans there actually is no pathway planned 
for this.  It was a recommendation and we -- we thought that it made a lot of sense to 
make that connection where we have that area to come to the north.  So, that's what the 
red represents here is that regional pathway that we are connecting.  Here is just a quick 
picture if you were on Records looking into the site, this is the pool area with the clubhouse 
on the right, as well as clubhouse behind.  It's a two-story clubhouse with some meeting 
rooms and things on the first floor and recreation fitness areas up on the second floor.  
You get access into the clubhouse both from the ground floor garages, as well as the 
second floor.  So, you can get to the clubhouse without going outside if you don't want to.  
It doesn't show here very well, but there is corridors going into each of these buildings.  
One of the things that we -- we have done and it's noted in the ordinance for open space 
for multi-family is how do you treat these required landscape buffers.  The city has always 
-- and required this and we have always tried to look at them as a way to give something 
back to the community and not just do the minimum and we have seen that.  You know, 
you could just do grass and a few trees here and there.  We are actually going above and 
beyond what that would be.  Along Fairview we have a combination of a thick hedge, as 
well as what we are showing here, these decorative barriers.  So, you really won't be 
seeing cars parked along Fairview, they will be screened behind.  We also have that same 
combination coming north up Records.  We have a little wider area to the north, but in 
areas along here.  Bill did note that we were perhaps a little deficient on some buffers and 
I will show that to you here in just a second.  But that -- the barrier will be a minimum of 
four and a half feet and, then, there will also be alternating hedges that will be evergreens, 
which will provide year around screening along those two roadways.  There are really 
three items that we wanted to address with you quickly tonight.  The first one is density.  
You know, this is a mixed use regional area.  We have Fairview, which is a -- a principal 
arterial.  You have Eagle, which is a principal arterial, as well as a state highway.  These 
corridors were designed -- intended to carry a significant amount of traffic, but there is a 
lot of traffic that comes in and through the area, but as you know in these mixed use 
regional areas the desire for density allows that daytime population to actually stay a little 
bit longer.  If you read some of the information that the developer of The Village has put 
out, there are 200,000 plus daytime visitors within this area.  Meaning there is lots of 
people coming in and through using the area, but there aren't a lot that are staying later 
at night in the evening and so here is a housing opportunity, again, showing you -- this is 
Bri up to the north, which was approved.  It's nearly 67 units to the acre and, then, this is 
Records here to the south and we are at about 47 units to the acre.  It's also important to 
bring that density into projects like this, because they do support the commercial.  In all 
of the -- The Village there is currently almost 900,000 square feet of commercial uses 
there today.  If you look south -- just south on this side, there is another 700,000 square 
feet of commercial uses there today and here is an opportunity where we have the 
commercial uses and services, we have grocery, we have city park, we have 
transportation -- hopefully soon a Valley-Ride implements that bus system for this area.  
I know it's long programmed.  It got a little delayed with COVID, but I think they are still 

75Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 72 of 88 

 

on track to do that at some point.  This is the right area for projects like this, because the 
services are there, the amenities are there, it's also part of the transportation system.  We 
are asking, as Bill noted, that we -- that the Commission delete condition number two.  
Access is pretty straightforward.  This one we -- we are going to go to Council.  It's a 
requirement based on the UDC and we also see these little nuances with UDC that 
sometimes there are conflicts with other important things, such as life safety.  This 
connection to Records is important.  It will be a right-in, right-out as you may know already.  
Records is divided.  You cannot go back and forth across Records.  If you want to go 
south on Records you will go to the roundabout and come back down.  Same thing if you 
come out of The Village, you can't go north on that unless you want to go back and work 
through the site.  So, this is really a right-in, right-out for us off of Records.  It does provide 
access into the site for some of the parking, but it also provides that key corridor that we 
are showing here for life safety.  This will go to Council.  It's just -- it's a waiver requirement 
and any recommendations or approvals you have as well.  I mean the Council is going to 
see this project, so I just wanted to let you know that.  Then the last item is amenities and 
open space.  Commissioner Seal, myself, and -- and Bill all participated in the open space 
discussion and it was a lengthy discussion.  If you look at the prior open space 
requirements for multi-family in some cases they were deficient.  There was a lot of 
discussion back and forth about what the right number or what right percentage, but 
ultimately when it came down to it was, you know, we do need to have a baseline.  I think 
in this case that baseline shows that given the location here that baseline probably doesn't 
make sense.  In our opinion doesn't make sense when you are across the street from a 
60 acre park, but you are also providing residential uses in an area that can support the 
existing commercial uses that are there.  We are providing currently 27 percent open 
space and our amenity package is fairly robust.  We recognize the -- our residents that 
will live here and the services that they want, but I will tell you that they will be spending 
a lot of time in an asset that the city has prepared for the city residents as a whole, which 
is Kleiner Park.  They will be able to walk across the street.  Have dinner over at The 
Village and participate in entertainment, whether it be movies or a Big Al's bowling, 
whatever it might be.  So, we are asking that condition 4-M be modified and I will bring 
that up here right now in just one second.  Sorry.  There is one little area right here that 
we showed that our buffer on record is less than ideal.  The reason for that is anybody 
who has traveled here you do know that there -- there can be some traffic and so working 
with ACHD and providing a -- a turning pocket into the project, instead of backing that up 
into Records, it does cut into that to a little bit and so that's why we are a little bit less than 
the standard requirement there, but we also have that ten foot pathway coming up along 
Records that will tie into the city park.  So, our request tonight before you is that we -- is 
that condition two be deleted, which is related to the density.  Condition 4-K we are taking 
-- we will take to City Council and Condition 4-M we are asking that it be modified and 
that given the project's proximity to Kleiner Park the applicant shall submit alternative 
compliance application for the baseline open space requirement.  We did have a lot of 
conversation with staff this week.  We -- where it really landed was the staff felt like this 
conversation was going to go to Council anyways and so we didn't hurry -- we didn't get 
the alternate compliance in before the meeting tonight, but we are committing to do the 
alternative compliance, so that issue can be addressed and, again, I know that Council 

76Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 73 of 88 

 

will be looking at this as well.  So, with that we just ask for your approval with our 
modifications on Records and stand for any questions you might have.  Thank you.   
 
Seal:  Thank you.  Do you have any questions for the applicant or staff?   
 
Yearsley:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Yearsley, go ahead.   
 
Yearsley:  So, I'm assuming you did a traffic study with this facility.  What -- what came 
out of that with ACHD?   
 
Wardle:  Mr. Chair, Commissioner Yearsley, it's a great question.  Yes, we did do -- let 
me back up.  When this project was reviewed and the traffic was analyzed and there were 
improvements that were both the Fairview and Eagle Road, there was a target density or 
use on this already.  So, there was 200,000 square feet of office space and another 
hundred units of residential.  ACHD looked at these and said they are, basically, the same, 
there is no difference.  The -- the main difference is there is probably a little bit more 
overall traffic with our residential piece, but the peak hours drop and so overall there might 
be a little bit more.  I think it was within, you know, five percent of the overall traffic, but 
that was not -- ACHD determined that a traffic study was not needed because it was 
already captured in the original approval.   
 
Yearsley:  Okay.  Because I -- I would assume that you would have a lot of trip capture 
with being so close to the other amenities that they would not need to travel, so that's why 
-- I was just kind of curious, because it was brought up in some of the other comments 
earlier, so --  
 
Wardle:  Mr. Chair, Commissioner Yearsley, you are correct.  The -- short of doing a -- a 
specific study for residents who live here, they just base it off of, you know, what the 
trends say.  I -- I believe that the trips will be less for that very point, because of all the 
services that are out here already.  It's super unique to have a park, to have three grocery 
stores -- actually, four grocery stores within a mile of this and have all the entertainment 
as well.  We don't have many of these opportunities in Meridian currently and so I believe 
that the trips will actually be less, but based on ITD -- or ITE numbers that's what it would 
be.   
 
Yearsley:  Okay.  Thank you.   
 
Wardle:  Thank you.   
 
Seal:  Anyone else?  All right.  Thank you.   
 
Wardle:  Thank you very much.   
 
Seal:  Madam Clerk, do we have people signed up?   

77Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 74 of 88 

 

Weatherly:  Mr. Chair, we do.  First up is Scott Dykstra.   
 
Seal:  Good evening.   
 
Dykstra:  Good evening, everyone.  It's so nice to see you all.  Mr. Chair, Commissioners.   
 
Seal:  We will need your name and address for the record, please, and the floor is yours.  
 
Dykstra:  Scott Dykstra.  My address is 4260 East Venture Circle, Meridian, Idaho.  83646.   
 
Seal:  Thank you, sir.   
 
Dykstra:  I'm, first of all, happy to say good evening and not good morning.  We will be 
out of here before midnight.  So, thank you for your service and your time.  I live right next 
to Kleiner Park.  We purchased our home there 18 years ago and at the time this was all 
a sod farm and -- and many of you remember those days and when The Village was 
developed, just an interesting timeline, this 24 acres that includes CarMax and -- and the 
project site we are looking at tonight, was not part of the original Village, it was actually a 
separate parcel that was owned by one of the Kleiner brothers, instead of both of the 
Kleiner brothers, and so that -- that piece got developed later and so when they came in 
and sold to the first half of this piece, they did notify the 14 neighbors that live in this little 
subdivision called Venture Sub and so we are all on a one acre lot.  We are on Venture, 
which ties into Elden Gray, which is on the north side of this property.  So, this property, 
when it gets developed, is going to feed on to Elden Gray, then, Elden Gray goes to the 
east and hits Venture and Venture comes out right there at Bright Bank -- between Bright 
Bank and CarMax and so we are a little tiny country road with 14 houses that have seen 
all of this growth and all of this development and when they sold the piece for CarMax we 
all showed up at the City Council meeting and the City Council told us, oh, don't worry, 
Ada County Highway District says you won't have any traffic on your road.  Ada County 
Highway District -- and Bill remembers this, because we talked about it the other day -- 
Ada County Highway District said we will put up a sign on Venture that says don't come 
this way to go to CarMax, go down the road and go around the corner.  That worked really 
well, because we all know people stop and read signs and say, oh, we are not going to 
turn there.  They told CarMax you will put up a gate, so that people can't -- when they test 
drive their car, pull out of your lot and go onto Venture, which is the street next to CarMax, 
and drive down Venture and drive into our cul-de-sac and turn around and -- and test 
drive the car and sit in front of my house and turn on the radio and the headlights and 
figure out how everything works.  Of course that didn't work either.  But we were told as 
homeowners it's okay, you know, that's not what that lot was supposed to be.  It was 
supposed to be professional office space five days a week, 9:00 to 5:00, doctor's offices, 
dentists offices.  Don't worry, it's now a car lot, but -- but it's okay, you are not going to 
get any traffic and, then, we were told the next piece that they sold was just going to be 
office spaces.  It wasn't going to be anything more than that.  And now here we are and 
they are talking about putting 400 and some odd houses -- apartments there.  So, I 
understand growth is coming.  I totally appreciate that.  But my concern is Ada County 
Highway District, when they did their review, said here is the traffic on Fairview, here is 

78Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 75 of 88 

 

the traffic on Records.  They used numbers on Fairview back off of 2017.  They used 
numbers on -- on Records based off of 2020 before Brighton even built Bri with that 166 
residences and they actually gave no data on Elden Gray and didn't give us any traffic 
numbers for Elder Gray at all.  So, I challenge you to go back to Ada County Highway 
District and say can we at least get some updated numbers and, then, my next request 
would be that you take Venture, our street, and you give us a dead end.  So, right behind 
Bright Bank and the entrance to CarMax you put a fire truck access and you just close us 
off from anything that they want to do, which is fine with us, because we know the growth 
is coming, we know the traffic is going to be there, just don't put it on our street and, then, 
you can take that private lane between CarMax and this new development and if it's not 
a problem to have all that traffic, bring that lane out to Fairview and make that a right-in, 
right-out on Fairview.  It meets Ada County Highway District guidelines and Ada County 
Highway District can go and approve that and say, yeah, that looks good to us.  Does this 
go back to Ada County Highway District, just out of curiosity?   
 
Seal:  My understanding is, no, it does not.  That time has past.   
 
Dykstra:  Also just know that we were never notified.  So, when you look at your little 
notes there and it says, yeah, we had a neighborhood meeting and nobody showed up, 
that's because nobody told us, because we are just outside of that 300 foot requirement.  
So, there is 14 homeowners and there is a few more here tonight, they are all sitting there 
going, gosh, that would have been good to know about.   
 
Seal:  Okay.   
 
Dykstra:  Thank you for your time.   
 
Seal:  Thank you, sir.  Madam Clerk. 
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Chair, Michelle Loechel?  Sorry.   
 
Seal:  Fancy meeting you here.  Go ahead and give us your name and address, Michelle.   
 
Loechel:  My name is Michelle Loechel.  I live at 1405 East Venture Circle.  Can you hear 
me now?  Okay.  Do I need to restate?  Okay.  I am one of the neighbors of Scott.  As he 
mentioned, one of the concerns that we do have is while we do appreciate the beauty 
and the amount of work and effort and design that went into that, the question is is this 
the appropriate location for it for 472 housing units, as well as an additional thousand 
cars.  If you guys have ever been through that area it is incredibly hard during those 
congestion times.  I think the gentleman also mentioned, you know, 800,000 people go 
through that area during the day.  The traffic congestion is just crazy.  So, maybe one of 
the questions would be can we limit that down to 200.  The concern would -- is also on 
Elden Gray.  Elden Gray is barely a two lane road.  We often have CarMax unloading 
their trucks on Elden Gray and if anybody is parked on the opposite side of the street that 
street is often down to less than one lane and you have to piggyback and get cars -- you 
have to zigzag through to get cars in and out of there.  So, the concern is cars leaving 

79Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 76 of 88 

 

and taking that right to go out, there is just simply no space to do that.  The other concern 
is as cars come out of Walmart that comes there, the other traffic concern is -- is that you 
can only take a right out of Walmart and so what often happens is that people do U-turns 
right there in front of that exact same area.  So, this area is very heavily congested.  As 
Scott mentioned, we also didn't receive any of the notifications.  So, thank you very much 
for your beautifully designed website and all your resources that are there, because, 
otherwise, we would not have known about any of this.  So, thank you.  And, then, I think 
the last thing that we also had concerns is we would like an updated traffic study as he 
mentioned and, then, we would also like to understand a little bit more about how that's 
going to impact the wells in the area.  Several of these older homes were in 
unincorporated Meridian, so we are all on wells and water and irrigation water there and 
several of us are running into issues where the wells are running dry in that area, so we 
would like to understand a little bit more about how that is going to be affected.   
 
Seal:  All right.   
 
Loechel:  Thank you.   
 
Seal:  Thank you very much.   
 
Weatherly:  Mr. Chair, that's all I have that signed up.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Anybody else in Chambers would like to come up and testify?  Come right 
up.  Good evening.  Just give us your name and address for the record, please.   
 
Allison:  Toni Allison at 1108 Northwest 4th Street in Meridian.  83642.  I am here to 
represent the Meridian Senior Center.  I am president of the board and our concern, of 
course, is the traffic and the safety for our seniors.  I would like to -- I don't need to point 
out, but I will that this beautiful new development -- it is gorgeous as Bri -- or Brighton 
always does, is as exhibited by their complex -- the Bri complex by the park, but what I 
would like to point out is that this is less than half a mile from the busiest intersection in 
the state of Idaho.  The amenities that Jon mentioned that surround the development, 
The Village, the shopping across Fairview, would greatly be affected by traffic.  I know 
that it's within walking distance, but the pedestrians would have a great deal of trouble 
getting across Fairview, getting across Records Way, because of all the traffic.  So, I 
would think -- or make an assumption that they would choose to get in their cars to drive 
across this road and, of course, if you are shopping you need something to carry all those 
groceries in.  So, I would still anticipate that there would be a lot of vehicle traffic, as 
opposed to pedestrian traffic, unless they were to put a walkway over Records Way into 
The Village.  But the other thing that I would like to point out is that if you visited Kleiner 
Park it is a very popular park and it is very much used and this would greatly add to that 
population in the park, which would cause -- I don't know how to put it -- wear and tear on 
the park and in an exorbitant way, but, you know, I have nothing bad to say about 
Brighton, they do a beautiful job and -- and that facility is remarkable.  But, again, at some 
point we have to say something about the traffic.  I live in downtown Meridian in the old 
section of Meridian and travel to that area, because I do frequent the center and it's -- 

80Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 77 of 88 

 

what used to take ten minutes now takes 30 minutes to just go down Fairview Avenue 
three miles.  So, I can't imagine how much more traffic there would be with a facility such 
as is being considered tonight.  So, thank you very much for your time.   
 
Seal:  Perfect timing.  Look at that.  Okay.  Do we have anybody else in Chambers that 
would like to come up?  Oh.  Sir, if you want to come on up.  Let's get you up to the 
microphone, please.   
 
Koehmstedt:  I'm Gary Koehmstedt.  I'm with the Meridian Senior Center also.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  And your address, please?   
 
Koehmstedt:  1653 East Daulby Street in Meridian.   
 
Seal:  Thank you.   
 
Koehmstedt:  That's where I live.   
 
Seal:  Okay.   
 
Koehmstedt:  Okay.  The -- I visit the senior center a lot and it's getting busier and busier 
and busier, which is good for the senior center.  We like that.  However, Records is the 
problem.  We have one lane going in and, basically, two lanes going out.  One that can 
turn right and one that can go straight, but it's -- it's basically one lane that splits at the 
end and you are waiting all the time with a single circle go around and, then, when you 
come to the end of Records or where it splits to go to the center or to the park or where 
ever and the traffic on that, if this goes in, I would suggest a traffic count go on Records 
to find out whether that traffic is that much or not.  But it's -- it's very busy.  You wait at 
the light a long time to go down Records and there is a lot of people when you go down 
Records to go to the shopping center you got to go around the go around to go into the 
shopping center, so they got to go all the way down Records and if they have a place to 
turn in or people trying to come out they are going to have problems from -- from their 
building that they plan on putting an entrance into Records.  Yeah.  My objection is 
basically the traffic on Records.  Either expand it or deny it.  Thank you.   
 
Seal:  Thank you, sir.  Ma'am, if you want to come up.  Do you still want to come up?  
Come on up.   
 
Johnson:  Good evening.   
 
Seal:  Good evening.   
 
Johnson:  My name is Karen Johnson.  I live at 4091 East Spearfish Drive in Meridian.  It 
is two streets away from the proposed project and I would just like to point out what I'm 
hearing tonight is a project that is short on buffers, short on open space and over in units 
and I'm very charged about this.  I have been there four years at our house.  We bought 

81Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 78 of 88 

 

our house four years ago.  We moved from California to get out of the high density, crazy 
traffic, crime riddled area and I feel like this is all playing out again here.  In the four years 
that we have been here we have witnessed -- this will be the sixth project, if approved, 
that is a high density or multi-density project.  Most of them are on Records.  So, we have 
the Veraso, we have Bri, we have The Lofts at The Village.  In the last month we have 
witnessed ourselves, my husband and I, a smash and grab at the Walmart.  We have 
witnessed car accidents on Records.  We have gotten caught in the middle of a standoff 
at The Lofts Apartments with the SWAT team there and, you know, this was a really great, 
nice cohesive neighborhood with amenities when we moved in and it's rapidly changing 
and all of these projects are less than a mile apart from each other.  Probably closer to a 
half mile.  When -- when is there enough high density housing?  When is it -- when is 
there enough?  When does it stop?  There is one more open lot on Records.  My guess 
is somebody's going to come in and ask for that space to -- to be -- to have 600 to 800 
units.  It's a big lot.  Every street that would be impacted by this project is a two lane street.  
There is two lanes that go where Big Al's and Marshall's is.  I can't remember the name 
of it.  There is also one where the Boise Co-Op is.  Records is a two-lane.  The -- what is 
it called?  East Eden Gray or whatever it is -- is a two lane.  And the street that goes out 
to Fairview by CarMax is a two lane.  So, if you have 472 units, that's got to be at least a 
thousand additional cars.  There are times that you come toward Eagle on Fairview and 
I try to turn right and come down Records and because of the roundabout you can't even 
get off of Fairview as it stands.  So, I can't imagine an entrance into this place on Records 
prior to the roundabout.  It makes no sense.  I was a city planner in California.  Never 
have I ever seen anything like that.  So, I really hope that you will either deny this project 
altogether or modify it.  Thank you.   
 
Seal:  Thank you.  Have anybody else in Chambers that would like come up and testify?  
I take it there is nobody online?   
 
Weatherly:  Not with their hand raised, sir.   
 
Seal:  All right.  If the applicant would like to come back up.   
 
Wardle:  Can I -- yeah, can I share again?  Commissioners, for the record Jon Wardle.  
2929 West Navigator, Meridian, Idaho.  83642.  Appreciate the comments that were 
brought tonight.  We do spend a lot of time in public outreach and meetings and things 
like that.  I -- all I can say is we sent notices out to the list that we were provided and I -- 
it was not our intention to exclude anyone.  So, I don't want you to get the wrong 
impression like we tried to minimize the radius on this.  We -- we spend a lot of time in 
these discussions and I -- you know, the -- we appreciate the neighbors coming out tonight 
and also respectful of -- of the things that they have said.  With respect to -- to this project, 
as I, you know, mentioned before, you know, there is -- there is a lot of growth here.  I 
can't -- I can't neglect that or -- or -- or push it off, but at the same time this growth was 
anticipated.  There were decisions made many years ago and also improvements 
promised and that have been made based on the uses that are here.  There continue to 
be improvements made and there will be other improvements made by ACHD in the 
future.  I want to be clear that the traffic -- there was a traffic study that anticipated what 

82Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 79 of 88 

 

all the uses here would be and as I mentioned before, the use at this location was CarMax 
as well.  It was all intended to be something other than what is there, but they had 
calculated what that traffic would be.  ACHD has reviewed that.  They -- we -- we sat 
down and we talked with them.  We met with them on the use here and they -- they 
compared what was previously approved and what this was and was viewed as, basically, 
the same in terms of traffic.  Whether it is this project or office uses or something else, 
there are already imputed uses -- implied uses in this area that will happen.  I think one 
of the benefits here, you know, if it was an office type project, again, that's a daytime user.  
They come here during the day and they leave, whereas with this it's kind of reverse with 
the residential.  It would be great and likely to be many of our residents who actually work 
nearby, but there will be some that will be driving out, but their commute will be a little bit 
different than that of those coming into The Village during the day.  So, we -- we believe 
that this does complement the -- the uses that are at The Village currently, that are south 
in Crossroads in Meridian and that will continue to be out in this area.  Yes, Eagle Road 
and Fairview are busy.  But they -- those corridors were anticipated for that and there are 
traffic -- there is traffic and peak hour traffic and this -- this project -- the Records project 
is built into that model.  Related to the other items that were mentioned or there was a 
question about water and things like that, we do have a water right in turn -- both surface, 
as well as groundwater right.  We anticipate that the surface water right is sufficient, but 
we will also -- the area that will be irrigated will be much less and we will use the surface 
water rights to begin with for this project, just like we do with all the other projects.  There 
-- there is a little history related to the open space and I'm at least one of three of us who 
have been part of that history and as I -- as discussed with staff and, you know, there 
were conversations this week and acknowledgments, as well as sometimes when you 
start actually looking or applying what the ordinance is or inferring what it might be, you 
know, there are going to be questions that come up.  I do know with all the projects we 
have ever done, including multi-family projects, the landscape buffers on arterials and 
collector roads have always counted and there is an interpretation here by staff that 
maybe they don't count.  We don't agree with that and at the same time there are -- I think 
you will be hard-pressed to find any other multi-family project that is -- with this amount 
of open space that we are showing even with the deficiency.  We feel that this is the right 
place for multi-family.  Will it change the -- the nature of the community?  It will.  It will be 
different.  But we feel like the design, the way that the -- the project is, the way that it will 
reflect upon a growing part of Meridian and The Village is representative and appropriate 
for this location.  We are excited to be able to bring some additional living opportunities 
to The Village and also support the commercial uses there already and not just a daytime 
use.  We -- we are also respectful of the -- the Kleiner Park and the things that are going 
on there.  In fact, we have made a commitment that we are building and will give to the 
city it's unrelated to this, but I think it's important to note, especially for those that have a 
certain interest is we are building pickleball courts at Kleiner Park and that should happen 
this summer and those will be available for the city and the residents here.  So, we are 
not just trying to do something without being thoughtful.  We have been thoughtful in the 
design, architecturally in the way that we have also been able to bring all the parking 
underneath these buildings, instead of having a sea of parking, which is pretty standard 
in multi-family projects.  I mean this is a perfect example of what you would end up with 
with an office building or retail user with a big sea of parking and in this case we have 

83Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 80 of 88 

 

hidden the majority of the parking below the buildings.  I think there is only probably one 
other project in Meridian right now that provides -- well, two other projects.  One's finished 
and we built the first one, which is Bri, and there is one in downtown Meridian across the 
road where they are building structure parking as well.  But it hasn't happened anywhere 
else and they aren't -- they aren't inexpensive, but it actually provides for a great design 
when it's all said and done, well, you are not seeing that parking, but you are able just to 
view a very nice building.  Again, we are asking that condition to be deleted, noting that 
we will be taking this to the City Council and also noting that we will be working with staff 
on alternative compliance to address that baseline open space calculation and I stand for 
any questions you might have tonight.   
 
Seal:  All right.  Thank you very much.   Do you have questions?   
 
Grove:  I do have questions.   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Grove, go -- Commissioner Grove, go ahead.  Commissioner 
Lorcher, you will be next.   
 
Grove:  Jon, couple of questions.  First is safety fire related.  Is -- with the size and scope 
of this project would it be using the -- I don't remember the name of the life safety thing 
that the Galena project is putting in with the -- where the water goes up, but also air.  Is      
-- does the -- does this project have something like that or is it relying on sprinklers -- 
general question there I guess.   
 
Wardle:  Mr. Chair, Commissioner Grove, it's -- the Galena project is kind of that spot 
where you get over five stories and some of those change.  This is a fully sprinklered 
project.  It -- okay.  I stand corrected.  Yes, we are.  So, I do know as well that some of 
our projects, depending on the water, there is a pump that could be used.  So, yes, John 
just confirmed that we are doing that element.   
 
Grove:  Appreciate it.  Second question is related to a big part of the conversation in terms 
of the open space and things like that.  I'm just curious if the -- go back.   
 
Wardle:  Which one do you want?   
 
Grove:  One more.  There you go.  Just in between the yellow and the blue, the parking 
in the central section, if that was looked at for a second or third story open space covering 
in between the two buildings to increase that open space component and tie it in with 
some of the other pieces.  I know that might not have been looked at, but I'm -- I'm just 
kind of curious.   
 
Wardle:  Mr. Chair, Commissioner Grove, we didn't look at adding a third parking structure 
on the project, which that -- that would be your requirement for that.  The parking structure 
makes sense if we could add more density above it and, obviously, that's not a great 
conversation, but with the two podium structures we have already we didn't add a third 
one.  So, no, we did not consider that.   

84Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 81 of 88 

 

Grove:  Okay.  Thank you.   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Lorcher, go ahead.   
 
Lorcher:  Are there -- are these all rentals or are there any home ownership?   
 
Wardle:  Mr. Chair, Commissioner Lorcher, these are all rentals.  There is -- this is not a 
condominium -- condominium project.  So, there will not be any ownership here.   
 
Lorcher:  Okay.   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Wheeler, go ahead.   
 
Wheeler:  Jon, I have a couple questions here.  One is if you can go to the screen where 
it shows like the -- where the pool area is at there.  That's fine right there.  That one's fine.  
So, we have got the pool area there.  We got the small little parking area here.   
 
Wardle:  Let me just go back to different ones.  We can --  
 
Wheeler:  Yeah.  You bet.  You bet.  Yeah.  There we go.  Or one of those.  That's perfect.  
So, I'm seeing that -- are those parking spaces there -- I'm just seeing them -- those are 
going to be used by non-residents.  They are going to pull in and just park and, you know, 
walk across the Records to go to The Village.   
 
Wardle:  Mr. Chair, Commissioner Wheeler, I mean it's a good question in terms of how 
those are monitored.  In reality it's a very limited number of parking stalls.  The leasing 
office is also here right in front and so if somebody is leasing they would come in here 
and they would park.  Given that we have on-site management there, I mean those are 
going to be monitored as well, so I -- I don't envision that it will be a park here to walk 
across and the reason I say that is if you want to get to The Village you have to go up to 
the north, you got to cross -- cross the roundabout and come back down to get into The 
Village and that's a long ways to walk if you are just trying to find a place to park, whereas 
you have a lot of parking at The Village already.  So, could we have a resident who parks 
here?  Yeah.  Very likely and walk across.  It would be all -- the best scenario.  But I don't 
see that too many people would come in here, park, get out of the car, walk across the 
street and, then, walk back when there is available parking much closer to those uses.   
 
Wheeler:  I think -- I think on -- on normal days that might be the case, but when you got 
something pretty exciting going on there I think you got some overflow parking that that 
might turn into, so I'm just -- I'm just suggesting to think about enforcement --  
 
Wardle:  Yeah.   
 
Wheeler:  -- or, hey, this is for our community members, hey, this is for people that are 
leasing, something along those lines.  That's all.   
 

85Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 82 of 88 

 

Wardle:  Mr. Chair, Commissioner Wheeler, great point.  I mean we -- enforcement and 
we do -- we do that in our communities currently.  There are notices that go up and I can't 
anticipate every event like those hundred year party events, whether it be, you know, who 
knows, some debut at The Village where we get a celebrity to come out and everybody 
who wants to be there.  Those things are going to happen.  But we will continue to monitor 
the parking.   
 
Wheeler:  Another question here is I'm -- I'm -- it's interesting that ACHD said that the 
same traffic for having 472 units -- or not -- yeah.  Vehicular traffic is the same as if they 
had it for, you know, office spaces and buildings and things of that nature.  I'm more 
concerned about the pedestrian traffic going across Records, as I'm sure you are, too.  I 
mean you want your tenants and the patrons to enjoy themselves there, too.  What about 
-- is there any thought about a lighted crossway -- walk there?  Is there something about 
-- because people are going to come from that side and just walk straight over.  They are 
going to go to the roundabout and go over.  That's going to add extra congestion.  What 
are some thoughts of to mitigate that?   
 
Wardle:  Mr. Chair, Commissioner Wheeler, I mean it's a great point.  I mean we all know 
that people will take the path of least resistance.  What the highway district doesn't want, 
however, is once you open up this concrete divider, then, you have cars as well and so 
the safe place for crossing are these two designated.  The one that is down here at 
Fairview and, then, the other one that is up here just on the clear side of the roundabout.  
That's where the highway district wants that to be.  I don't think they would ever approve 
a crossing down here in this location, even if it was lit, just given the roundabout and the 
traffic coming in and out.  They want the pedestrians to cross in this safe pocket and down 
at the light.   
 
Wheeler:  So, on that note is my -- I'm a hundred in agreement on that.  So, how do you 
guys mitigate that, then, so that doesn't happen?  Is there ways where I'm assuming like 
the entrances and exits are both at the north and the south side and so that's just going 
to be a natural way for them as they exit that site or what?   
 
Wardle:  Part of it is the way directionally that the sidewalk points people.  Sometimes -- 
and we spent a lot of time looking at this, just because we do lots of neighborhoods, but 
ACHD is very methodical in the way that they want to direct people on those sidewalks.  
There absolutely will be somebody who wants to cross Records and they are just going 
to run across.  That's going to happen.  But the way that these pedestrian ramps will be     
-- ACHD won't be encouraging them to do that.  The motion will be going north and south 
and coming out of here we won't make a pedestrian connection over to Records.  We are 
just going to try to keep people pointed north and south on there.  But, Commissioner 
Wheeler, I can't -- you can't stop people from making poor decisions.   
 
Wheeler:  Right.   
 
Wardle:  So, it's going to happen, but we aren't of the mind that that makes sense to try 
to facilitate that, because it just will -- it will be problematic.   

86Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 83 of 88 

 

Wheeler:  Okay.  Yeah.  I'm confident it's going to happen and I'm -- and that's just to 
what degree to what angle.  And you can only do so much with it; right?  With -- with 
people that have their own choices to make, you know, on that.   
 
Wardle:  I mean it's possible where we have some sidewalks internal here and it doesn't 
-- where we have some sidewalks here and a sidewalk coming out, that maybe we even 
put, you know, some signage there that just says pedestrians --  
 
Wheeler:   Yeah.   
 
Wardle:  -- and point them each way.  A little bit of wayfinding to maybe encourage 
somebody to make a good choice, instead of playing frogger.   
 
Wheeler:  Yes.  Yes.  Exactly.  You are seeing where that's going on it.  Also one of the 
other concerns that was brought up from some of the other -- other people during the 
public testimony was blocking off some of the roads for access, because you know that 
these are going to be used for shortcuts; right?  You know the people are going to try to 
swing over to -- I think it was Ventura and also the -- the road that's going to go between 
your proposed project and CarMax and try to try -- try to help mitigate, so that these 
people that are on these larger estate size properties can still enjoy them the way that 
they were hoping to.   
 
Wardle:  Mr. Chair, Commissioner Wheeler, you know, as we have been involved in one 
project and now another project here and have spent quite a bit of time looking at the 
analysis and one -- a comment was made as well regarding, well, why don't you just do 
a right-in, right-out.  So, there actually was a negotiation with ACHD and the way that 
these roads laid out that the only points of access to Fairview would be Records and 
Venture.  There is a reason why CarMax does not have an access onto Fairview.  It's just 
not allowed.  And so the way that that was to address how these two parcels would be 
accessed in the future was on Records, Elden Way, and, obviously, CarMax goes over 
to Venture.  Whether this could be true -- I don't know how this would work in terms of 
shutting this down.  They are all public roads.  It's a question for ACHD on how they would 
do it, but as -- the way that they have reviewed it and looked at it, these public roads do 
provide access in and through.  There is not -- I mean were -- I think it was mentioned 
there is 14 residents here and so there is not -- there is not many here and I can appreciate 
the impact that they would have from -- from CarMax and from other things like that, but 
shutting this down as well would push all this traffic as well, which is not much, but it would 
push it all down to Fairview anyways and not be able to come on Elden Gray into The 
Village.   
 
Wheeler:  Okay.  And -- yeah.  I think that's it.  I do like the five -- the four over one project 
in its -- in its aesthetics and look and you are right, it's very expensive to -- to do a parking 
garage on a project like this.  So, it's good use of the -- of the space in order to maximize 
your -- your residencies on there.  Thanks a lot.  Appreciate it.  Thank you.   
 

87Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 84 of 88 

 

Seal:  I have got a quick question on the -- the unit count, because we -- that was part of 
the staff report that we are over on unit count.  Is that something that's going to be 
addressed?  There is -- or was that addressed I guess I should say.   
 
Wardle:  So, Mr. Chair, it might have been the question in the staff report and the prior -- 
there was a question about parking stalls as related to the unit counts.  We have since 
addressed -- addressed that, so the requirement for parking has been met on site.  I don't 
think -- I mean I think the question on staff had made or the comment was, you know, if    
-- if there was a modification in unit counts that would modify or change the way the 
parking was or open space as well.  But I don't think that they were saying that there was 
a -- a hard number there that they needed to be changed.  It was a recommendation.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank you for clarifying that.  It's getting late, so I just want to make sure I 
have got it straight in my head.  Question for staff real quick.  The -- my question is more 
on the -- the little private road that's going to join this property with CarMax, as well as 
Elden Gray.  Is there parking allowed on those streets?   
 
Parsons:  Mr. Chair, Members of the Commission, absolutely.  It's private property.  It's    
-- it's not really a -- it's on there -- the parking's on their property.  They just have cross- 
access with that.  So, as long -- as long as they maintain 25 feet for two-way traffic per 
code, the applicant should be fine with that.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  And that's the same with the Elden Gray, the one that runs above it?  I'm 
not sure of the parking -- if there is any parking allowed on that, I just was trying to verify 
it.   
 
Parsons:  Mr. Chair, I'm not aware of any parking restrictions on the street either.   
 
Seal:  Okay.   
 
Parsons:  It's a local street, so -- and it's built to 50 foot right of way, so, typically, you 
would be allowed to have parking.  But, again, it depends on -- if that roundabout -- if 
there is any signs that say don't park within a certain distance of that roundabout.  I'm not 
sure, though.  I can't answer that for you.   
 
Seal:  Okay.   
 
Lorcher:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commission Lorcher, go ahead.   
 
Lorcher:  Elden Gray gets a fair amount of towing and car hauling traffic to -- to load and 
unload cars.  But that's, you know, once or twice a week.  So, it does create a visual, 
because the car haulers are big, but they will unload and, then, they will leave and a 
couple days later another one will come.   
 

88Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 85 of 88 

 

Seal:  Okay.  Thank you.   
 
Wardle:  Mr. Chair, Bill is correct that it is a local street and I do not believe that there are 
restrictions on parking.  I believe it is -- you know, meets ACHD standards for a local 
street and could accommodate parking.  So, just to be clear with the record.   
 
Seal:  Okay.  Thank you.  Anybody else?   
 
Wardle:  Again, we appreciate your time tonight and just request your approval for the 
project.  Thanks a lot.   
 
Seal:  Thank you.  Can I get a motion to close the public hearing for Records Apartment, 
H-2022-0008?   
 
Lorcher:  So moved.   
 
Yearsley:  Second.   
 
Seal:  It's been moved and seconded to close public hearing for H-2022-0008, Records 
Apartments.  All in favor say aye.  Any opposed?  Motion carries.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  TWO ABSENT.  
 
Seal:  Who wants to go first?  Nobody?   
 
Grove:  I will go first.  Mr. Chair, I think that this is the right place for a lot of the density 
just in terms of what we look at when we look at the community as a whole and the criteria 
that we have in place with the future land use map and just in general with what we look 
at for major arterial access and the access to other amenities outside of a project.  So, 
everything that The Village and even across the street -- I have walked across that street 
before.  It's not that bad to go cross Fairview if you are taking your time to go across the 
actual crosswalk.  But I think that, you know, there is going to be some major traffic pattern 
changes, but that is inherent with this general intersection.  The -- the biggest thing that I 
see, though, that will help this area -- and Mr. Wardle slightly addressed it, but is the 
public transportation that will be coming on board for Meridian with the fixed line and that 
fixed line will directly service this area and -- and it will go from the Ten Mile projects to     
-- through downtown and over to The Village.  So, I think that some of the traffic parts of 
this can be offset through both the proximity of the other pieces that are around this and 
also with the -- with that public transportation in place.  So, I think some of the -- those 
concerns can be alleviated.  In general I -- I -- I'm in favor of this.  I would normally have 
a much more critical look at the open space piece.  However, looking at the wide breadth 
of options for the amenities and the close distance to, you know, the park system, the 
senior center, shopping, like there is enough other things right here that the open space 
piece is not as -- is not as pressing for me in terms of things that would stop me from 
wanting to move forward with this.   
 

89Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 86 of 88 

 

Seal:  Anybody else?   
 
Yearsley:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Yearsley, go ahead.   
 
Yearsley:  You know, the whole time today I have been talking about density and --  
 
Seal:  It's a theme.   
 
Yearsley:  I -- this has been a thing.  But I -- I think this is actually the spot to put the 
density.  You have got a lot of amenities close by that can support this density.  I like the 
product.  I like the look.  I like the fact that you are not seeing a sea of asphalt.  My guess 
is the only thing that I'm a little sad about it wasn't an In & Out Burger when I saw the 
notice on the -- on the sign when I walked -- drove by the other day.  I use Records a lot.  
Most times when we come down and go eat downtown in this area we will go down Eagle, 
but we will always come back through Records and I have never -- at this point have 
never had an issue getting out on Records.  So, I like how they laid this area out with 
ACHD and I thought you couldn't top the -- your apartments to the north, but I think you 
have -- you have done it on this one, so good job.   
 
Seal:  You know I, mean there is, you know, like any project, there is things I -- I don't 
like, there is things I like, so I -- you know, this -- we do have a need for residences like 
this and if you are lucky enough to live in one of these, the amenities are pretty nice for 
sure, so -- I use Records a lot as well.  I come in from the Ustick side of things, so that 
used to be the secret way to get, you know, in there.  The secret is out for sure.  I have a 
son that would argue that it's not just right-in, right-out, but he is wrong.  So, there is 
different parts of this that -- sharing the access there with CarMax, I -- that's probably 
going to be problematic into the future, just because of the nature of it.  I -- that's my 
personal feeling on it.  I mean when I first looked at this and saw how short the open 
space was, you know, my first reaction, of course, was, well, there is no way that's going 
to happen.  But like Jon said being involved in the same meetings that determine the 
criteria by which you meet that open space, I looked further into it and the open space is 
27 percent.  So, that's -- I mean if you look at a -- you know, anything else that's come 
through here tonight, 15 percent is the -- is the minimum.  So, they are at 27 percent 
already and they are across the street from a park.  Generally I'm not the person that's 
going to give you credit for that, but it's a really big park.  So, at least they are not trying 
to take credit for being next to a school, which is my biggest pet peeve.  You know, I mean 
the -- the density is -- is big, but the area can -- it's built for this kind of density.  So, I mean 
as far as the folks that are in, you know, the one acre plus estates over there, I sympathize 
for that.  My only comment is I wish that it was closer to this, because working with 
Brighton and other places, especially south of the freeway there off of Eagle, I mean they 
were actually able to go to ACHD and get bollards put in and, you know, help that -- help 
that community that was there that has very similar issues.  Unfortunately, ACHD is not 
the best at, you know, putting these things together, but that's -- that's what we got at this 
point in that community.  So, hopefully, there is some resolution to some of that.  But the 

90Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 87 of 88 

 

project overall I think is a good project.  I think it's well suited for the area and -- I mean it 
will have an impact on it, as well as the rest of the growth that's happening throughout the 
valley, but I mean Eagle Road and Fairview were built for this at this point, so I'm in favor.   
 
Wheeler:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Wheeler, go ahead.   
 
Wheeler:  Yes, I -- I -- I think it's a sharp looking project.  It will be almost like a flagship 
project as is a lot of things around Fairview and Eagle; right?  Everything from the 
Mountain West Bank, to The Village, to -- to this project in and of itself and like most 
developers they don't want to put their name on something unless it's going to be 
something that's going to be a good benefit and give a good positive impact, so -- and 
that shows everything from the design to like you are saying one or -- four over one project 
here with the parking and everything.  My only -- my only concerns are just, once again, 
just the pedestrian traffic and how to mitigate that.  Everything else looks -- and also the 
traffic that might happen to our -- to our friends over to the east side, would have the 
larger acreages there, the estates, figuring out how to mitigate that, but that's more of an 
ACHD thing saying, hey, this is what we have -- we have seen.  That would be something 
to -- to talk with them about vacating or to be able to do a widening or something along 
those lines.  This is outside of your guys' purview on it and I know that -- I know that this 
area -- it's different; right?  It's where people live.  So, this is where they are at in the 
evenings and they are gone usually in the morning, so to speak.  So, you have different 
traffic patterns on that side of things.  But that would be -- that's -- I just know that the 
Yard House and, you know, The Village in and of itself; right?  Everything around there is 
-- is a magnet for the evening activity.  So, it's just going to compound on -- on a lot of the 
activity there and around there, so -- and that's going to be night and that's just my only 
concern is that there might -- that's just going to be more congestion around that site and 
pedestrianwise at that.  But beautiful project.   
 
Seal:  Anyone else?  I will take a motion.   
 
Grove:  I got it.  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Commissioner Grove, go ahead.   
 
Grove:  I guess before I make the motion, are the rest of Commissioners kind of on board 
with the recommendations of the applicant in addition to the conditions provided by staff?   
 
Seal:  As far as deleting condition two and, then, modifying 4-M for alternative 
compliance?   
 
Grove:  Correct.   
 
Seal:  Yep.   
 

91Item 1.



Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 7, 2022 
Page 88 of 88 

 

Grove:  Okay.  All right.  Mr. Chair, after considering all staff, applicant, and public 
testimony, I move to approve file number H-2022-0008 as presented in the staff report for 
the hearing date of April 7th, 2022, with the following modifications:  That condition A-2 
be stricken and that condition A-4-M is modified to allow alternative compliance to meet 
the requirements.   
 
Yearsley:  Second.   
 
Seal:  It's been moved and seconded to approve File No. H-2022-0008 with the 
aforementioned modifications.  All those in favor say aye.  Any opposed?   
 
Yearsley:  Mr. Chair?   
 
Seal:  Motion carries.   
 
Yearsley:  Oh, I thought you were --  
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
Seal:  Commissioner Yearsley.   
 
Yearsley:  I move we adjourn.   
 
Seal:  Is there a second?   
 
Grove:  Second.   
 
Seal:  It's been moved and seconded to adjourn.  All in favor saying ayes.  All right.  We 
are adjourned.  Thank you. 
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  TWO ABSENT.  
 
MEETING ADJOURNED AT 11:18 P.M. 
 
(AUDIO RECORDING ON FILE OF THESE PROCEEDINGS.) 
 
APPROVED 
 
_____________________________________   _____|_____|_____ 
ANDREW SEAL - CHAIRMAN    DATE APPROVED 
 
ATTEST:   
 
_____________________________________ 
CHRIS JOHNSON - CITY CLERK 

92Item 1.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Findings of Facts, Conclusions of Law for Records Apartments (H-2022-0008) 
by Brighton Development, Inc., Located on the Northeast Corner of N. Records Way and E. 
Fairview Ave.

93Item 2.



CITY OF MERIDIAN FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER 

CASE NO(S). H-2022-0008    

  Page 1 

 

CITY OF MERIDIAN 

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

AND 

DECISION & ORDER 

 

In the Matter of the Request for Conditional Use Permit for a Multi-Family Development 

Consisting of 472 Apartment Units in Two (2) 5-Story Buildings on 9.95-Acres of Land in the C-G 

(General Retail and Service Commercial) Zoning District for Records Apartments, Located at the 

Northeast Corner of N. Records Way and E. Franklin Rd., by Brighton Corporation. 

Case No(s). H-2022-0008 

For the Planning & Zoning Commission Hearing Date of: April 7, 2022 (Findings on April 21, 

2022) 

 

A. Findings of Fact 

 

1. Hearing Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of April 7, 2022, incorporated by 

reference) 

 

2.   Process Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of April 7, 2022, incorporated by 

reference) 

 

3.  Application and Property Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of April 7, 2022, 

incorporated by reference) 

 

4.  Required Findings per the Unified Development Code (see attached Staff Report for the hearing 

date of April 7, 2022, incorporated by reference) 

 

B.  Conclusions of Law 

 

1. The City of Meridian shall exercise the powers conferred upon it by the “Local Land Use 

Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code (I.C. §67-6503). 

 

2. The Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission takes judicial notice of its Unified Development 

Code codified at Title 11 Meridian City Code, and all current zoning maps thereof. The City of 

Meridian has, by ordinance, established the Impact Area and the Amended Comprehensive Plan 

of the City of Meridian, which was adopted April 19, 2011, Resolution No. 11-784 and Maps. 

 

3. The conditions shall be reviewable by the City Council pursuant to Meridian City Code § 11-5A. 

 

4. Due consideration has been given to the comment(s) received from the governmental 

subdivisions providing services in the City of Meridian planning jurisdiction. 

 

5. It is found public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not impose 

expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed. 

 

6. That the City has granted an order of approval in  accordance with this decision, which shall be 

signed by the Chairman of the Commission and City Clerk and then a copy served by the Clerk 

94Item 2.



CITY OF MERIDIAN FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER 

CASE NO(S). H-2022-0008    

  Page 2 

upon the applicant, the Planning Department, the Public Works Department and any affected 

party requesting notice.  

 

7. That this approval is subject to the conditions of approval in the attached staff report for the 

hearing date of April 7, 2022, incorporated by reference. The conditions are concluded to be 

reasonable and the applicant shall meet such requirements as a condition of approval of the 

application. 

 

C.  Decision and Order   

 

Pursuant to the Planning & Zoning Commission’s authority as provided in Meridian City Code § 11-

5A and based upon the above and foregoing Findings of Fact which are herein adopted, it is hereby 

ordered that:  

 

1. The applicant’s request for conditional use permit is hereby approved in accord with the 

conditions of approval in the staff report for the hearing date of April 7, 2022, attached as Exhibit 

A. 

 

D.  Notice of Applicable Time Limits  

Notice of Two (2) Year Conditional Use Permit Duration  

Please take notice that the conditional use permit, when granted, shall be valid for a maximum 

period of two (2) years unless otherwise approved by the City in accord with UDC 11-5B-6F.1. 

During this time, the applicant shall commence the use as permitted in accord with the 

conditions of approval, satisfy the requirements set forth in the conditions of approval, and 

acquire building permits and commence construction of permanent footings or structures on or 

in the ground.  For conditional use permits that also require platting, the final plat must be 

signed by the City Engineer within this two (2) year period in accord with UDC 11-5B-6F.2. 

Upon written request and filed by the applicant prior to the termination of the period in accord 

with 11-5B-6.F.1, the Director may authorize a single extension of the time to commence the 

use not to exceed one (1) two (2) year period. Additional time extensions up to two (2) years as 

determined and approved by the Commission may be granted. With all extensions, the Director 

or Commission may require the conditional use comply with the current provisions of Meridian 

City Code Title 11.   

E. Judicial Review 

Pursuant to Idaho Code § 67-6521(1)(d), if this final decision concerns a matter enumerated in Idaho 

Code § 67-6521(1)(a), an affected person aggrieved by this final  decision may, within twenty-eight 

(28) days after all remedies  have been exhausted, including requesting reconsideration of this final 

decision as provided by Meridian City Code § 1-7-10, seek judicial review of this final decision as 

provided by chapter 52, title 67, Idaho Code. This notice is provided as a courtesy;  the City of 

Meridian does not admit by this notice that this decision is subject to judicial review under LLUPA. 

F. Notice of Right to Regulatory Takings Analysis 

Pursuant to Idaho Code §§ 67-6521(1)(d) and  67-8003, an owner of private property that is the 

subject of a final decision may submit a written request with the Meridian City Clerk for a regulatory 

takings analysis. 

95Item 2.



CITY OF MERIDIAN FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER 

CASE NO(S). H-2022-0008    

  Page 3 

G. Attached:  Staff Report for the hearing date of April 7, 2022 

 

By action of the Planning & Zoning Commission at its regular meeting held on the ___________ day of 

________________, 2022. 

 

COMMISSIONER ANDREW SEAL, CHAIRMAN  VOTED_______    

COMMISSIONER NICK GROVE, VICE CHAIRMAN   VOTED_______   

  COMMISSIONER NATE WHEELER    VOTED_______ 

  COMMISSIONER STEVEN YEARSLEY    VOTED_______ 

  COMMISSIONER PATRICK GRACE    VOTED_______  

COMMISSIONER MARIA LORCHER     VOTED_______ 

COMMISSIONER MANDI STODDARD     VOTED_______ 

 
 

     _____________________________ 
     Andrew Seal, Chairman 

 

 

Attest: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Chris Johnson, City Clerk 

 

 

    Copy served upon the Applicant, the Planning and Development Services divisions of the Community 

Development Department, the Public Works Department and the City Attorney. 

 

 

By:__________________________________   Dated:________________________ 

     City Clerk’s Office 

 

 

 

96Item 2.



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
 

 
Page 1 

 
  

HEARING 

DATE: 
April 7, 2022 

 

TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 

FROM: Sonya Allen, Associate Planner 

208-884-5533 

SUBJECT: H-2022-0008 – Records Apartments  

LOCATION: Northeast corner of N. Records Way and 

E. Fairview Ave., in the SW 1/4 of 

Section 4, T.3N., R.1E (Parcel 

#S1104347005) 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Conditional use permit for a multi-family development consisting of 472 apartment units in two (2) 5-story 

buildings on 9.95-acres of land in the C-G (General Retail and Service Commercial) zoning district. 

Alternative Compliance (ALT) is also requested to UDC 11-4-3-27B.3, which requires a minimum of 80 

square feet of private usable open space to be provided for each dwelling unit.  

II. SUMMARY OF REPORT 

A. Project Summary 

STAFF REPORT 

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

Description Details 

Acreage 9.95-acres 

Future Land Use Designation Mixed Use – Regional (MU-R) 

Existing Land Use Vacant/undeveloped land  

Proposed Land Use(s) Multi-family development 

Current Zoning General Retail & Service Commercial (C-G)  

Proposed Zoning NA 

Number of Residential Units (type 

of units) 

472 units (apartments) 

Density (gross) 47.4 units/acre 

Phases (#)  2 

Physical Features (waterways, 

hazards, flood plain, hillside) 

None 

History (previous approvals) AZ-07-012 (DA Inst. #109009630) 

97Item 2.

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=62574&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity


 

 
Page 2 

 
  

B. Project Maps 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

III. APPLICANT INFORMATION 

A. Applicant: 

Josh Beach, Brighton Corporation – 2929 W. Navigator Dr., Ste. 400, Meridian, ID 83642 

B. Owner:  

DWT Investments, LLC – 2929 W. Navigator Dr., Ste. 400, Meridian, ID 83642 

C. Representative: 

Josh Beach, Brighton Corporation – 2929 W. Navigator Dr., Ste. 400, Meridian, ID 83642 

Future Land Use Map 

 

Aerial Map 

 

Zoning Map 

 

Planned Development Map 

 

98Item 2.



 

 
Page 3 

 
  

IV.  NOTICING 

 Planning & Zoning 

Posting Date 

Newspaper Notification 3/22/2022 

Radius notification mailed to 

properties within 300 feet 3/21/2022 

Public hearing notice sign posted 

on site 3/25/2022 

Nextdoor posting 3/21/2022 

V. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN (Comprehensive Plan and TMISAP) 

Future Land Use Map Designation:  

The subject property is designated Mixed Use – Regional (MU-R) on the Future Land Use Map (FLUM) in 

the Comprehensive Plan.  

The purpose of the MU-R designation is to provide a mix of employment, retail, and residential dwellings 

and public uses near major arterial intersections. The intent is to integrate a variety of uses together, 

including residential, and to avoid predominantly single use developments such as a regional retail center 

with only restaurants and other commercial uses. Developments should be anchored by uses that have a 

regional draw with the appropriate supporting uses. For example, an employment center should have 

supporting retail uses; a retail center should have supporting residential uses as well as supportive 

neighborhood and community services.  

Proposed Use: A multi-family development containing 472 apartment units in one (1) 5-story building with 

associated parking and landscaping is proposed to develop on this 9.95-acre site in the C-G zoning district.   

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN POLICIES AND ANALYSIS: 

In reviewing development applications, the following items will be considered in all Mixed-Use areas, per 

the Comprehensive Plan (pg. 3-13): (Staff’s analysis in italics) 

• “A mixed-use project should include at least three types of land uses. Exceptions may be granted for 

smaller sites on a case-by-case basis. This land use is not intended for high density residential 

development alone.”  

Although the proposed development only includes one use (i.e. residential), the larger MU-R designated 

area and surrounding area includes commercial (i.e. retail, restaurant, entertainment, etc.) and civic 

(i.e. Kleiner City Park) uses as well as other residential dwelling types.  

At the pre-application meeting, Staff did request the Applicant provide some services for the proposed 

residential uses (i.e. a daycare, coffee shop, vertically integrated, etc.) on this site but the Applicant 

declined asserting that a mix of uses already exists in this area to serve the future residents. Staff 

somewhat agrees although is of the opinion it would be better to have some of these uses integrated with 

the proposed development on this site – however, Staff is not including a condition for the Applicant to 

do so. If Commission feels this should be required, a condition should be added accordingly. 

• “Where appropriate, higher density and/or multi-family residential development is encouraged for 

projects with the potential to serve as employment destination centers and when the project is adjacent to 

US 20/26, SH-55, SH-16 or SH-69.” 

 The proposed multi-family high density development will provide housing options in close proximity to 

nearby commercial/employment uses located along SH-55.  

99Item 2.

https://meridiancity.org/planning/files/compplan/Adopted-Comp-Plan.pdf
https://meridiancity.org/planning/files/10mile-191217-Full.pdf


 

 
Page 4 

 
  

• “Mixed Use areas are typically developed under a master or conceptual plan; during an annexation or 

rezone request, a development agreement will typically be required for developments with a Mixed-Use 

designation.” 

A Development Agreement (DA) exists for this property that includes a conceptual development plan; 

however, future development of this site was not tied to that plan. A multi-family development is noted in 

the Table of Proposed Uses included in the DA as an appropriate use to develop within the boundary of 

the DA with a detailed site plan subject to the conditions of the DA.  

• “In developments where multiple commercial and/or office buildings are proposed, the buildings should 

be arranged to create some form of common, usable area, such as a plaza or green space.” 

 Commercial and/or office buildings are not proposed as part of this development. 

• “The site plan should depict a transitional use and/or landscaped buffering between commercial and 

existing low- or medium-density residential development.”  

 There are no low- or medium-density residential developments abutting this site. 

• “Community-serving facilities such as hospitals, clinics, churches, schools, parks, daycares, civic 

buildings, or public safety facilities are expected in larger mixed-use developments.”  

No such uses are proposed in this development; however, Kleiner City Park and a Senior Center exist 

across the street to the north, which provide community-serving facilities. 

• “Supportive and proportional public and/or quasi-public spaces and places including but not limited to 

parks, plazas, outdoor gathering areas, open space, libraries, and schools are expected; outdoor seating 

areas at restaurants do not count.” 

No such uses are proposed in this development; however, Kleiner City Park and a Senior Center exist 

across the street to the north that provides public outdoor gathering areas and open space. 

• “Mixed use areas should be centered around spaces that are well-designed public and quasi-public 

centers of activity. Spaces should be activated and incorporate permanent design elements and amenities 

that foster a wide variety of interests ranging from leisure to play. These areas should be thoughtfully 

integrated into the development and further placemaking opportunities considered.” 

As noted above, the proposed development lies just to the south of Kleiner City Park, which includes a 

senior center. The proposed development plan doesn’t include any public/quasi-public uses but does 

include private open space and amenities for residents of the development. The adjacent Village at 

Meridian development to the west includes a large public gathering area with a fountain and seating 

and amenities. 

• “All mixed-use projects should be directly accessible to neighborhoods within the section by both 

vehicles and pedestrians.” 

The Village at Meridian is directly accessible from adjacent neighborhoods by public streets and 

pedestrian pathways. Staff recommends the Applicant work with ACHD’s Planning and Projects 

group to see if a pedestrian crossing can be provided to the north at the Record/Longwing intersection 

for pedestrian safety. 

• “Alleys and roadways should be used to transition from dissimilar land uses, and between residential 

densities and housing types.” 

Roadways separate the proposed residential development from the commercial development to the west 

and the City park to the north; a shared driveway separates this site from the vehicle sales use to the 

east.  

100Item 2.



 

 
Page 5 

 
  

• “Because of the parcel configuration within Old Town, development is not subject to the Mixed-Use 

standards listed herein.” 

 The subject property is not located in Old Town; therefore, this item is not applicable. 

In reviewing development applications, the following items will be considered in MU-R areas, per the 

Comprehensive Plan (pgs. 3-16 thru 3-17):  

• Development should generally comply with the general guidelines for development in all Mixed-Use 

areas. 

 Staff’s analysis on the proposed project’s compliance with the general guidelines is included above.  

• Residential uses should comprise a minimum of 10% of the development area at gross densities ranging 

from 6 to 40 units/acre. There is neither a minimum nor maximum imposed on non-retail commercial 

uses such as office, clean industry, or entertainment uses. 

 The proposed residential uses contribute to the minimum 10% required in the overall development and is 

the sole use proposed with this development application. The proposed gross density is 47.4 units/acre, 

which exceeds the maximum desired. The density should be reduced to a maximum of 40 units/acre. 

• Retail commercial uses should comprise a maximum of 50% of the development area. 

 No retail uses are proposed with this development application.  

Where the development proposes public and quasi-public uses to support the development, the developer 

may be eligible for additional area for retail development (beyond the allowed 50%), based on the ratios 

below:  

• For land that is designated for a public use, such as a library or school, the developer is eligible for a 2:1 

bonus. That is to say, if there is a one-acre library site planned and dedicated, the project would be 

eligible for two additional acres of retail development. 

• For active open space or passive recreation areas, such as a park, tot-lot, or playfield, the developer is 

eligible for a 2:1 bonus. That is to say, if the park is 10 acres in area, the site would be eligible for 20 

additional acres of retail development. 

• For plazas that are integrated into a retail project, the developer would be eligible for a 6:1 bonus. Such 

plazas should provide a focal point (such as a fountain, statue, and water feature), seating areas, and 

some weather protection. That would mean that by providing a half-acre plaza, the developer would be 

eligible for three additional acres of retail development. 

 This guideline is not applicable as no public/quasi-public uses are proposed with this application.  

Based on the analysis above, if the number of units are reduced to a maximum gross density of 40 units per 

acre (or below), Staff is of the opinion the proposed high-density urban-style residential development is 

generally consistent with the MU-R designation in the Comprehensive Plan and with the general mixed use 

guidelines in that it contributes to the mix of uses desired; provides living opportunities within close 

proximity to employment, retail, restaurant and entertainment uses, which should reduce vehicle trips on area 

streets; and is located near a major arterial intersection (i.e. E. Fairview Ave. and N. Eagle Rd./SH-55).  

VI. STAFF ANALYSIS 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT (CUP) 

A CUP is proposed for a multi-family development containing one (1) 65-foot tall 5-story structure with 

podium parking on the first floor and 472 apartment units above consisting of (84) studio, (208) 1-bedroom, 

101Item 2.



 

 
Page 6 

 
  

(168) 2-bedroom and (12) 3-bedroom units on 9.95-acres of land in the C-G zoning district. The size of each 

of the unit type is as follows: 586 square feet (s.f.) for studio units; 680 s.f. for 1-bedroom units; 934 s.f. for 

2-bedroom units; and 1,242 s.f. for 3-bedroom units. The gross density of the development is 47.4 units per 

acre. A 9,624 s.f. clubhouse with amenities is also proposed.  

The project is proposed to be constructed in two (2) phases; the northern portion of the building and the 

clubhouse with the first phase and the southern portion of the building with the second phase. The north & 

south building will be joined together by the clubhouse. 

Specific Use Standards (UDC 11-4-3):  

The proposed use is subject to the following standards: (Staff’s analysis/comments in italic text) 

11-4-3-27: MULTI-FAMILY DEVELOPMENT: 

B. Site Design: 

1. Buildings shall provide a minimum setback of ten feet (10') unless a greater setback is otherwise 

required by this title and/or title 10 of this Code. Building setbacks shall take into account windows, 

entrances, porches and patios, and how they impact adjacent properties. The proposed site plan 

complies with this standard. 

2.  All on-site service areas, outdoor storage areas, waste storage, disposal facilities, and transformer 

and utility vaults shall be located in an area not visible from a public street, or shall be fully screened 

from view from a public street. The site/landscape plan submitted with the Certificate of Zoning 

Compliance application should depict all such areas and reflect compliance with this standard. 

3.  A minimum of eighty (80) square feet (s.f.) of private, usable open space shall be provided for each 

unit. This requirement can be satisfied through porches, patios, decks, and/or enclosed yards. 

Landscaping, entryway and other access ways shall not count toward this requirement. In 

circumstances where strict adherence to such standard would create inconsistency with the purpose 

statements of this section, the Director may consider an alternative design proposal through the 

alternative compliance provisions as set forth in section 11-5B-5 of this title. Alternative Compliance 

is requested to provide zero or a lesser amount of private open space than required, as follows: 0 for 

studio units; 57-82 s.f. for 1-bedroom units; and 60 s.f. for 3-bedroom units – 89 s.f. is proposed for 

2-bedroom units, which exceeds UDC standards. 

As justification for the request, the Applicant proposes what they feel are extraordinary site 

amenities, coupled with innovative new urban design with an emphasis on integrated, internal open 

space and facilities. The Director agrees with the Applicant’s assertions and finds the proposed 

alternative means of compliance demonstrates an equal means of meeting the intent and purpose of 

the regulation per the Findings in Section IX below. 

4.  For the purposes of this section, vehicular circulation areas, parking areas, and private usable open 

space shall not be considered common open space. These areas were not included in the common 

open space calculations on the qualified open space exhibit in Section VIII.C. 

5.  No recreational vehicles, snowmobiles, boats or other personal recreation vehicles shall be stored on 

the site unless provided for in a separate, designated and screened area. The Applicant shall comply 

with this requirement. 

6.  The parking shall meet the requirements set forth in chapter 3, "Regulations Applying to All 

Districts", of this title. Based on the minimum standards listed in UDC 11-3C-6, off-street parking is 

required as follows: a minimum of 84 parking spaces are required for the studio units; a minimum of 

312 spaces are required for the 1-bedroom units with at least 208 of those in a covered carport or 

garage; a minimum of 360 spaces are required for the 2- and 3-bedroom units with at least 180 of 

those in a covered carport or garage; a minimum of 47 guest spaces; and a minimum of 19 spaces 

102Item 2.

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/index.php?book_id=306&chapter_id=6513#s1348010
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=1&find=10
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=3&find=11-5B-5
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=2&find=3
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTCOREPALORE_11-3C-6RENUOREPASP


 

 
Page 7 

 
  

for the clubhouse for a total of 822 spaces with at least 388 of those in a covered carport or garage. 

A total of 815 spaces are proposed with 477 of those covered, which is seven (7) fewer than the 

minimum required. If the number of units are reduced to a maximum of 40 units per acre (gross) 

as recommended, this will reduce the number of required parking spaces which should then meet 

UDC standards. If the Commission approves the proposed density (47.4 units/acre), a minimum of 

seven (7) additional spaces shall be provided on this site and depicted on a revised site/landscape 

plan submitted prior to the Commission’s action on this application; or, the number of 2- or 3-

bedroom units could be reduced to reduce the parking requirement.  

Bicycle parking is required per the standards listed in UDC 11-3C-6G and should comply with the 

standards listed in UDC 11-3C-5C. Based on the minimum number of vehicle parking spaces 

required (i.e. 822), a minimum of 32 spaces are required; a total of 30 spaces are proposed, which is 

two (2) fewer than the minimum required. A minimum of two (2) additional bicycle parking spaces 

shall be provided on this site and depicted on a revised site/landscape plan submitted prior to the 

Commission’s action on this application. Note: A reduction in the number of dwelling units (and 

subsequently the number of required parking stalls) as recommended may result in the proposed 

bicycle parking meeting UDC standards. 

7.  Developments with twenty (20) units or more shall provide the following: 

a.  A property management office.  

b.  A maintenance storage area. 

c.  A central mailbox location, including provisions for parcel mail, that provide safe pedestrian 

and/or vehicular access. 

d.  A directory and map of the development at an entrance or convenient location for those entering 

the development. (Ord. 18-1773, 4-24-2018) 

 The site plan submitted with the Certificate of Zoning Compliance application should depict the 

location of these items in accord with this standard.  

C.  Common Open Space Design Requirements (UDC 11-4-3-27C): The total baseline land area of all 

qualified common open space shall equal or exceed ten (10) percent of the gross land area for multi-

family developments of five (5) acres or more. Based on 9.95 acres of land, a minimum of 1-acre of 

common open space is required to be provided.  

In addition to the baseline open space requirement, a minimum area of outdoor common open space shall 

be provided as follows: 

a.  One hundred fifty (150) square feet for each unit containing five hundred (500) or less square 

feet of living area. There are no units containing 500 s.f. or less of living area. 

b.  Two hundred fifty (250) square feet for each unit containing more than five hundred (500) 

square feet and up to one thousand two hundred (1,200) square feet of living area. 460 units fall 

within this range; therefore, a minimum of 115,000 square feet (or 2.64-acres) of common open 

space is required for these units. 

c.  Three hundred fifty (350) square feet for each unit containing more than one thousand two 

hundred (1,200) square feet of living area. 12 units fall within this range; therefore, a minimum 

of 4,200 s.f. (or 0.10-acre) of common open space is required for these units. 

Per this standard, a total of 2.74 acres of common open space is required. Combined with the 1 acre 

noted above for the baseline requirement, a minimum of 3.74 acres of common open space is 

required that complies with the standards listed in UDC 11-4-3-27C. Note: Because this site is 

directly adjacent to Kleiner City Park to the north and has safe pedestrian access without crossing 

103Item 2.

https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH4SPUSST_11-4-3-27MUMIDE
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH4SPUSST_11-4-3-27MUMIDE


 

 
Page 8 

 
  

an arterial street, this project is exempt from the additional open space requirements in UDC 11-4-

3-27C.3. 

The open space exhibit in Section VIII.C depicts a total of 2.75 acres (or 27.7%) of common open 

space for the development consisting of four (4) internal amenity spaces, the clubhouse and 

swimming pool area, street buffers along Records (a collector street) and Fairview (an arterial 

street), and buffer along the southern portion of the east boundary of the site. Per UDC 11-4-3-

27C.5, common open space areas shall not be less than 400 square feet in area, and shall have a 

minimum length and width dimension of 20 feet. The buffer along the southern portion of the 

east boundary of the site and the southern portion of the street buffer along N. Records Way is 

below 20 feet in width and does not meet this standard. Per UDC 11-4-3-27C.7, unless otherwise 

approved through the conditional use process, common open space areas shall not be adjacent to 

collector or arterial streets unless separated from the street by a berm or constructed barrier at least 

four feet (4') in height, with breaks in the berm or barrier to allow for pedestrian access. The buffers 

along Records and Fairview are not separated from the street by a berm and do not meet this 

standard. Staff recommends a revised open space exhibit is submitted that provides a 

minimum of 3.74 acres of qualified open space meeting the minimum standards noted above 

and in UDC 11-4-3-27C prior to the Commission acting on this application. The reduction in the 

number of units as recommended may result in extra area for common open space to be provided 

meeting the minimum standards. 

In phased developments, common open space shall be provided in each phase of the development 

consistent with the requirements for the size and number of dwelling units. The phasing plan 

complies with this requirement. 

D.  Site Development Amenities: All multi-family developments shall provide for quality of life, open 

space, recreation and multi-modal amenities to meet the particular needs of the residents as noted in 

UDC 11-4-3-27D. The number of amenities shall depend on the size of the multi-family development 

based on the number of units.  

 For multi-family developments with 75 units or more, four (4) amenities shall be provided with at least 

one (1) from each category. For developments with more than 100 units such as this, the decision-

making body shall require additional amenities commensurate to the size of the proposed development. 

 The following amenities are proposed: 1) a clubhouse with indoor amenities including a pet spa and 

fitness facility, and an outdoor kitchen/grilling area, which count toward the quality of life category; 2) 

plazas with picnic areas with tables, benches and shade structures, which count toward the open space 

category; 3) a swimming pool; snookball, cornhole and table tennis games; and multi-use pathways 

along Records and Fairview, which count toward the recreation category; and 4) electric vehicle (EV) 

charging stations, which count toward the multi-modal category. Other amenities are proposed as noted 

in the Applicant’s narrative. Off-site amenities also exist in Kleiner City Park directly adjacent to this 

site to the north within walking distance that consist of a pedestrian circulation system, splash pad, play 

structures, basketball court and bocce ball court. Staff finds the proposed amenities meet and exceed the 

minimum standards. 

E.  Landscaping Requirements: Development shall meet the minimum landscaping requirements in accord 

with chapter 3, "Regulations Applying to All Districts", of this title. Additionally, all street facing 

elevations shall have landscaping along their foundation that complies with the standards listed in UDC 

11-4-3-27E.2. The landscape plan submitted with the Certificate of Zoning Compliance application 

should depict landscaping along the street facing elevations adjacent to N. Records Way and E. 

Fairview Ave. in accord with these standards. 

F.  Maintenance and Ownership Responsibilities: All multi-family developments shall record legally 

binding documents that state the maintenance and ownership responsibilities for the management of the 

104Item 2.

https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH4SPUSST_11-4-3-27MUMIDE
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=253289&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=2&find=3
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH4SPUSST_11-4-3-27MUMIDE


 

 
Page 9 

 
  

development, including, but not limited to, structures, parking, common areas, and other development 

features. The Applicant shall comply with this requirement; a copy of such shall be submitted to the 

Planning Division prior to issuance of the first Certificate of Occupancy within the development.  

Access: Access is proposed from N. Records Way, a collector street, at the west boundary of the site; and 

from an existing driveway via E. Elden Gray St., a local street, along the east boundary of the site. If one 

doesn’t already exist, a cross-access easement shall be granted to the adjacent property to the east 

(CarMax) for use of the portion of the driveway that lies on this site. A recorded copy of the easement 

shall be submitted with the first Certificate of Zoning Compliance application.  

Where access to a local street is available, the UDC (11-3A-3A.1) requires the site circulation to be to 

be reconfigured to take access from such local street. This standard applies unless otherwise waived by 

City Council. Therefore, the access via N. Records Ave. is not allowed and shall be removed from the 

site/landscape plan. The Applicant may request City Council approval of a waiver of this provision as 

allowed in UDC 11-3A-3 through submittal of an application for City Council Review of the Commission’s 

decision on this matter. Note: ACHD has approved this access with the requirement of a right-turn lane. 

Road Improvements (CIP/IFYWP): Fairview Ave. is listed in the CIP to be widened to 7-lanes from Eagle 

Rd./SH-55 to Cloverdale Rd. between 2036 and 2040. No new roads are proposed or required with this 

application.  

Traffic Impact Study (TIS): ACHD deems the estimated trips from this development is less that what was 

estimated previously for this parcel with the 2- to 3-story office and residential land uses conceptually 

proposed with the TIS for The Village at Meridian in 2011. For this reason, only a turn lane analysis was 

required. Based on this analysis, a northbound dedicated right turn lane on Records Way is recommended at 

the site access; no additional turn lanes are recommended at the access on Elden Gray Street. ACHD is 

supportive of the access provided a turn lane is constructed as recommended. 

Landscaping (UDC 11-3B): 

Landscaped street buffers are required to be provided as follows: a 35-foot wide street buffer is required 

along E. Fairview Ave., an entryway corridor; a 20-foot wide buffer is required along N. Records Way, a 

collector street; and a 10-foot wide buffer is required along E. Elden Gray St., a local street, per UDC Table 

11-2B-3 and landscaped per the standards listed in UDC 11-3B-7C.3. Some portions of the buffers along 

Records and Fairview are below the required widths and should be revised. All buffers are required to 

be planted with a variety of trees, shrubs, lawn or other vegetative groundcover and designed to elicit 

design principles including rhythm, repetition, balance and focal elements per the recently updated 

specifications; the landscape plan shall be revised accordingly. 

Landscaping is required within parking lots in accord with the standards listed in UDC 11-3B-8C. The three 

(3) “diamond” planter islands between the north & south portions of the building do not meet the 

standards in UDC 11-3B-8C.2, which require planters to contain a minimum of 50 square feet and run 

the length of the parking space; the site/landscape plan should be revised accordingly. Where bumpers 

overhang perimeter landscaping in parking areas, the parking stall dimensions may be reduced 2’ in 

length if 2’ is added to the width of the landscaped area planted in groundcover; otherwise, wheel 

stops should be provided to prevent vehicle overhang. The perimeter buffers/parking along the south 

and east boundaries of the site should be revised to comply with this standard. 

Landscaping is required to be provided along all pathways per the standards listed in UDC 11-3B-12C, 

which require a mix of trees, shrubs, lawn and/or other vegetative groundcover. Shrubs should be added to 

the landscape plan in accord with this standard where none are depicted. 

Pathways: The Pathways Master Plan depicts 10-foot wide multi-use pathways along E. Fairview Ave. and 

N. Records Way providing pedestrian connections to Kleiner City Park; pathways are proposed in accord 

with the Plan. A 14-foot wide public pedestrian easement is required to be submitted to the Planning 

Division prior to or concurrent with the Certificate of Zoning Compliance application as 

105Item 2.

https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-3ACST
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-7LABUALST
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-12PALA


 

 
Page 10 

 
  

recommended by the Park’s Dept. If the pathway is partially located within the public right-of-way, 

provide sufficient easement width beyond that boundary to cover the 10’ sidewalk plus 2’. 

Internal pedestrian walkways are required to be distinguished from the vehicular driving surfaces 

through the use of pavers, colored or scored concrete, or bricks per UDC 11-3A-19B.4b. 

Sidewalk: The UDC (11-3A-17) requires minimum 5-foot wide detached sidewalks along all collector and 

arterial streets; and attached sidewalks (or detached) along local streets. Because the Pathways Master Plan 

depicts pathways along Fairview Ave. and Records Way, a 10-foot wide sidewalk is proposed in those areas 

instead; a detached sidewalk is proposed along Eldon Gray St.; and an attached sidewalk is proposed along 

the driveway along the east boundary of the site. 

The minimum width of parkways planted with Class II trees is 8-feet; the planter width may be 

reduced to 6-feet if there are root barriers that meet the standards in UDC 11-3A-17E. The 

site/landscape plans shall be revised accordingly. 

Fencing: Any fencing constructed on the site should comply with the standards listed in UDC 11-3A-7. A 

decorative fence barrier is depicted on the landscape plan along E. Fairview Ave. and N. Records Way.  

Building Elevations (UDC 11-3A-19 | Architectural Standards Manual): 

Conceptual building elevations were submitted for the proposed 5-story structure as shown in Section 

VIII.D. Final design is required to comply with the design standards in the Architectural Standards Manual. 

A Certificate of Zoning Compliance and Design Review application shall be submitted and approved 

prior to submittal of building permit applications.  

VII. DECISION 

A. Staff: 

Staff recommends approval of the proposed CUP with the conditions noted in Section IX per the 

Findings in Section X. However, prior to the Commission’s action on this application, Staff recommends 

the number of dwelling units is reduced to achieve an overall maximum gross density of 40 units per 

acre; a revised open space exhibit is submitted that complies with the minimum open space standards in 

UDC 11-4-3-27C (currently, a minimum of 3.74 acres of qualified open space meeting the minimum 

standards discussed above in Section VI is required but will change if fewer units are provided as 

recommended); and a revised site/landscape plan is submitted that complies with the minimum parking 

standards listed in UDC 11-3C-6 for vehicles and bicycles (currently, a minimum of seven (7) additional 

vehicle spaces and two (2) additional bicycle parking spaces are required but will change if fewer units 

are provided as recommended). The Director has approved the request for ALT per the provisions 

included in Section IX in accord with the Findings in Section X.  

B.  The Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission heard this item on April 7, 2022. At the public 

hearing, the Commission moved to approve the subject CUP request. 

 1. Summary of the Commission public hearing: 

  a. In favor: Jon Wardle, Brighton Corporation; 

  b. In opposition: None 

  c. Commenting: Scott Dykstra; Michelle Loechel; Toni Allison; Gary Koehmstedt; Carrin 

Johnson 

  d. Written testimony: Mike Wardle, Brighton Corp. (response to the staff report); Tom & 

Liz Anthony 

  e. Staff presenting application: Bill Parsons 

  f. Other Staff commenting on application: None 

 2. Key issue(s) of public testimony: 

106Item 2.

https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-17SIPA
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&section_id=1165306#1165306
https://meridiancity.org/designreview


 

 
Page 11 

 
  

  a. Concern pertaining to the amount of traffic that would be generated from this 

development, especially on Venture St. – request for a gate to be installed across 

Venture to prohibit access via Fairview; opinion there was insufficient public outreach 

to neighbors to the east (Staff verified that the adjacent residential neighbors to the east 

are all outside of the 500’ notice range); request for the Applicant to go back to ACHD 

to get updated traffic numbers that reflect today’s traffic counts; request for Elden Gray 

St. to dead-end at Venture St. to keep traffic generated from the development off 

Venture;  

  b. Concern pertaining to existing wells going dry in the area and how that will be impacted 

by development; 

  c. Concern pertaining to pedestrian safety in the area, specifically around the Senior 

Center, with the proposed development and increased vehicular traffic; increased traffic 

on Records and at the Fairview/Eagle intersection; and increased use of Kleiner Park 

and more wear and tear on the park;  

  d. Opinion there is too much high-density housing in this area; 

  e. The Applicant requested changes to the conditions in Section IX of the staff report as 

follows: 1) deletion of condition #A.2, which restricts density to a maximum of 40 

dwelling units per acre; 2) clarification to condition #A.4k that the Applicant plans to 

request a waiver from City Council to UDC 11-3A-3A.2 to allow the proposed access 

via Records Way; and 3) modification to condition #A.4m to include the allowance for 

Alternative Compliance to be requested to the common open space standards; 

 3. Key issue(s) of discussion by Commission: 

  a. Opinion this is the right location for the density proposed and supportive of less open 

space due to the proximity of Kleiner Park;  

  b. Supportive of the project and glad there isn’t a “sea of asphalt” for parking; 

  c. Concern pertaining to safety of pedestrians with vehicular traffic in this area and impacts 

to County residents to the east. 

 4. Commission change(s) to Staff recommendation: 

  a. The Commission approved the Applicant’s requested changes to the conditions of 

approval as noted above. 

  

107Item 2.



 

 
Page 12 

 
  

VIII. EXHIBITS  

A. Site Plan (date: 1/20/2022 4/5/2022) & Rendering – Revised 

 

108Item 2.



 

 
Page 13 

 
  

 

 

  

109Item 2.



 

 
Page 14 

 
  

B. Landscape Plan (dated: 1/20/22 4/5/22) – Revised 

 

110Item 2.



 

 
Page 15 

 
  

 

  

111Item 2.



 

 
Page 16 

 
  

C. Qualified Open Space (dated: 12/8/21, stamped on 1/25/22 4/6/22)      NOT APPROVED 

 

 

  

112Item 2.



 

 
Page 17 

 
  

D. Building Renderings for Multi-Family Structures & Clubhouse (dated: 1/20/22) 

 

 

 

 

113Item 2.



 

 
Page 18 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

114Item 2.



 

 
Page 19 

 
  

 

 

 

 

115Item 2.



 

 
Page 20 

 
  

IX. CITY/AGENCY COMMENTS & CONDITIONS  

A. PLANNING DIVISION 

Conditional Use Permit: 

1. The Applicant shall comply with the provisions in the existing Development Agreement (David 

Kleiner Property of Meridian Town Center AZ-07-012, Inst. #109009630) and all other previous 

conditions of approval. 

2. A maximum gross density of 40 dwelling units per acre shall be provided in this development. 

3. The multi-family development shall have an ongoing obligation to comply with the specific use 

standards listed in UDC 11-4-3-27, including but not limited to the following: 

a. No recreational vehicles, snowmobiles, boats or other personal recreation vehicles shall be 

stored on the site unless provided for in a separate, designated and screened area. 

b. The multi-family development shall record a legally binding document that states the 

maintenance and ownership responsibilities for the management of the development, including, 

but not limited to, structures, parking, common areas, and other development features as set 

forth in UDC 11-4-3-27F. A recorded copy of said document shall be submitted to the 

Planning Division prior to issuance of the first Certificate of Occupancy for the 

development. 

4. The site and/or landscape plan submitted with the Certificate of Zoning Compliance shall be revised 

as follows: 

a.  Depict the locations of the property management office, maintenance storage area, central 

mailbox location (including provisions for parcel mail, that provide safe pedestrian and/or 

vehicular access), and a directory and map of the development at an entrance or convenient 

location for those entering the development in accord with UDC 11-4-3-27B.7. 

b. Depict landscaping along the foundations of all street facing elevations as set forth in UDC 11-4-

3-27E.2. 

c. Depict a minimum 35-foot wide street buffer along E. Fairview Ave., an entryway corridor; a 

minimum 20-foot wide buffer along N. Records Way, a collector street; and a minimum 10-foot 

wide buffer along E. Elden Gray St., a local street, per UDC Table 11-2B-3. 

d. Within street buffers, depict a variety of trees, shrubs, lawn or other vegetative groundcover 

designed to elicit design principles including rhythm, repetition, balance and focal elements per 

the recently updated specifications set forth in UDC 11-3B-7C.3. 

e. Remove the three (3) “diamond” planter islands between the north & south portions of the 

building and replace them with planter islands that comply with the standards in UDC 11-3B-

8C.2. 

f. Shrubs shall be added to the landscape strips along pathways where none currently exist in order 

to contribute to the mix of landscaping required by UDC 11-3B-12C.2. 

g. Where bumpers overhang perimeter landscaping in parking areas, the parking stall dimensions 

may be reduced 2’ in length if 2’ is added to the width of the landscaped area planted in 

groundcover; otherwise, wheel stops shall be provided to prevent vehicle overhang. The 

perimeter buffers/parking along the south and east boundaries of the site should be revised to 

comply with this standard. 

116Item 2.

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=62574&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH4SPUSST_11-4-3-27MUMIDE
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH4SPUSST_11-4-3-27MUMIDE
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-7LABUALST
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-8PALOLA
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-8PALOLA
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-8PALOLA


 

 
Page 21 

 
  

h. Internal pedestrian walkways are required to be distinguished from the vehicular driving 

surfaces through the use of pavers, colored or scored concrete, or bricks per UDC 11-3A-

19B.4b. 

i. Depict off-street vehicle parking and bicycle parking spaces in accord with the standards listed 

in UDC 11-3C-6 (i.e. currently, a minimum of 822 off-street vehicle parking spaces are required 

with at least 388 of those in a covered carport or garage for the multi-family units, guest and 

clubhouse; and a minimum of 30 bicycle parking spaces are required depending on how may 

vehicle parking spaces are provided – these numbers will change if fewer units are provided as 

recommended). 

j. All on-site service areas, outdoor storage areas, waste storage, disposal facilities, and 

transformer and utility vaults shall be depicted on the site plan and shall not be located in an area 

not visible from a public street, or shall be fully screened from view from a public street as set 

forth in UDC 11-4-3-27B.2. 

k. Remove the access driveway via N. Records Way in accord with UDC 11-3A-3A.1, unless 

otherwise waived by City Council. The Applicant plans to request a waiver from City Council to 

this standard. 

l. The minimum width of parkways planted with Class II trees is 8-feet; the planter width may be 

reduced to 6-feet if there are root barriers that meet the standards in UDC 11-3A-17E. 

m. Depict common open space that complies with the dimensional standards in UDC 11-4-3-27 (i.e. 

shall not be less than 400 square feet in area and shall have a minimum length and width 

dimension of 20 feet). Given the project’s proximity to Kleiner Park, the Applicant shall submit 

an Alternative Compliance application for the baseline open space requirement.  

4. A cross-access easement shall be granted to the adjacent property to the east (CarMax – Parcel 

#S1104438755) for use of the portion of the driveway that lies on this site; a recorded copy of the 

easement shall be submitted with the first Certificate of Zoning Compliance application. If an 

easement already exists, submit a copy of the recorded easement. 

5. The Director approved the Applicant’s request for Alternative Compliance to the private usable open 

space standards listed in UDC 11-4-3-27B.3 for each dwelling unit as follows: zero (0) s.f. for studio 

units; 57-82 s.f. for 1-bedroom units; and 60 s.f. for the 3-bedroom units. Floor plans with square 

footages noted for patios and balconies shall be submitted with the Certificate of Zoning 

Compliance application that demonstrate compliance with the alternative compliance 

approval. 

6. Submit a 14-foot wide public pedestrian easement for the 10-foot wide pathways required along the 

southern and western boundaries of the site in accord with Park’s Department requirements prior to 

or with the Certificate of Zoning Compliance application. If partially located within the public right-

of-way, provide sufficient easement width beyond that boundary to cover the 10’ sidewalk plus 2’. 

7. The Applicant should work with ACHD’s Planning and Projects group to see if a pedestrian crossing 

can be provided to the north across N. Records Way at the Record/Longwing intersection for 

pedestrian safety between the residential and commercial development, as well as the City Park. 

8. An application for Certificate of Zoning Compliance and Design Review shall be submitted for the 

proposed project and approved prior to submittal of building permit applications. Compliance with 

the design standards listed in the Architectural Standards Manual is required.  

117Item 2.

https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTCOREPALORE_11-3C-6RENUOREPASP
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=253285&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity&cr=1


 

 
Page 22 

 
  

B. PUBLIC WORKS 

Site Specific Conditions of Approval  

1. A geotechnical report was not included with this application. A geotechnical report is required to be 

submitted and reviewed with the first final plat application.  

2. 20-foot-wide utility easements are required for all water and sewer mains outside right-of-way. 

Easements must be centered over mains.  

3. No permanent structures including but not limited to trees, bushes, carports, buildings, trash 

enclosures, fences, infiltration trenches, light poles, etc. may be placed within a utility easement.  

4. Fire flow was modeled at 1500 gpm. If more than 1500 gpm is required, contact Public Works.  

5. Proposed wastewater flow is 47,000 gpd greater than the master plan. Capacity is available at this 

time, but there is no guarantee that additional capacity will be available at the time of application 

submittal.  

6. Ensure no sewer services cross infiltration trenches.  

General Conditions of Approval  

7. Applicant shall coordinate water and sewer main size and routing with the Public Works 

Department, and execute standard forms of easements for any mains that are required to provide 

service outside of a public right-of-way.  Minimum cover over sewer mains is three feet, if cover 

from top of pipe to sub-grade is less than three feet than alternate materials shall be used in 

conformance of City of Meridian Public Works Departments Standard Specifications. 

8. Per Meridian City Code (MCC), the applicant shall be responsible to install sewer and water mains 

to and through this development.  Applicant may be eligible for a reimbursement agreement for 

infrastructure enhancement per MCC 8-6-5.  

9. The applicant shall provide easement(s) for all public water/sewer mains outside of public right of 

way (include all water services and hydrants).  The easement widths shall be 20-feet wide for a 

single utility, or 30-feet wide for two.  Submit an executed easement (on the form available from 

Public Works), a legal description prepared by an Idaho Licensed Professional Land Surveyor, 

which must include the area of the easement (marked EXHIBIT A) and an 81/2” x 11” map with 

bearings and distances (marked EXHIBIT B) for review. Both exhibits must be sealed, signed and 

dated by a Professional Land Surveyor. DO NOT RECORD.   

10. The City of Meridian requires that pressurized irrigation systems be supplied by a year-round source 

of water (MCC 9-1-28.C). The applicant should be required to use any existing surface or well water 

for the primary source.  If a surface or well source is not available, a single-point connection to the 

culinary water system shall be required. If a single-point connection is utilized, the developer will be 

responsible for the payment of assessments for the common areas prior to prior to receiving 

development plan approval.  

11. Any structures that are allowed to remain shall be subject to evaluation and possible reassignment of 

street addressing to be in compliance with MCC. 

12. All irrigation ditches, canals, laterals, or drains, exclusive of natural waterways, intersecting, 

crossing or laying adjacent and contiguous to the area being subdivided shall be addressed per UDC 

11-3A-6.  In performing such work, the applicant shall comply with Idaho Code 42-1207 and any 

other applicable law or regulation. 

13. Any wells that will not continue to be used must be properly abandoned according to Idaho Well 

Construction Standards Rules administered by the Idaho Department of Water Resources.  The 

118Item 2.



 

 
Page 23 

 
  

Developer’s Engineer shall provide a statement addressing whether there are any existing wells in 

the development, and if so, how they will continue to be used, or provide record of their 

abandonment.   

14. Any existing septic systems within this project shall be removed from service per City Ordinance 

Section 9-1-4 and 9 4 8.  Contact Central District Health for abandonment procedures and 

inspections (208)375-5211. 

15. All improvements related to public life, safety and health shall be completed prior to occupancy of 

the structures.  

16. Applicant shall be required to pay Public Works development plan review, and construction 

inspection fees, as determined during the plan review process, prior to the issuance of a plan 

approval letter.  

17. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to ensure that all development features comply with the 

Americans with Disabilities Act and the Fair Housing Act. 

18. Applicant shall be responsible for application and compliance with any Section 404 Permitting that 

may be required by the Army Corps of Engineers. 

19. Developer shall coordinate mailbox locations with the Meridian Post Office. 

20. Compaction test results shall be submitted to the Meridian Building Department for all building pads 

receiving engineered backfill, where footing would sit atop fill material. 

21. The design engineer shall be required to certify that the street centerline elevations are set a 

minimum of 3-feet above the highest established peak groundwater elevation.  This is to ensure that 

the bottom elevation of the crawl spaces of homes is at least 1-foot above. 

22. The applicants design engineer shall be responsible for inspection of all irrigation and/or    drainage 

facility within this project that do not fall under the jurisdiction of an irrigation district or ACHD. 

The design engineer shall provide certification that the facilities have been installed in accordance 

with the approved design plans. This certification will be required before a certificate of occupancy 

is issued for any structures within the project.  

23. At the completion of the project, the applicant shall be responsible to submit record drawings per the 

City of Meridian AutoCAD standards.  These record drawings must be received and approved prior 

to the issuance of a certification of occupancy for any structures within the project.  

24. A street light plan will need to be included in the civil construction plans. Street light plan 

requirements are listed in section 6-5 of the Improvement Standards for Street Lighting. A copy of 

the standards can be found at http://www.meridiancity.org/public_works.aspx?id=272. 

25. The City of Meridian requires that the owner post to the City a warranty surety in the amount of 20% 

of the total construction cost for all completed sewer, water and reuse infrastructure for duration of 

two years. This surety will be verified by a line item cost estimate provided by the owner to the City. 

The surety can be posted in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit, cash deposit or bond. 

Applicant must file an application for surety, which can be found on the Community Development 

Department website.  Please contact Land Development Service for more information at 887-2211. 

119Item 2.

http://www.meridiancity.org/public_works.aspx?id=272


 

 
Page 24 

 
  

C. FIRE DEPARTMENT 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=253274&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity&cr

=1   

D. POLICE DEPARTMENT 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=253287&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity  

E. COMMUNITY PLANNING ASSOCIATION OF SOUTHWEST IDAHO (COMPASS) 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=254097&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity   

F. NAMPA & MERIDIAN IRRIGATION DISTRICT (NMID) 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=255743&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity  

G. DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY (DEQ) 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=254218&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity  

H. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SCHOOL IMPACT TABLE 

Not yet received. 

I. WEST ADA SCHOOL DISTRICT (WASD) 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=255717&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity&cr

=1   

J. PARK’S DEPARTMENT 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=253285&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity   

K. ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT (ACHD) 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=255187&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity   

X. FINDINGS  

A. Conditional Use Permit (UDC 11-5B-6E) 

The Commission shall base its determination on the Conditional Use Permit requests upon the following: 

1. That the site is large enough to accommodate the proposed use and meet all the dimensional and 

development regulations in the district in which the use is located. 

The Commission finds with the number of units proposed, the site does not appears to be large 

enough to accommodate the proposed use and dimensional and development regulations of the 

district. If the number of dwelling units are reduced as recommended, which will in turn reduce the 

amount of common open space and off-street vehicle and bicycle parking requirements and allow 

adequate room for the street buffers and common areas to be widened where needed to meet the 

minimum standards, the site should be large enough to accommodate the proposed use and meet the 

dimsensional and development regulations of the district (see Analysis, Section VI for more 

information).  

 

120Item 2.

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=253274&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity&cr=1
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=253274&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity&cr=1
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=253287&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=254097&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=255743&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=254218&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=255717&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity&cr=1
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=255717&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity&cr=1
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=253285&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=255187&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity


 

 
Page 25 

 
  

2. That the proposed use will be harmonious with the Meridian Comprehensive Plan and in accord with 

the requirements of this Title. 

The Commission finds that the proposed use and density is consistent with uses and density desired 

in the MU-R designation but that the density should be reduced to a maximum of 40 units per acre 

(gross) to be consistent with the density guidelines for the MU-R designation (i.e. 6-40 units per 

acre). The multi-family residential use is allowed as a conditional use in UDC Table 11-2B-2 in the 

C-G zoning district.  

3. That the design, construction, operation and maintenance will be compatible with other uses in the 

general neighborhood and with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity and that such 

use will not adversely change the essential character of the same area. 

The Commission finds the proposed design of the development, construction, operation and 

maintenance should be compatible with the mix of other uses in this area and with the intended 

character of the area and that such uses will not adversely change the character of the area.  

4. That the proposed use, if it complies with all conditions of the approval imposed, will not adversely 

affect other property in the vicinity. 

The Commission finds that if the applicant complies with the conditions outlined in this report, the 

proposed use will not adversely affect other property in the area. The Commission should weigh any 

public testimony provided to determine if the development will adversely affect other properties in the 

vicinity. 

5. That the proposed use will be served adequately by essential public facilities and services such as 

highways, streets, schools, parks, police and fire protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, water, 

and sewer. 

The Commission finds that essential public services are available to this property and that the use will 

be adequately served by these facilities. 

B. Alternative Compliance (UDC 11-5B-5): 

In order to grant approval of an alternative compliance application, the Director shall determine the 

following: 

1. Strict adherence or application of the requirements is not feasible; OR 

The Director finds strict adherence to the standards pertaining to private usable open space listed in 

UDC 11-4-3-27B.3 is feasible.  

2.  The alternative compliance provides an equal or superior means for meeting the requirements; and 

The Director finds the proposed alternative compliance of providing extraordinary site amenities, 

coupled with innovative new urban design with an emphasis on integrated, internal open space and 

facilities provides an equal means for meeting the requirement. 

3. The alternative means will not be materially detrimental to the public welfare or impair the intended 

uses and character of the surrounding properties. 

The Director finds that the proposed alternative means of compliance will not be detrimental to the 

public welfare or impair the intended use/character of the surrounding properties. 

121Item 2.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Public Hearing for Future Land Use Map Ada County Area of City Impact 
Cleanup (H-2021-0098) by City of Meridian Planning Division, Located Citywide
A. Request: Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment to clean up the map to better align with the 

adopted Ada County Area of City Impact (AOCI) boundary AND removing Civic designations and 

areas that will be serviced by other jurisdictions (Boise).

122Item 7.



 
 

	
Page 1 

	
	 	

HEARING 
DATE: 

4/21/2022 

 

TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 

FROM: Brian McClure, Comprehensive 
Associate Planner 

208-884-5533 

SUBJECT: H-2021-0098 

2022 Future Land Use Map AOCI 
Cleanup, CPAM 

LOCATION: Various; Citywide 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The City of Meridian Planning division submitted an application for a Comprehensive Plan Map 
(CPAM) amendment. This amendment includes cleanup, or administrative-type changes to the Future 
Land Use Map (FLUM; Map), and modifies the boundaries of the Area of City Impact (AOCI) shown 
on the FLUM. Additionally, Planning staff have modified the future land use symbols to improve 
visual recognition, and better-defined sub-area type plans in the legend.  This amendment does not 
modify any policies or text of the Comprehensive Plan. 

II. PROJECT OVERVIEW 

There are seven proposed areas of change for this Map amendment that either modify the boundaries 
of the Area of City Impact (AOCI), or the future land use designations shown on the FLUM. All of 
these changes are north of Interstate 84, and the majority of them have had some previous type of 
decision or action by either Meridian, the County, or an adjacent City. There are 34 unique parcels 
affected by the proposed changes, with 23 unique owners. Letters notifying each of these owners with 
the specific change were mailed on March 4, 2022. The following are descriptions of the changes, 
organized by each of the seven areas. Maps of each of these areas are included in the Exhibits 
section, with all changes being categorized as either AOCI (an AOCI change), or Cleanup (a change 
to the future land use designation). 

A. Area 01 Description 

The only change to this area is to remove all affected parcels and right-of-way from Meridian’s 
AOCI. This area has already been removed from Meridian’s AOCI by Ada County, in 
coordination with Meridian and the City of Star, but is not yet reflected on the City’s Future Land 

STAFF REPORT 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

123Item 7.



 

	
Page 2 

	
	 	

Use Map. This area is not planned for water or sewer service by Meridian, and is not accessible 
from within the City. 

B. Area 02 Description 

The only change in this area is a cleanup for a prior CPAM approval, resolution 21-2266, which 
was not drawn consistently and affects only right-of-way. Staff try to recommend Map changes 
that consistently follow parcel or centerlines, but this was not the case in this area. This is frankly 
a drawing error that staff would otherwise simply correct with map cleanup (once discovered), 
but this application presented an opportunity to daylight the desire for consistency in designation 
boundaries. All applications for changes to the FLUM should consider the alignment of adjacent 
boundaries, either following the centerline of roadways (preferred), or parcel lines. 

C. Area 03 Description 

The only change to this area is the removal of all affected parcels and right-of-way from the 
AOCI. All four parcels impacted are owned by the Ada County Highway District (ACHD). The 
ACHD is developing a new Traffic Operations Center that falls in both the City of Boise and 
Meridian AOCI, and it is not realistic to develop the project in multiple jurisdictions. This project 
has already been initiated in the City of Boise, in coordination with Meridian, but the AOCI has 
not been modified by the City or Ada County to date. 

D. Area 04 Description 

The changes in this area overlap and are a little complex, but the basis for all of the changes are to 
recognize the County approved AOCI (and previous decisions by Meridian). There are five 
impacted parcels and four unique owners. Only one parcel is not already annexed into either 
Boise or Meridian. The County parcel which is an enclave, #R4582530100, is planned for 
services in Boise but is currently shown as split between Meridian and Boise in the adopted 
Future Land Use Map. All of the other changes are expansions or retractions of the adopted future 
land uses, and all of which align with existing or entitled developments. 

E. Area 05 Description 

The only change to this area is the removal of a single parcel and adjacent right-of-way from the 
AOCI. This modification was previously approved by Ada County, in coordination with Meridian 
and Boise. Further, it is an older existing County development and has been annexed into the City 
of Boise. 

F. Area 06 Description 

There are two changes affecting three parcels and adjacent right-of-way in this area. All three 
parcels have a Civic future land use designation but are not civic uses. Parcel #R5672000315 is 
the former, Old City Hall site, and is now being developed as a mixed-use project in private 
ownership. The proposed Map designation is Old Town, which surrounds the site and 
corresponds to the parcel’s Old-Town zoning. The other affected properties have had a Civic 
designation going back to at least the 2002 Comprehensive Plan. It is not known if there was once 
a reason, or if it was simply an error not caught until now. The proposed designation is Medium 
Density Residential, which other adjacent properties are currently designated. The existing uses 
have R-4 zoning, but likely include non-conforming uses (which are unaffected by this change). 
The Civic designations under both the 2010 and 2019 Comprehensive Plans are intended for 
facilities owned by public agencies, or by quasi-public agencies such as Idaho Power, and which 
should have some public awareness on the FLUM. 

124Item 7.



 

	
Page 3 

	
	 	

G. Area 07 Description 

There are two different changes in this area with 14 impacted parcels. The first change is 
updating the future land use designations of the properties which the West Ada School District 
and Idaho State University have made improvements to. This area includes parking along 
Commercial Drive and I-84, and also the new Idaho Fine Arts Academy. The current designation 
is Commercial, and proposed for Civic (matching the rest of the adjacent school/university owned 
properties.) 

The second change affects the other 12 parcels along Franklin Road. These parcels all contain 
commercial operations, in both the County and City, and which are surrounded by Industrial uses 
or the Meridian Cemetery. The adopted land use is High Density Residential, and the proposed 
change is Commercial to reflect the existing uses. The office park has a few undeveloped pad 
sites, but are all zoned C-G. The Ada County parcel along Franklin Road has an R6 zoning 
designation (residential), but operates several businesses. The Commercial future land use 
designation would not disallow uses already allowed within C-G. Annexation and zoning of the 
adopted High Density Residential future land use designation, would require a conditional use 
permit for multi-family in all consistent zoning, just like a commercial designation. 

H. Summary of Future Land Use Changes 

1. Summary by Future Land Use Areas 
The following table summarizes changes to the AOCI and future land use designations. 

Change Type Current Designation Proposed Designation  Acres  

Cleanup Civic Old Town 1.34  

Cleanup Civic MDR 0.75  

Cleanup MHDR Commercial 5.00  

Cleanup Commercial Civic 19.99  

AOCI Remove MU-RG  2.94  

AOCI Remove MDR  31.91  

AOCI Remove MU-I  6.96  

AOCI Remove MDR  1.14  

AOCI Add  MU-RG 1.44  

AOCI Add  MU-RG 1.64  

AOCI Remove MU-RG  0.41  

AOCI Remove Commercial  1.91  

AOCI Remove Industrial  6.77  

Cleanup Mixed Employment  0.13  

Total Area Impacted   82.31  

Total Cleanup Area   27.20 

Total Area Added to AOCI   3.07  

Total Area Removed from AOCI   52.04  

2. Summary by Parcel 
The following table describes the future land use designation changes for each affected 
parcel. 

125Item 7.



 

	
Page 4 

	
	 	

Parcel # 
Current 
Zoning 

 Acres Description of Future Land Use Change  

R0797730010 C-G  0.81  High Density Residential to Commerical 

R0797730020 C-G  0.14  High Density Residential to Commerical 

R0797730030 C-G  0.15  High Density Residential to Commerical 

R0797730042 C-G  0.21  High Density Residential to Commerical 

R0797730052 C-G  0.14  High Density Residential to Commerical 

R0797730060 C-G  0.15  High Density Residential to Commerical 

R0797730070 C-G  0.36  High Density Residential to Commerical 

R0797730080 C-G  0.15  High Density Residential to Commerical 

R0797730090 C-G  0.15  High Density Residential to Commerical 

R0797730100 C-G  0.25  High Density Residential to Commerical 

R0888210100 C-G  13.22  Commercial to Civic 

R0888210200 C-G  5.69  Commercial to Civic 

R1798151400 R-40  3.49  Mixed Use Regional to Mixed Use Regional (entire 
property) 

R4582530100 RUT  5.00  Mixed Use Regional to None (remove from AOCI) 

R4582530281 C-G  0.63  Mixed Use Regional to Mixed Use Regional (entire 
property) 

R5672000315 O-T  0.91  Civic to Old Town 

R9322500043 R-4  0.02  Civic to Medium Density Residential 

R9322500045 R-4  0.30  Civic to Medium Density Residential 

R9322500077 R-4  0.30  Civic to Medium Density Residential 

R9846840100 L-OD  0.78  Medium Density Residential to None (remove from AOCI) 

S0420449850 RUT  2.30  Mixed Use Interchange to None (remove from AOCI) 

S0421325480 RUT  0.46  Medium Density Residential to None (remove from AOCI) 

S0421325620 RUT  4.64  Medium Density Residential to None (remove from AOCI) 

S0421325800 RUT  5.26  Medium Density Residential to None (remove from AOCI) 

S0421326015 RUT  3.42  Medium Density Residential to None (remove from AOCI) 

S0421336200 RUT  6.28  Medium Density Residential to None (remove from AOCI) 

S0532417376 C-G  0.87  None to Mixed Use Regional (add entire property to AOCI) 

S1104438500 C-2D  1.59  Commercial to None (remove from AOCI) 

S1109438931 RUT  3.88  Industrial to None (remove from AOCI) 

S1109438940 RUT  1.04  Industrial to None (remove from AOCI) 

S1109438950 M1  0.52  Industrial to None (remove from AOCI) 

S1109448970 M1  1.07  Industrial to None (remove from AOCI) 

S1118120731 R6  0.57  High Density Residential to Commerical 

S1118120740 R6  0.69  High Density Residential to Commerical 

Note: Current Zoning shown in italics font style represents a non-Meridian zoning 
designation (i.e. County or adjacent city). Total acreages will not match Summary by Future 
Land Use Area, which includes right-of-way and other non-parcel area. 

126Item 7.



 

	
Page 5 

	
	 	

I. Other Changes 

1. Area of City Impact Boundary 
The AOCI boundary line on the current Map will be revised to reflect all future land use area 
additions and subtractions. See the Exhibit section, Future Land Use Map (with all changes). 

2. Graphic Revisions 
The proposed Map includes several other graphic type changes. First, the legend is modified 
to show “Special Planning Areas”. This was previously dedicated to the Ten Mile 
Interchange Specific Area Plan, but has now been expanded to cover other planning areas, 
like the Fields District. These areas will be labeled with their relevant plans, and the web 
maps will have links to their respective plans in popup dialogs. 

The other change is to the symbology of the various future land use designations. Many of the 
adopted designations are difficult to differentiate accurately. The base color for each 
designation is generally the same or very similar, but additional hatching and patterns have 
been selectively added to better differentiate designations that currently share similar hues 
and intensities. There was a concerted effort to balance differentiation of the symbols while 
minimizing complexity. 

III. APPLICANT INFORMATION 

A. Applicant: 

City of Meridian Planning Division, 33 E Broadway Ave, Suite 102, Meridian, Idaho 83642 

B. Owner: 

Not applicable 

C. Representative: 

Not applicable 

IV. NOTICING 

 Planning & Zoning 
Posting Date 

City Council 
Posting Date 

Notification published in 
newspaper 4/5/2022   

Notification mailed to property 
owners within 300’ N/A   

Applicant posted public hearing 
notice sign on site N/A   

Nextdoor posting 4/5/2022   

V. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN ANALYSIS (Comprehensive Plan) 

A. Future Land Use Map Designation (https://meridiancity.org/FLUM) 

This application does not include any annexation, rezones, or new entitlements. As such, 
no specific analysis is provided for the proposed changes. Never-the-less, the following 
future land use designations with descriptions (copy and paste from the Comprehensive 
Plan) are included in the application: 

127Item 7.



 

	
Page 6 

	
	 	

 Medium Density Residential (MDR): This designation allows for dwelling units at gross 
densities of three to eight dwelling units per acre. Density bonuses may be considered 
with the provision of additional public amenities such as a park, school, or land dedicated 
for public services. 

 Medium High Density Residential (MHDR): This designation allows for a mix of 
dwelling types including townhouses, condominiums, and apartments. Residential gross 
densities should range from eight to twelve dwelling units per acre. These areas are 
relatively compact within the context of larger neighborhoods and are typically located 
around or near mixed use commercial or employment areas to provide convenient access 
to services and jobs for residents. Developments need to incorporate high quality 
architectural design and materials and thoughtful site design to ensure quality of place 
and should also incorporate connectivity with adjacent uses and area pathways, attractive 
landscaping and a project identity. 

 Commercial: This designation will provide a full range of commercial uses to serve area 
residents and visitors. Desired uses may include retail, restaurants, personal and 
professional services, and office uses, as well as appropriate public and quasi-public uses. 
Multi-family residential may be allowed in some cases, but should be careful to promote 
a high quality of life through thoughtful site design, connectivity, and amenities. Sample 
zoning include: C-N, C-C, and C-G. 

 Industrial: This designation allows a range of uses that support industrial and commercial 
activities. Industrial uses may include warehouses, storage units, light manufacturing, 
flex, and incidental retail and offices uses. In some cases uses may include processing, 
manufacturing, warehouses, storage units, and industrial support activities. Sample 
zoning include: I-L and I-H. 

 Civic: The purpose of this designation is to preserve and protect existing and planned 
municipal, state, and federal lands for area residents and visitors. This category includes 
public lands, law enforcement facilities, post offices, fire stations, cemeteries, public 
utility sites, public parks, public schools, and other government owned sites within the 
Area of City Impact. 

 Old Town: This designation includes the historic downtown and the true community 
center. The boundary of the Old Town district predominantly follows Meridian’s historic 
plat boundaries. In several areas, both sides of a street were incorporated into the 
boundary to encourage similar uses and complimentary design of the facing houses and 
buildings. Sample uses include offices, retail and lodging, theatres, restaurants, and 
service retail for surrounding residents and visitors. A variety of residential uses are also 
envisioned and could include reuse of existing buildings, new construction of multi-
family residential over ground floor retail or office uses. 
 
The City has developed specific architectural standards for Old Town and other 
traditional neighborhood areas. Pedestrian amenities are emphasized in Old Town via 
streetscape standards. Additional public and quasi-public amenities and outdoor gathering 
area are encouraged. Future planning in Old Town will be reviewed in accordance with 
Destination Downtown, a visioning document for redevelopment in Downtown Meridian. 
Please see Chapter 2 Premier Community for more information on Destination 
Downtown. Sample zoning include O-T. 

 Mixed Use Regional (MU-RG): The purpose of this designation is to provide a mix of 
employment, retail, and residential dwellings and public uses near major arterial 

128Item 7.



 

	
Page 7 

	
	 	

intersections. The intent is to integrate a variety of uses together, including residential, 
and to avoid predominantly single use developments such as a regional retail center with 
only restaurants and other commercial uses. Developments should be anchored by uses 
that have a regional draw with the appropriate supporting uses. For example, an 
employment center should have supporting retail uses; a retail center should have 
supporting residential uses as well as supportive neighborhood and community services. 
The standards for the MU-R designation provide an incentive for larger public and quasi-
public uses where they provide a meaningful and appropriate mix to the development. 
The developments are encouraged to be designed consistent with the conceptual MU-R 
plan depicted in Figure 3D. 

 Mixed Use Interchange (MU-I): The purpose of this designation is to call-out areas where 
construction of future SH-16 interchanges is likely to occur, and to acknowledge that this 
land will have a high degree of visibility. These areas will be served by highway 
interchange ramps and restricted local access. There are two interchange areas, one 
located at US 20-26 and one at Ustick Road, that differ from the other Mixed Use 
categories in that a much stronger emphasis will be placed upon gateway elements and 
traffic flow/trip generation factors when reviewing new land use applications. Uses in 
these areas will need to be compatible with the impacts of a freeway interchange. These 
areas are not intended for high volume uses such as retail. The intention is to protect the 
immediate vicinity of the interchange from traffic conflicts and shift the high traffic-
generating uses away from the immediate vicinity of the interchange. 
 
In reviewing development applications, the following items will be considered in MU-I 
areas: 

o Land uses within the MU-I areas and adjacent to the SH-16 corridor should be 
carefully examined for their potential impacts on nearby existing and planned 
retail and restaurant in Commercial and Mixed Use areas. 

o A traffic impact study may be required for larger developments in these areas. 

o Vehicular access points are prohibited near interchange ramps. Future uses 
should be planned to integrate with a frontage/backage road type circulation 
system. 

o Any new development at or near MU-I areas should promote a nodal 
development pattern where buildings are clustered, off-street parking is screened 
in the rear of the parcel and, where practical, development is inter-connected with 
adjoining parcels. 

o The SH-16/US 20-26 interchange will be one of only two regional gateways to 
the City of Meridian for travelers coming from north of the Boise River (the 
other being Linder Road). As such, buildings, landscaping, and other design 
features at this interchange should reflect Meridian’s heritage, quality, and 
character. 

o Regional ridesharing, park-and-ride and transit transfer facilities are strongly 
encouraged. 

o The MU-I area at Ustick Road, west of SH-16, should minimize retail and auto-
oriented services and transition rapidly from the interchange to residential uses 
near the county line. 

129Item 7.



 

	
Page 8 

	
	 	

o Examples of uses include schools, post office or library branches, office uses, 
light residential developments, athletic clubs, and technology/research parks. 

 Mixed Employment (designation is specific to the Ten Mile Interchange Specific Area 
Plan): encourage a diversity of compatible land uses that may include a mixture of office, 
research and specialized employment areas, light industrial including manufacturing and 
assembly, and other miscellaneous uses. These areas generally do not include retail and 
consumer service uses serving the wider community. However, a small amount of retail 
and service establishments, primarily serving employees and users of the Mixed 
Employment areas or nearby industrial areas, are allowed. Such retail would be the 
exception and not the rule. 
 
Mixed Employment areas should provide a variety of flexible sites for small, local or 
start-up businesses, as well as sites for large national or regional enterprises. Mixed 
Employment areas should be designed to encourage multimodal travel and convenient 
circulation to supporting uses located within the area. This would include multiple access 
points to help disperse traffic, and a complete system of streets, sidewalks and pedestrian 
and bicycle paths to provide circulation within the area and connections to the 
surrounding roadway, pedestrian and trail systems. 
 
Mixed Employment areas should be designed as lower density suburban-style 
developments. Design and development standards are recommended that would help to 
make developments more attractive, engaging and accessible places. While there are no 
fixed limits on size of establishment or development intensity in Mixed Employment 
areas, it is anticipated that buildings will range in height from 1-4 stories, have total floor 
areas of 10,000-1,000,000 square feet, and that FAR will exceed .75. 
 
Land Use Types in Mixed Employment Areas 

o Corporate and business offices. 

o Research facilities and laboratories. 

o Light Industrial uses including manufacturing and assembly. 

o Occasional, complementary uses which focus on serving area employees and 
users, such as business services, child care, and convenience retail. 

B. Comprehensive Plan Policies (https://meridiancity.org/compplan): 

The following policies are relevant to the project: 

 3.04.01B, Maintain and update the Unified Development Code and Future Land Use Map 
to implement the provisions of this Comprehensive Plan. 
The primary purpose of this application is to maintain and update the Future Land Use 
Map. The proposed changes will more accurately depict future land uses that are in 
alignment with service planning and in coordination with partner agencies. 

 3.06.01A, Maintain the Future Land Use Map to reflect existing facilities. 
The proposed changes will better reflect existing facilities and no longer suggest them in 
locations that are privately owned. 

130Item 7.



 

	
Page 9 

	
	 	

VI. DECISION 

A. Staff: 

Staff finds that approval of the proposed CPAM application is in the best interest of the City 
and recommends the P&Z Commission recommend to Council adoption. 

B. Commission: 

Enter Summary of Commission Decision. 

C. City Council: 

Enter Summary of City Council Decision. 

  

131Item 7.



 

	
Page 10 

	
	 	

VII. EXHIBITS 

A. Area Exhibits 

 

 

132Item 7.



 

	
Page 11 

	
	 	

 

 

133Item 7.



 

	
Page 12 

	
	 	

 

 

134Item 7.



 

	
Page 13 

	
	 	

 

135Item 7.



 

	
Page 14 

	
	 	

B. Future Land Use Map (with all changes) 

 

A full size exhibit of this map will be available in the project folder on Laserfische, here: 
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/Browse.aspx?id=251825&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity 

 

136Item 7.



 

	
Page 15 

	
	 	

VIII. CITY/AGENCY COMMENTS & CONDITIONS 

As of April 11, 2022, only Ada County Development Services has submitted comments 
associated with this application. They are supportive of the application, with no conditions. 
The Ada County Highway District has previously requested the change for their project on 
Franklin Road, but no comments have been received. 

Any comments can be found on Laserfische here: 
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/Browse.aspx?id=254980&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity 

IX. FINDINGS 

A. Required Findings from the Unified Development Code 

1. The proposed amendment is consistent with the other elements of the comprehensive plan. 
The proposed amendment is maintenance of the Comprehensive Plan and which contains all 
seventeen (17) elements required by Idaho State Statute. Staff finds the amendment maintains 
this consistency as no changes are substantive to policy. 

2. The proposed amendment provides an improved guide to future growth and development of 
the city. 
By maintaining and keeping the Comprehensive Plan relevant, Staff finds that the proposed 
Plan provides an improved and more relevant guide to future growth and development with 
the City. 

3. The proposed amendment is internally consistent with the goals, objectives and policies of 
the Comprehensive Plan. 
Staff finds the proposed amendment is consistent with the goals of the Comprehensive Plan. 
Maintenance of the Plan is directed by policy. 

4. The proposed amendment is consistent with this Unified Development Code. 
Staff finds the proposed amendment is consistent with the Unified Development Code, as no 
policies in the Comprehensive Plan modified, and no development proposed. 

5. The amendment will be compatible with existing and planned surrounding land uses. 
Along with improving consistency between the area of city impact and other planning work, 
the primary purpose of this amendment is to better relate existing and planned land uses. 
Staff finds the proposed Plan will be compatible with existing and planned surrounding land 
uses.  

6. The proposed amendment will not burden existing and planned service capabilities. 
Staff finds that the proposed Plan will not burden existing and planned service capabilities. 
This amendment improves the relationship between service planning, and better reflects 
coordination with partner agencies in service planning. 

7. The proposed map amendment (as applicable) provides a logical juxtaposition of uses that 
allows sufficient area to mitigate any anticipated impact associated with the development of 
the area. 
The proposed amendment is minor and intended only to address existing uses and changes in 
service planning. Staff finds that the amendment does not require mitigation of impacts 
associated with development. 

137Item 7.



 

	
Page 16 

	
	 	

8. The proposed amendment is in the best interest of the City of Meridian. 
Staff finds the proposed amendment is in the best interest of the City; it implements adopted 
(existing) policy, and maintaining the plan improves visibility and relevancy.  

 

138Item 7.



! ! !

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

! !

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

Æb
Æb

Æb

Æb

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n
n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n
n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

kj

kj

kj

kj

kj

kj

kj

kj

kj

kj
kj

kj

kj

kj

kj

kj

kj
kj

kj
kj

kj

kj

kj

kj

kj

kj kj

kj

kj

kj

kj
kj

kj

kjkj

kj

Ñ̈

Ñ̈

Ñ̈

Ñ̈

Ñ̈

Ñ̈

Ñ̈

Ñ̈

Ñ̈

Ñ̈

Ñ̈

ca

ca

ca

C
A

N
Y

O
N

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

!(55
McMillan Rd

Ustick Rd

Cherry Ln

Overland Rd

Franklin Rd

Ten
 M

ile R
d

L
in

d
er R

d

M
erid

ian
 R

d

L
o

cu
st G

ro
ve R

d

E
ag

le R
d

Victory Rd

Amity Rd

£¤26

B
lack C

at R
d

M
cD

erm
o

tt R
d

S
tar R

d

C
an

A
d

a R
d

Lake Hazel Rd

Columbia Rd

84

Chinden Rd

84

A
D

A
 C

O
U

N
T

Y

1 2 3

4

Ten Mile Interchange Specific Area Plan

Fi
e

ld
s 

Su
b

a
re

a
 P

la
n

Boise River

Boise River
Boise R iver

Boise River

Cemetery

Idaho Power

WRRF

State Police

Post
Office

Gen. Plaza

City Hall

Golf Course

Library

Idaho
Power

Idaho Power

ITD

Cemetery

Legend

Area of City Impact

Special Planning Area

Waterway

Ñ̈ Fire

ca Police

kj Parks

n School

Æb Transit Station

! Future Facility

Entryway Corridor

Existing Crossing

Future Crossing

Future Roadway

Low Density Residential

Medium Density Residential

Med-High Density Residential

High Density Residential

Commercial

Office

Industrial

Civic

Old Town

Mixed Use Neighborhood

Mixed Use Community

Mixed Use Regional

Mixed Use Non-Residential

Mixed Use - Interchange

Low Density Employment

High Density Employment

Mixed Employment

Mixed Use Residential

Mixed Use Commercial

Boise River

Future Land Uses
Citywide Ten Mile Specific

Notes:
Symbols with halos indicate general future facility locations.  These symbols
are not parcel specific and may float to nearby areas. The final location and
status (halo) of symbols may be revised periodically to reflect existing facility
locations.

Land use designations in the Ten Mile Interchange Specific Area are different
from the rest of the City, even when they share a name. Designations for that
area are described in the Ten Mile Interchange Specific Area Plan.

The information shown on this map is compiled from various sources and is
subject to constant revision. The City of Meridian makes no warranty or
guarantee as to the content, suitability, accuracy, timeliness, or completeness,
or reliability of any of the data provided, for any purpose, and assumes no
legal responsibility for the information contained on this map.

This map is intended to work in tandem with the policies of the
Comprehensive Plan to serve as a guide for future land use patterns within
Meridian’s AOCI. Land use patterns depicted on the map are generalized,
recognizing that  development proposals may contain a mixture of land uses
and density levels to achieve the intent of the Comprehensive Plan. All
development is subject to City zoning and other development standards and
performance guidelines.

Prepared by Meridian Planning Division
Print Date: April 11, 2022

[

City of Meridian
Future Land Use Map

0 0.5 10.25
Miles

Adopted Month, Day, Year

139Item 7.


	Top
	Item 1.	MIN 2022-04-07 Planning and Zoning Comission
	Meeting Minutes

	Item 2.	FFCL Records Apartments CUP H-2022-0008
	Findings

	Item 3.	PHPZ Cont'd from 3/17 Alamar Subdivision H-2022-0004
	Item 4.	PHPZ Burnside Ridge Estates H-2021-0070
	Item 5.	PHPZ Grayson Subdivision H-2022-0014
	Item 6.	PHPZ I-84 and Meridian Rd. H-2021-0099
	Item 7.	PHPZ FLUM AOCI CPAM Cleanup H-2021-0098
	Staff Report
	Proposed FLUM with All Changes

	Bottom

